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$22(1)(a)(ii)

Subject: NSW Fast Rail / NFRA catchup
Location: Microsoft Teams Meeting
Start: Wed 3/05/2023 1:30 PM

End: Wed 3/05/2023 2:00 PM
Show Time As: Tentative

Recurrence: (none)

Organizer: $22(1)(a)(ii)

Rescheduling April’s meeting to 3 May due to attendee availability.
Please let me know if the updated date/time is not suitable.

Thanks
s22(1)(a)(ii)

Microsoft Teams meeting

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device
Click here to join the meeting

s22(1)(@)(ii)

Learn More | Meeting options

This email is intended only for the addressee and may contain confidential information. If you receive this email in error please delete it and any
attachments and notify the sender immediately by reply email. Transport for NSW takes all care to ensure that attachments are free from viruses or
other defects. Transport for NSW assume no liability for any loss, damage or other consequences which may arise from opening or using an
attachment.

b% Consider the environment. Please don't print this e-mail unless really necessary.
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From:
Sent:
To:

Cc:
Subject:

Attachments:

Hi Greg,

s22(1)(a)(ii)

Wednesday, 12 October 2022 4:21 PM

WHALEN Grea

s22(1)(a)(ii)

Completion reports of TENSW [SEC=OFFICIAL]

Attachment A - Email to TINSW.docx; Attachment B - post-completion-report-
sydney to bomaderry .docx; Attachment C - post-completion-report-Sydney to
Parkes.docx; Attachment D - notes-on-administration-january-2021.pdf; Attachment
E - NSW PCB Template 2021-22.xIsm; PCR Briefing.docx

Please see the final draft brief and attachments needed to close out the two NSW projects.

Its pretty close to complete but | am keen to check in and make sure it hits the mark with you prior to finalising.
Please note that | am also checking on one further detail with 1ID prior to finalising the brief and attachments —
whether TENSW can provide a cost breakdown outside of our template.

Happy to take feedback and make changes as needed

Cheers, $22(1)

(a)(ii)

s22(1)(a)(ii)

Director — Business Case and Projects

GPO Box 594, Canberra ACT 2601

Ph: (02) s22(1)(a)( (m) s22(1)(a)(ii)
s22(1)(a)(ii) @nfra.gov.au | www.nfra.gov.au
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Dear XXXXX

Reference
Sydney to Bomaderry— Faster Rail Business Case

Sydney to Parkes— Faster Rail Business Case

| refer to the two abovementioned projects which were completed and received by the NFRA last
year. The Notes on Administration (NoA) stipulate that a post completion report is required at the
completion of each joint funded project (refer to section 4 of the NoA).

We are finalising our administrative processes with respect to these projects and have identified that
we are yet to receive post completion reports. To assist in expediting this process, | have attached

partially completed reports for both projects.

Given this is the responsibility of the proponent, we are requesting that tNSW;

1. Review the content provided for quality assurance.

2. Provide the necessary details to complete the report for each project. We note and confirm
that there was an acknowledgement by the Australian Government of $2.5m of in-kind
contribution by tNSW.

3. Sign and return the reports.

Please note that under the NoA that the Chief Executive Officer of the funded agency or their
delegate is responsible for signing this report and attesting to the expenditure on the project.

Happy to answer any questions, and thanking you in advance.

Greg Whalen
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© Commonwealth of Australia 2021

Ownership of intellectual property rights in this publication

Unless otherwise noted, copyright (and any other intellectual property rights, if any) in this publication is owned by the
Commonwealth of Australia (referred to below as the Commonwealth).

Disclaimer

The material contained in this publication is made available on the understanding that the Commonwealth is not
providing professional advice, and that users exercise their own skill and care with respect to its use, and seek
independent advice if necessary.

The Commonwealth makes no representations or warranties as to the contents or accuracy of the information contained
in this publication. To the extent permitted by law, the Commonwealth disclaims liability to any person or organisation in
respect of anything done, or omitted to be done, in reliance upon information contained in this publication.

Creative Commons licence

With the exception of (a) the Coat of Arms; (b) the Department of Infrastructure, Transport, Regional Development and
Communications photos and graphics; and (c) [OTHER], copyright in this publication is licensed under a Creative
Commons Attribution 4.0 Australia Licence.

Creative Commons Attribution 4.0 Australia Licence is a standard form licence agreement that allows you to copy,
communicate and adapt this publication provided that you attribute the work to the Commonwealth and abide by the
other licence terms.

Further information on the licence terms is available from https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/

This publication should be attributed in the following way: © Commonwealth of Australia 2021

Use of the Coat of Arms

The Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet sets the terms under which the Coat of Arms is used. Please refer to
the Commonwealth Coat of Arms - Information and Guidelines publication available at http://www.pmc.gov.au.

Contact us

This publication is available in hard copy or PDF format. All other rights are reserved, including in relation to any
Departmental logos or trade marks which may exist. For enquiries regarding the licence and any use of this publication,
please contact:

Director - Publishing and Communications

Communications Branch

Department of Infrastructure, Transport, Regional Development and Communications
GPO Box 594

Canberra ACT 2601

Australia

Email: publishing@infrastructure.gov.au

Website: www.infrastructure.gov.au
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1 Introduction

1.1 Purpose of the Notes on Administration

1.2 Scope of the Notes on Administration

The Notes apply to all Projects funded, or proposed to be funded under Part 3 (Investment Projects) and Part 7 (Black
Spot Projects) of the National Land Transport Act 2014 (NLT Act).

The Notes set out the administrative requirements in relation to:

e  Project approval (Chapter 2): the process for consideration of Projects for Approved Funding, including
associated terms and conditions;

e  Project administration (Chapter 3): the administrative processes that Funding Recipients must follow relating to
Project governance and financial governance.

e  Project completion and closure (Chapter 4): the administrative requirements relating to Project completion,
closure and evaluation.

e Public recognition (Chapter 5): the requirements and obligations of the Australian and State Governments
relating to public recognition, media and signage for Projects.

e National Land Transport Network maintenance (Chapter 6): describe the arrangements and processes
associated with maintenance funding for non-tolled roads on the National Land Transport Network.

e Black Spot Projects (Appendix D): describes the arrangements and processes associated with the selection of
Projects under Part 7 of the NLT Act.

The focus of the Notes is on the administrative requirements for Projects with an announced Australian Government
funding commitment and which have been included in the Schedule to the NPA. The selection of Projects is undertaken in
accordance with the NLT Act. The Notes do not describe the arrangements and processes associated with the selection of
Projects to be included in the NPA schedule.

The Department of Infrastructure, Transport, Regional Development and Communications (the Department) recognises
there may be circumstances relating to individual Projects which cannot be readily addressed by referencing the Notes.
Under these circumstances Proponents and the Department will discuss and agree the appropriate approach.

Notes on Administration for Land Transport Infrastructure Projects 2019 2024 g 5
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2 Project Approval

2.1 Committed Funding by the Australian Government

The Australian Government may commit funding to a Project at any time, for any phase based on information it deems
appropriate.

Committed funding to a Project will be documented in the NPA Schedules and agreed by both the Australian and
respective State Government. Projects may be listed in the NPA Schedules individually or collectively.

The announcement of Committed funding to a particular Project, and its subsequent inclusion in the NPA Schedules
reflects the Australian Government’s commitment to the outcomes of the Project but is not a guarantee of funding.
Funding must be subsequently approved by the Minister in accordance with the relevant legislation. Any expenditure

made by States before Project approval is at the Proponent’s own risk, noting the NPA includes specific provisions relating

to Project Withdrawals and Cancellations (Clauses 59 — 67).

2.2 Project Approval Process

The Project Approval Process is the process by which Project information is provided to the Department to facilitate the
assessment of Projects against the relevant parts of the NLT Act and PGPA Act and make a recommendation to the
Minister. The Department and Proponent will work cooperatively to meet the requirements of Project Approval, in
accordance to the process set out below.

Project Approval Process

The Project Approval Process consists of four stages as displayed in the diagram below.

STAGE 2: STAGE 3:
STAGE 1: Project Proposal Recommendation

STAGE 4:

. Notification of
Project Proposal Report Assessed Submitted to

Report Submitted by the Minister by the
Department Department

Approval
Outcome

More information of the requirements and processes relating to each stages of the Project Approval Process is provided
in the following pages.

Infrastructure Australia Business Case Assessments

An assessment of the merits of the proposal by Infrastructure Australia for Projects seeking $250 million or more in
Australian Government funding is required and forms part of the approval process. Proponents are required to provide
Business Cases and relevant supporting information and documentation to Infrastructure Australia and to work
cooperatively with Infrastructure Australia through its assessment process.

Notes on Administration for Land Transport Infrastructure Projects 201912024 g
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2.3 Stage 1: Submission of Project Proposal Report (PPR)

For Projects seeking approval for delivery funding, Proponents are required to provide the Department with the following
documents accompanying the PPR:

e Indigenous Participation Plans consistent with the requirements of the Indigenous Employment and Supplier-
Use Framework, for Projects with an Australian Government contribution above $7.5 million and in some
circumstances for Projects below $7.5 million with strong potential to support Indigenous participation (further
advice on information requested at Appendix A3).

e Local Industry Participation Plans or Australian Government’s Australian Industry Participation Plan, which is to
be forwarded as soon as completed by the successful tenderer.

2.4 Stage 2: Assessment of Project Proposal Report

The information provided in a PPR is assessed by the Department to guide its recommendations to the Minister on the
merits and risks of a Project. The Minister will consider this assessment in determining whether to approve funding for
the Project. The Department considers a range of factors when assessing PPRs, including a Project’s eligibility under Part
3, Sections 10 and 11 of the NLT Act.

Information relating the eligibility and appropriateness for approval of Projects can be found at
https://www.legislation.gov.au/Details/C2018C00226

Identifying Approved Purposes for Funding

All Australian Government funding against a Project must be expended on Approved Purposes. This is the only
expenditure that will be counted in the total cost of the Project for Australian Government purposes. Where non-
Australian Government contributions are listed against the Project in the NPA Schedule, only expenditure on Approved
Purposes will be counted in those contributions.

Approved Purposes include:

a. Costs of planning, pre-construction and construction, including public consultation, environmental assessment,
design, land acquisition, and traffic management. Provided they are within the agreed scope of a Project, the
items listed below are part of a non-exhaustive list of cost considered to be eligible:

e  Project or program management e access roads
e client supplied insurances, fees and e bridges
levies

e pavements

e environmental works e  weigh stations

e public utilities adjustments e finishing works

* retaining walls e Intelligent Transport Systems

* dramage L rest areas

* tunnels e traffic management and temporary

e traffic signage, signals and controls works

e  track work e earthwork

e  design, investigation and trials e property acquisition (including purchase
demonstrations price, transactional costs, business

e rail systems, including overhead wiring, ccf)fmpensatlon and environmental
power supply and distribution, offsets)
signalling, rail communications and e rail transport stations, transport
combined services route interchanges, buildings, stabling and

e fencing maintenance buildings

Notes on Administration for Land Transport Infrastructure Projects 201902 g 11



FOI 23-265 - DocBrojett Approval

b. Costs of using recycled materials in a Project, where use of the materials is consistent with relevant national or
state and territory policies.

c. Costs of meeting any conditions or requirements imposed on the Project under Australian or State law; this
includes

i.  the Disability Standards for Accessible Public Transport 2002 (available at
https://www.legislation.gov.au/Details/F2011C00213).

d. Costs of reasonable measures to avoid or mitigate negative impacts of a Project (including temporary measures
during construction);

e. Costs of Project public recognition and publicity, including program signage and ceremonies connected to Project
progress;
f. Costs of signage to recognise significant Indigenous contributions to a project, where appropriate (see section 5.4);

g. Costs of, or arising from, any legal action relating to a Project that is not due to the Funding Recipient failing to
properly administer tender processes and supervise and manage relevant contracts; and

h. The following items may be considered to be Approved Purposes if the Funding Recipient justifies the costs to the
Department:

i. Costs of aesthetic features which provides the Project with a reasonable degree of aesthetic value such
that it complements the surrounding environment, where such features are integrated into functional
components of a Project;

ii. Costs of other non-construction and temporary construction elements of a Project, where these are
operational in nature and are minor items of expenditure in the context of the overall Project;

iii. Costs associated with sections of road or rail that might be bypassed by a Project and cease to be part
of the National Land Transport Network;

iv. Other costs which can be demonstrated to align with Approved Purposes set out in points (a) to (f) as
defined above.
The Funding Recipient may contact the Department at any time to clarify Approved Purposes.
Unapproved Purposes - see Definitions and Abbreviations
GST Treatment

Funding will not be provided for the Goods and Services Tax (GST) the Funding Recipient pays. All cost estimates and
reported expenditure must be GST exclusive.

Treatment of Unapproved Purposes

The Department acknowledges that, for some Projects, there can be synergy in combining Approved and Unapproved
Purposes into a single tender and contract (for example, ‘design, build and maintain’ contracts where maintenance costs
are not considered to be Approved Purposes). If Approved Purposes are combined with Unapproved Purposes in a
tender, Approved Purposes should be clearly identified to the Department before the tender documentation is finalised.
If such a tender proceeds, the Department may seek to review tender bids and may undertake a more detailed review of
the cost split.

Reviewing and assessing cost estimates

Cost estimates should be submitted in summary form in the applicable Project Cost Breakdown (PCB) template and in
accordance with the principles outlined in the Department’s current cost estimation guidance which can be accessed at
http://investment.infrastructure.gov.au/about/funding and finance/cost estimation guidance.aspx

A probabilistic cost estimation process must be used for Projects with a total anticipated Outturn P90 cost (including
contingency and escalation) exceeding $25 million. Projects with a total anticipated Outturn P90 cost under $25 million
may use a deterministic methodology, however the Department recommends using a probabilistic cost estimation
method where possible.

Notes on Administration for Land Transport Infrastructure Projects 201912024 g 12
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The Department will review and assess the cost estimate (including the forecast annual allocations) provided in the PPR
before making a recommendation to the Minister. Proponents must cooperate with any review undertaken.

The NPA requires Proponents to provide access to underpinning data for cost estimation purposes. As such, Proponents
must maintain an electronic library of all documentation consulted in determining the Project estimate.

Requests for tender exemptions

A Proponent seeking an exemption from the requirement to use a public tender process must seek approval for the
exemption in the PPR. The request for approval must detail the:

e Scope of works for which the exemption is being sought;

e Value of these works;

e Intended entity to undertake these works;

e Category under which the exemption is being sought (Section 24(1)(c) i to vi of the NLT Act); and
e Supporting reasons for the exemption.

The Department acknowledges that early planning, options analysis and preliminary designs works will generally be
undertaken within state agencies and that tender exemption requirements do not relate to these internal activities.

Agreeing to Milestones
The NPA requires funding to be provided to Funding Recipients based on the achievement of Milestones.
Chapter 3 provides detail on how the Australian Government will pay Funding Recipients against Milestones.

Proponents will be required to propose a Milestone schedule for their Project in the PPR. The Department will review
these Milestones and discuss changes with the Proponent.

Milestones will be agreed in writing by the Department and the Proponent.

The Department acknowledges that with major procurement in the Delivery phase, it may not be possible to schedule
Milestones for construction activities before a contract is awarded. The Department also acknowledges there may be
activities leading up to the completion of the major procurement which may be Approved Purposes. In these
circumstances, the Department will accept a Milestone schedule covering the lead up to contract award. Once
construction contracts are signed, the Funding Recipient will be required to review and, where necessary, update the
Milestone schedule to include construction activities.

Funding Recipients must provide up to date information on all Project procurements, in line with Chapter 3 requirements.

Agreed Milestones will be entered into the Department’s Infrastructure Management System (IMS). Milestones may be
varied by agreement, in line with Chapter 3 requirements.

2.5 Stage 3: Recommendations to the Minister

For Projects funded under the NLT Act, the recommendation will relate to whether or not the Project should be
approved. If the recommendation is to approve the Project, the recommendation will include the amount of funding to
be provided, the scope of the Project and any Project specific arrangements. The recommendation will take into account
the amount of Committed Funding for the Project, if funding has been provided for a previous phases and the latest cost
estimate. The recommendation to the Minister will also take into account the proposed Indigenous Participation Plan for
the project, where applicable.

2.6 Stage 4: Notification of Approval

Following a decision by the Minister, the Department will write to the Proponent advising if Project funding has been
approved or not. If approved, a copy of the Funding Instrument will also be provided. Any Project- specific arrangements

Notes on Administration for Land Transport Infrastructure Projects 20192024 g 13
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agreed between the Minister and Funding Recipient in the context of Project approval will be set out in the
correspondence. Once the Project is approved, the Funding Recipient will be required to abide by all funding conditions.

Notes on Administration for Land Transport Infrastructure Projects 2019282 g 14
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3 Project Administration

3.1 Project Governance

The appropriate Project governance arrangements will be considered on a Project by Project basis and agreed between
the Australian Government and the relevant State government at the outset of a Project, and may include steering
committees, Project Specific Agreements, and joint business case teams.

Steering committees and Project boards

Where Funding Recipients implement governance arrangements such as steering committees or Project boards for a
Project with an Australian Government funding contribution, the Australian Government will be given the opportunity to
participate in such committees.

The role of Australian Government representation on steering committees and Project boards will be discussed and
agreed between the Australian Government and the relevant State on a case by case basis at the commencement of the
Project and at agreed intervals throughout the Project lifecycle.

The Australian Government or the Funding Recipient may request that steering committees or Project boards be
established.

Project Specific Agreements

Following commitment by the Australian and State Government to the Project either party may request a Project Specific
Agreement (PSA), Memoranda of Understanding or similar Project document. Such documents will:

e Apply to select Projects on the NPA schedule and generally appended to the Schedule (for example a PSA may
not be attached if it contains commercial in confidence information).

e Be negotiated between the Australian Government and the relevant State on a case by case basis for the
relevant Project.

e Apply to high priority Projects that have the potential to deliver broader outcomes, are of high strategic or
financial value, and/or are associated with high levels of complexity or risk.

e  Specify the additional requirements and outcomes the Project is seeking to deliver consistent with, but in
addition to, the NPA. The additional outcomes are likely to extend beyond transport outcomes and may relate
to: alternative funding or financing opportunities, housing, population management, urban renewal, economic
growth and development.

Project Specific Agreements and Memoranda of Understanding are not intended to be legally enforceable. However, this
does not lessen the Parties’” commitment to these agreements.

Business Cases

For business cases where the Australian Government has committed funding, the Australian Government expects States
to provide it with timely information on business case development and that the States will consult the Australian
Government on decisions on key elements, such as scope options, alignments and issues impacting the Project cost. State
decision-making should have due regard to the Australian Government’s interests, objectives and desired outcomes.

Draft and subsequent final business cases funded by the Australian Government are to be provided to the Australian
Government in a timely, transparent and comprehensive manner.

Notes on Administration for Land Transport Infrastructure Projects 2019172024 g 15
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The Australian Government or State government may request the establishment of a joint Project team for Projects that
receive Australian Government Business Case funding. The roles and responsibilities of Australian Government
representation on Project teams will be discussed and agreed on case by case basis.

3.2 Financial Governance

Early cost estimates

The Australian Government’s contribution to the final Project cost will be consistent with its commitment and drawn
from the overall program allocation. For projects where a P90 cost estimate is not yet fully developed, or the delivery
contract has not yet been awarded the Australian Government’s funding contribution will not be capped.

Post Procurement/ Cost Schedule updates

The Department requires up-to-date information on estimated Project costs and proposed Project delivery schedules.
When a major component of the work is awarded to a contractor, Funding Recipients must inform the Department of the
agreed contract price, including contingency and escalation factors, and provide an updated overall Project cost estimate
(including Base Estimate, P50 and P90 Project Estimates and P50 and P90 Outturn Costs). Milestones may be varied to
reflect the contractor’s delivery schedule.

For Projects with an Australian Government funding commitment of $100 million or above, the Department may
undertake a formal cost estimation review following award of the major construction contract. Where it has been
determined that the Project can be delivered for lower than the original estimate based on the contract price, the
Australian Government may, in consultation with the State, adjust its allocation to reflect the updated estimated cost.
Any savings identified through this review may be reinvested in that State with the agreement of the Australian
Government.

Variable and Fixed Scope Project Funding

For projects with a fixed scope (such as the delivery of a bypass, interchange upgrade etc.) the Australian Government
will commit funding at the agreed P90 level. For projects receiving an Australian Government contribution of $25 million
or greater, funding will be released at the agreed P50 level up to the Australian Government’s agreed proportion of the
overall Project P50 Outturn Cost outlined in the PPR. Additional funding, up to the maximum of Committed Funding
outlined in the NPA Schedule (generally P90), will only be approved and released on a demonstrated needs basis. For
projects receiving less than $25 million, funding will be released at the P90 level.

Where it is agreed funding up to the P90 level is unlikely to be required to complete the project, the committed funding
can be reduced, with savings then available for reallocation within the states program.

However, for projects where there is a fixed commitment, such as a package of works along a corridor, where the
objective is to upgrade as much road as possible within the committed funding, the Australian Government will approve
funding up to the amount committed and not generally require estimates at P50 / P90 level.

Notes on Administration for Land Transport Infrastructure Projects 2019202 g 16
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Variations to Projects

The Department recognises that certain circumstance can lead to changes to the approved Project. In accordance with
section 57 and 58 of the NPA, all significant variations to a Project must be agreed in writing between the parties. This
includes, but is not limited to, variations to:

e Total Project cost, including the funding contributions of all parties;
e Scope;
e Timelines; or
e  Other circumstances subject to a condition.
A formal request for variation must be submitted to the Department with supporting information. Funding Recipients

should discuss the potential variation with the Department at the earliest possible instance as the nature of the variation
will determine the type and amount of supporting information required.

The Department may seek to review and validate cost estimates used to justify any request for changes to the amount of
either approved or committed funding.

Where the proposed Project variation will result in a change to the schedule of Milestones, the Project variation must be
agreed first and the Milestones then varied as outlined immediately below.

Variations to Milestones

Variations to the timing or payment of a Milestone for a particular Project may be requested by either the Department or
Funding Recipient. Request for variations must involve formal communication and agreement, by letter, email or through
IMS for example, between the Department and the Funding Recipient before the update being processed through IMS.

Where the requested changes to Milestones are the result of a Project variation, the Project variation must be agreed in
writing before requesting variation of Milestones.

Requests for variations to Milestones can only be submitted in IMS between the 14th and the end of each month, subject
to these restrictions:

e Arequest to vary a Milestone cannot be made in the same month as the Milestone is due (for example, a
request for variation to Milestones due in January 2019 cannot be made in January 2019);

e The sum of all Milestone payments within a financial year cannot exceed the amount allocated for that financial
year, without consultation with the Department; and

e The sum of all funding paid and all future Milestones payments cannot exceed the Approved Funding for the
Project.

Management of Program funding

Funding Recipients may request approval from the Australian Government to reallocate under and over spends within the
State’s program. In seeking approval to reallocate over and underspends Funding Recipients will provide the following
information to the Department:

e The rationale for the under or overspend;
e The quantum of funds to be reallocated and the timing of the movement of funding;
e The implications of the movement of funds for other projects and the State’s overall program funding; and

e Any other information the Department may require to consider and seek approval for the proposed change.

The Australian Government will consider the application for the proposed reallocation of funding on a case by case basis
and advise the Funding Recipient of the outcome of the application.

Request for reallocation of funding must involve formal communication and agreement, by letter exchange for example,
between the Department and the Funding Recipient before the update being processed through IMS.
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Interest earned on payments in advance

States are required to estimate the interest earned on payments in advance. The method of calculation is to be agreed
between the Department and relevant state on a case by case basis.

In the absence of agreement to an alternative arrangement, the Australian Government weighted average costs of
borrowing will be applied as the basis for the estimate. The weighted average cost of borrowing is estimated by the
Australian Government biannually for MYEFO and the Australian Government Budget and reported in Statement 7: Debt
Statement, Assets and Liabilities. The Department will notify Funding Recipients of the Australian Government weighted
average cost of borrowing, which States will apply to estimate the interest earned on payments in advance.

The Department and States will work collaboratively to estimate the interest earned on payments in advance biannually
to the Department at the time of the Budget and MYEFO.

Note interest requirements relate specifically to payments made in advance of normal milestone payment arrangements.
Funding recipients are not required to account for interest on funding paid under normal milestone payment processes.

3.3 Risk and Assurance Program

Projects listed in the NPA Schedules are subject to assessment through the Department’s Risk and Assurance Program.

The purpose of the Risk and Assurance Program is to provide assurance that the Australian Government’s significant
investment in infrastructure is being delivered in accordance with legislative and other requirements.

Each financial year a selection of projects will be identified by the Department for assessment under the Risk and
Assurance Program.

The Funding Recipient and any subcontractor must bear their own costs of complying with the requirements of the Risk
and Assurance Program.
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4 Project Completion

4.1 Post Completion

Once a Project has reached physical completion it enters the Post-Completion Phase. The Post-Completion Phase lasts for
up to 12 months unless a request demonstrating why an extension is required is submitted to and approved by the
Department. During the Post-Completion Phase the Funding Recipient must prepare and submit to the Department:

e A Post-Completion Report (Appendix C2);

e Astatement from the Chief Executive Officer of the Funding Recipient, or their delegate, that amounts expended
from funding payments have been, or will be, wholly expended on Approved Purposes in relation to funded
Projects; and

e A payment request for the Final Milestone.
During the Post-Completion Phase the Department will:

e Undertake an initial evaluation of Project outcomes, reviewing costs and outstanding expenditure items, and the
performance of the asset against its objectives, with reference to agreed performance indicators;

e Ensure Indigenous participation requirements have been met, including that the Funding Recipient has provided
all necessary documentation and publicly reported on performance against any agreed Indigenous targets;

e Ensure the state has provided a copy of its Local Industry Participation Plan or an Australian Industry
Participation Plan for projects receiving more than $20 million in Australian Government funding; and

e  Match the Committed Funding to the Approved Funding for the Project.

In particular, the Final Milestone will be adjusted to include the Australian Government’s unpaid share of Approved
Purposes on the Project to date, and the Australian Government’s agreed estimated share of outstanding Approved
Purposes that may extend beyond the date of payment of the Final Milestone (e.g. noise monitoring contracts, final
landscaping contracts, land acquisition settlements).

Note: The cost estimate for the whole Project at the conclusion of the Post Completion phase includes the actual costs
from the Scoping, Development and Delivery phases, noting that some residual property- related costs may have to be
handled separately.

4.2 Project Closure

Upon payment of the Final Milestone, a Project is deemed to be closed. Funding Recipients must report this payment in
their next Annual Financial Statement and Audit Report (Appendix C3).

Once closed, Funding Recipients can no longer claim funding from the Australian Government for the Project and no
longer have to provide Project Monthly Progress Reports.

Funding Recipients are still required to abide by the Project Evaluation requirements, and must notify the Australian
Government by way of the Annual Financial Statement and Audit Report if it sells or disposes of an interest in land that
was acquired using all or part of a funding payment.
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4.3 Project Evaluation

The Funding Recipient agrees to cooperate in the evaluation of projects to facilitate Project performance reviews and
continuous improvement of investment decision making.

The Department may conduct an evaluation, to determine the extent to which Project transport outcomes have been
achieved and review the accuracy of demand forecasts and cost estimates used to assess the Project.

Funding Recipients may be required to provide information to assist in this evaluation for a period of time, as agreed.

If a Funding Recipient conducts a Project evaluation without involving the Department, they must provide a copy of the
evaluation report to the Department.
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5 Public Recognition

5.1 Rights of the Australian Government

The Australian Government reserves the right to publicise and report on the funding it commits or approves to a Funding
Recipient. This can include publicising the Funding Recipient’s name, the amount of the funds given to the Funding
Recipient, the name of the Project, a description of the Project, maps of the Project’s location, or any other information
the Australian Government deems appropriate.
The Government may do this by:

e Including information about the funding in traditional and social media

e Ingeneral announcements and speeches

e Inannual reports and Budget documents

e On the Department’s website or websites belonging to any Australian Government Minister

e By any other method.

5.2 Funding Recipient Obligations

A Funding Recipient must acknowledge the financial support they have received from the Australian Government, and
must consult with the Australian Government prior to releasing any promotional and advertising materials, public
announcements and media activities in relation to a Project.

Where public recognition of a Funding Recipient’s Budget or forward program for land transport infrastructure funding
includes funding provided by the Australian Government, a full acknowledgement of the Australian Government’s
funding contribution in total and in respect of individual Projects must be made.

The Australian Government expects equal access to products States obtain in the development of promotional material
including but not limited to Project data and benefits, and all raw project footage and images.

5.3 Australian Government and State jointly funded projects

Where a Project is funded jointly, with approximately equal funding contributions, all public recognition for that Project is
required to be jointly agreed with both parties receiving equal prominence. Public recognition for a Project stating,
requiring or implying a funding commitment by the Australian Government must not be finalised without first agreeing
with the Department.

Where any public recognition is proposed, the Funding Recipient must provide reasonable opportunity for the Australian
Government to contribute to all communication strategies and announcements, have equal representation at events, and
work cooperatively with the Department to provide:

e Adequate notice of the proposed public recognition (particularly with ceremonies), of dates, of plaques to be
made and of any attendance by Members of Parliament that has to be arranged;

e Appropriate opportunity to ensure that the proposed public recognition meets Australian Government
expectations; and

e  Access to all products obtained for use in the development of promotional material including but not limited to
Project data and benefits, and all raw project footage and images.
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When installing Project signage, including Commemorative Plaques, Funding Recipients must also comply with the
Australian Government’s Signage Guidelines, available from the Department’s website
http://investment.infrastructure.gov.au/about/resources/signage_guidelines.aspx.

Operational announcements related to the Project, such as Notices relating to night works do not require Departmental
approval.

5.4 Additional requirements for majority Australian Government-
funded Projects

In addition to the above requirements, where the Australian Government is a majority funder of a Project, promotional
material and public recognition must provide major prominence to the Australian Government’s contribution, set out in
the Australian Government Signage Guidelines. This applies to all promotional material, announcements, launches and
events in connection with a Project.

Recognising the contribution of local Indigenous Communities on projects

Where a local Indigenous community, particularly in Remote Australia, has made a significant contribution to delivery of a
project funded under the NPA, the Funding Recipient, in consultation with relevant Indigenous stakeholders and the
Department, may consider highlighting their contribution on project signage, where appropriate. This signage is
considered an approved purpose under section 2.4 above (Identifying Approved Purposes for Funding).
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6 National Land Transport Network Maintenance

6.1 Allocation

The Australian Government contribution towards maintenance of the road component of the National Land Transport
Network will be provided as an annual allocation to each State. The Minister approves maintenance allocations annually
under Section 9(1) and 17(1) of the NLT Act. The annual allocation to each State will be determined by a formula. The
formula is based on three components of non-tolled National Land Transport Network roads in each State, which are
given equal weighting for:

e Llanelength;
e Total average daily vehicle distance travelled; and

e Total average daily heavy vehicle distance travelled (using equivalent standard axles as the measure).

Each State’s allocation from the Australian Government’s maintenance budget will be determined by its proportion of
each component relative to the total for all non-tolled roads in the National Land Transport Network. Each State is to
provide, by 31 December each year, the data necessary to enable the Australian Government to allocate this funding
according to the formula. Section 6.5 details the data required.

Annual road maintenance funding is only to be spent on non-tolled roads on the National Land Transport Network.

6.2 Approval

Each State’s maintenance allocation is approved by the Minister as a Project eligible under Section 10(b) and
appropriated under Section 11(b) of the NLT Act.

As a Project approved under Part 3 of the NLT Act, the conditions in Part 3, Division 3, of the NLT Act apply where
appropriate.

6.3 Maintenance standard

Australian Government road maintenance funding is provided as part of a partnership with States to assist maintain the
National Land Transport Network to a standard consistent with each State’s maintenance policies and practices and in
consideration of the appropriate level of service for each road based on its classification by the respective State.

The appropriate level of service may need to be revised to take into account relevant service level standards agreed as
part of the Council of Australian Governments (COAG) Land Transport Market Reform.
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6.6 Maintenance performance report

These are the Australian Government’s requirements for the annual Maintenance Performance Report:

A. Provision of data
a. Datais to be provided electronically with geo-referencing; and
b. On dual carriageways, condition data is required for both carriageways, with each carriageway individually
referenced.

B. Road characteristics data

The following road characteristics data is required:
a. Roughness — International Roughness Index (IRI) for the latest year available;
b. Surfacing age, or if not applicable — with reason supplied (for example, concrete pavements);
c. Target surfacing age or n/a if not applicable;
d. Seal width; and
e. Speed limit.

Road characteristics data should be provided for short, convenient road lengths of about one kilometre.
C. Road use data

The following road use data is required:
a. Annual Average Daily Traffic (AADT) with year recorded or derived; and

b. Percentage of heavy vehicles.
Road use data should be provided at the most detailed level held by the State agency.
D. Maintenance expenditure

The following maintenance cost data is required:

a. Total annual maintenance expenditure, indicating Australian Government and State contributions (including
rehabilitation and/or reconstruction) for each road link for the previous financial year, showing pavement and
off-pavement expenditure

b. Planned pavement maintenance budget (including rehabilitation and/or reconstruction) in the current financial
year for each link to achieve proposed condition outcomes, together with the estimated cost of off-pavement
maintenance (that is, the estimated total maintenance expenditure).

E. Maintenance indicators

The Australian Government uses two indicators—the Preventative Maintenance Indicator (PMI) and the Riding Quality
Indicator (RQl)—to monitor road conditions under the NPA.

The Australian Government uses the data provided in the Maintenance Performance Report to calculate the Preventative
Maintenance Indicator and the Riding Quality Indicator and assess the overall condition of each link. Refer to Appendix E.
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Appendix A — Funding Conditions

Projects are subject to funding conditions set out in the NPA and from these sources:
e Al:The NLT Act (see https://www.legislation.gov.au/Details/C2018C00226)
e A2:Compliance with other laws; and

e A3:Indigenous Employment and Supplier- Use Infrastructure Framework.

Appendix A1 Funding conditions under the National Land
Transport Act 2014

The following mandatory conditions apply to funding payments for Projects and are set out in the NLT Act
(Subdivision B — The Mandatory Conditions). Not all Projects are required to abide by all conditions. This table
summarises the conditions each type of Project must abide by:

NLT Act mandatory conditions (as described below)

PROJECT TYPE Al.l Al.2 Al.3 Al.4 Al5 Al.6 Al.7 Al8

Projects contained in the v v v v v v x v
NPA Schedules

x v
Black Spot Projects v v v v X X v v

Maintenance Projects v v v v X

x

A1.1 Funding payment must be expended on the funded Project
The funding payment must be wholly expended on Approved Purposes in relation to the funded Project.
A1.2 Funding Recipient must give Minister audited financial statements

The NLT Act requires Funding Recipients to submit audited financial statements to the Minister. In particular, an
Annual Financial Statement and Audit Report must be submitted (template at Appendix C3).

A1.3 Funding Recipient must allow inspections by authorised persons

The Funding Recipient must, at all reasonable times, permit a person authorised by the Minister to inspect any
work involved in carrying out a funded Project and to inspect and make copies of documents relating to the
Project.

A1.4 Funding Recipient must provide information on request

The Funding Recipient must, as and when requested by the Minister, provide information relevant to the
progress of the funded Project or the operation or condition of the National Land Transport Network.

This could include information about the progress of an approved Project, which may be sought by way of the
reports identified in Section 3.2 and Section 6.4 of the Notes.
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A1.5 State Funding Recipient must call for public tenders for certain work

States and authorities of a State should, as a matter of policy, use public tender processes for Projects. This
obligation can be satisfied in some cases by selecting contractors under a pre-existing panel arrangement,
where it can be demonstrated that the pre-existing panel arrangement was the result of a public tender
process.

If the Funding Recipient is a State or an authority of a State, the Funding Recipient must call for public tenders
for all work on funded Projects, other than on work that:

is maintenance of a road or railway; or
b. is carried out by a public utility; or

c. the Minister has, by written exemption relating to the Project, exempted from this condition because, in
the Minister’s opinion the work:

i. isurgently required because of an emergency; or

ii. is of such a minor nature that the invitation to tenders for the work would involve undue
additional cost; or

iii. is of a kind for which it is not practicable to prepare adequate tender specifications; or
iv. is of a kind for which competitive tenders are unlikely to be received; or
v. will contribute to employment in a region; or

Vi. costs less than an amount determined by the Minister by legislative instrument.

The Department acknowledges that early planning, options analysis and preliminary designs works will
generally be undertaken within state agencies and that tender exemption requirements do not relate to these
internal activities.

A1.6 Obligations following the sale or disposal of interests in land

If a State sells or disposes of an interest in land acquired using all or part of the funding payment, the State
must pay the Australian Government an amount proportionate to the Commonwealth contribution to the land
acquisition using this formula set out under Section 25(1) of the NLT Act:

Amount due = Value x (Commonwealth contribution/Acquisition cost)

The Act defines Commonwealth contribution as: ‘so much of the funding payment as was used to meet the
acquisition cost’.

States must calculate the Commonwealth contribution using this formula:

Commonwealth contribution =

Acquisition cost x (Commonwealth total contribution to the Project / Total Project cost)

Alternatively, the State may, with the written approval of the Minister, spend an amount equal to the amount
determined by the formula on Approved Purposes for another Project. Submissions should be made in writing
to the relevant Department contact and are subject to approval by the Minister.

Section 25(1A) of the NLT Act states that a State must, as soon as practical after selling or disposing of an
interest in land acquired using all or part of the funding payment, notify the Minister of the sale or disposal.

Funding Recipients must report the sale or disposal of an interest in land acquired using Australian Government
funding in the Annual Financial Statement and Audit Report (Appendix C3).
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A1.7 Funding Recipient must maintain records relating to motor vehicle crashes

The Funding Recipient must maintain, and make available as required, records relating to the nature and
frequency of motor vehicle crashes involving death or personal injury occurring at the site of the funded
Project.

A1.8 Other funding conditions determined by the Minister

The NLT Act allows for the Minister to create, vary or revoke other conditions to be applied to Australian
Government funding where there is no funding agreement in place.
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Appendix A2 Compliance with other laws

A2.1 Funding Recipients must ensure the use of WHS accredited builders where
applicable

Where applicable and as a condition of Australian Government funding, Funding Recipients may only contract
builders accredited under the Australian Government Building and Construction WHS Accreditation Scheme.
This condition may be satisfied by providing written assurance to the Department.

The WHS Accreditation Scheme applies to construction Projects directly funded by the Australian Government
with a value of $4 million or more.

The WHS Accreditation Scheme also applies to construction Projects indirectly funded by the Australian
Government where the:

e Value of the Australian Government contribution to the Project is at least $6 million and represents at
least 50 per cent of the total construction Project value; or

e Australian Government contribution to a Project is $10 million or more, irrespective of the proportion
of Australian Government funding; and

e Head contract(s) which include building work is/are valued at $4 million or more.
For further information on the Australian Government Building and Construction WHS Accreditation Scheme

refer to https://ablis.business.gov.au/service/ag/australian-government-building-and-construction-workplace-
health-and-safety-accreditation-scheme/301.

A2.2 Funding Recipients must ensure compliance with the Building Code 2016

Where applicable, Funding Recipients must ensure that compliance with the Code for the Tendering and
Performance of Building Work 2016 (Building Code 2016) is made a condition of tender for all contractors and
subcontractors who tender for the work. This condition may be satisfied by providing written assurance to the
Department.

The Code applies to building work that is being undertaken by or on behalf of the Funding Recipient irrespective
of the value of the Project. The Code also applies to construction contracts for Projects indirectly funded by the
Australian Government where its contribution is:

e At least $5 million and represents at least 50 per cent of the total construction value; or

e S$10 million or more irrespective of the proportion of total Project funding.

A2.3 Funding Recipients must adhere to Australian Government environment and
heritage legislation

For most Projects, the relevant legislation will be the Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act
1999 and its subsidiary regulations and agreements. Funding Recipients should refer to the relevant bilateral
environmental assessments and approvals agreement for their State for guidance on processes required to
satisfy this condition. These bilateral agreements are accessible at http://www.environment.gov.au/epbc/state-
federal-government-working-together.

Funding Recipients must advise how they are addressing Australian Government environment and heritage
requirements. Construction cannot proceed until Funding Recipients have demonstrated that these obligations
have been met. This may include collecting compliance evidence, such as environmental impact assessments
and reports.

The Department strongly recommends that, before starting an environmental study for a Project, Proponents
contact the Commonwealth Department of Agriculture, Water and the Environment
http://www.environment.gov.au/epbc/index.html. This Department provides advice about Australian
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Government requirements and ensures that the study properly addresses the Government’s legislative
requirements. This will reduce the likelihood of additional cost and time delays obtaining environmental
approval.

A2.4 Funding Recipients must use a Local Industry Participation Plan or equivalent

Where applicable, Funding Recipients must develop a Local Industry Participation Plan (LIPP), consistent with
Australia’s international trade commitments, for any Projects that has an Australian Government funding
contribution of $20 million or more. If States do not have a Local Industry Participation policy in place, the
Australian Government’s Australian Industry Participation Policy should be used.

LIPPs should be provided to the Department as part of the PPR process or upon receipt from the successful
tenderer. More information on what should be included in a LIPP and the Australian Industry Participation
Plan’s template can be found at: www.industry.gov.au/aip.

The Department requires Funding Recipients to provide a copy of a Projects LIPP as part of the Project’s
governance process and for onward forwarding to the Commonwealth Department of Industry, Science, Energy
and Resources and the Department of Foreign Affairs and Trade who will review and provide feedback as
appropriate.

A2.5 Funding Recipients must meet other statutory requirements

In addition to Australian Government environmental and heritage legislation, Funding Recipients must also
meet other statutory requirements where relevant. These may include, but are not limited to:

e Native Title legislation

e State government legislation — such as environment and heritage requirements

e Local government planning approvals.

The Department requires written confirmation that relevant requirements have been met. This may include
evidence of compliance, including reports, where appropriate.
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Appendix A3 Indigenous Employment and Supplier-Use
Infrastructure Framework (Framework)

Important

The purpose of Appendix A3 of the Notes on Administration is to set out the
Framework’s implementation and administrative requirements for Funding
Recipients. If any inconsistencies arise between the originally drafted Framework, and
any part of the Notes on Administration with regard to Indigenous participation
requirements, the requirements contained in A3 will prevail. The full version of the
Framework, which sets out the Commonwealth’s policy intent and strategic context
can be accessed on investment.infrastructure.gov.au.

The Framework applies to construction projects receiving $7.5 million or more in
Australian Government contributions and in some circumstances for projects below
$7.5 million with strong potential to support Indigenous participation. For more detail
on Project Thresholds and Exemptions see A3.8.

Summary of requirements

Funding Recipients must submit an Indigenous Participation Plan or similar for each applicable project. It must
include the following key elements:

e A participation target comprising either, or both an employment component and supplier-use
component

e Anengagement plan outlining engagement with relevant Indigenous stakeholders, and supply-side
support providers, and

e Aplan for public reporting on performance to promote transparency and accountability.

Where State governments have existing Indigenous participation policies or plans that meet or exceed the
Australian Government’s requirements, the Australian Government will consider accepting the State’s plan, on
a project-by-project basis. More information on Alternatives to developing an Indigenous Participation Plan is at
A3.2.

A3.1 Indigenous Participation Plans

Funding Recipients are required to develop Indigenous Participation Plans for transport infrastructure projects
receiving $7.5 million or more in Australian Government contributions through the major road and rail
investment program under the NPA. The requirements apply to projects where construction stage funding is
formally approved under the National Land Transport Act 2014 and that are publicly tendered from 1 July 2019
(requirements will not be applied retrospectively to projects where construction stage funding was approved
and works were publicly tendered prior to 1 July 2019).

The Plans should set out the anticipated opportunities for Indigenous participation, including specific targets for
Indigenous employment and supplier-use in the delivery of projects (see Calculation of targets below). The Plan
should address how targets will be met, how opportunities will be communicated to the community, and how
the longer-term participation of Indigenous employees and suppliers will be facilitated (for example through
capability development).

It is expected that Funding Recipients will address these requirements through their procurement processes
and the approach to Indigenous participation will be negotiated with the successful contractor. Funding

NOTES ON ADMINISTRATION 34
360f 119



FOI 23-265 - Document 11

Recipients should look favourably on proposals that promote long-term and sustainable Indigenous
participation.

The Funding Recipient is required to submit the Indigenous Participation Plan at the time of providing their
Project Proposal Report to the Department of Infrastructure, Transport, Regional Development and
Communications (the Department), which occurs before formal approval of Australian Government funding and
States going out to tender. The Department will assess the Plan’s approach and rationale supporting proposed
targets, and may request further information from States or request changes to the Plan.

Funding Recipients will need to set out the Indigenous participation requirements in tender documents to
ensure industry has visibility prior to bidding for work. Should there be significant variation to the Plan (i.e.
contractors are unable to satisfactorily address the proposed requirements set out in the agreed Plan), the
Funding Recipient should consult with the most appropriate Indigenous representative body (for example a
Land Council), and come back to the Department for further discussions before awarding the contract.

Funding Recipients should engage early with the National Indigenous Australians Agency (NIAA) and/or the
Commonwealth Department of Education, Skills and Employment State Office Network on the development of
their Plans. In terms of geographic reach, on-the-ground presence and knowledge of local Indigenous
communities, the regional offices are well-placed to connect up appropriate supports with the specific needs of
individual projects and communities. This will also allow for early and ongoing identification of any gaps in
supply-side supports.

Agreement from the Australian Government minister with responsibility for transport infrastructure to the
proposed Plan is required prior to the construction contract being awarded. The Department may seek advice
from other relevant agencies in developing advice to the Minister.

A3.2 Alternatives to developing an Indigenous Participation Plan

Where a State has developed a detailed Indigenous participation plan for a specific project, the Department
may agree to accept the State’s plan in lieu of completing an Indigenous Participation Plan. This will be
considered on a case-by-case basis.

This option would only apply where the State’s plan has been developed for a specific project and provides
sufficient detail for the Department to assess whether it addresses all of the Framework’s requirements,
including with regard to setting targets, appropriate engagement with supply-side support providers and
Indigenous bodies, and public reporting on performance.

This approach is intended to recognise proactive efforts by States to develop ambitious and high-quality
Indigenous participation plans for transport projects and avoids duplication of effort.

States would need to seek prior agreement in writing from the Department to their proposed plan. In line with
the process for agreeing Indigenous Participation Plans, the agreement of Australian Government minister with
responsibility for transport infrastructure will also be required.

A3.3 Calculation of targets

Indigenous participation targets are to be set to reflect the local Indigenous working age population, with
Funding Recipients able to put forward adjustments to targets (up or down), supported by appropriate States,
taking into consideration:

e the local employment market, including in terms of the number of Indigenous businesses, workers and
job seekers, and their relevant skills, capabilities, qualifications and training; and

e the scale, value and location of the project, and skills and capabilities required to deliver the project;
and

e the availability of supply-side services to support the meeting of any targets and assist build the
capacity of Indigenous businesses and job-seekers to take up opportunities; and

e  existing State policies and/or targets.
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Information on the local Indigenous working age population can be sourced from the Australian Bureau of
Statistics or from an equivalent State agency. Any queries about setting the target can be referred to the
Department in the first instance.

Targets can be met through any combination of employment or supplier-use across the supply chain (see
below).

e Employment is to be measured in terms of number of full time equivalent (FTE) employees (not head
count).

e Supplier-use is to be measured by percentage of contract spend, calculated at the project level.

Funding Recipients need to specify the proportion of both employment and contract spend and how each
component contributes to the overall target.

Where a Funding Recipient proposes to use alternative metrics to calculate targets, including in accordance
with their own State policy, this should be explained in the Indigenous Participation Plan.

Indigenous participation targets can be met over the life of a project, allowing varying levels of labour
requirements and supplier engagement during the project phases. Once targets are agreed, any variation to
targets, for example where there is a change to the scope or size of the project which impacted on Indigenous
participation, requires agreement from the Australian Government.

As the capability of the Indigenous workforce and business sector increases, and additional supply-side
supports are implemented, and readiness of employers/contractors to take on increased numbers of
Indigenous workers and contracted suppliers increases, it is expected that there will be less need for flexibility
in setting targets.

Weighting of Indigenous participation requirements

State governments have primary responsibility for the procurement, construction and maintenance of
infrastructure projects, and the majority also have their own Indigenous employment and procurement
policies. The Framework is intended to provide States with flexibility to procure and manage projects effectively
and efficiently, while still meeting the Australian Government’s Indigenous participation requirements.

On this basis, the Framework does not specify a weighting for Indigenous participation requirements in the
award of contracts. Instead, the procuring agency has discretion to consider the strength of the Indigenous
participation component in the context of the proposal as a whole.

This will ensure that contractors’ capability to deliver the required works on a value for money basis remains
the prevailing consideration in the award of contracts by State governments.

A3.4  Verifying Indigeneity

To ensure that Indigenous Australians are the genuine beneficiaries of the Framework, it is important to apply a
consistent approach to verifying Indigeneity of businesses and individuals.

It is noted, however, that seeking to verify Indigeneity, particularly of individuals, poses both cultural and
administrative complexities. Some job-seekers and businesses may be unwilling to identify as Aboriginal or
Torres Strait Islander due to fear of discrimination. There are also cultural sensitivities associated with
governments or businesses asking Indigenous Australians to “prove” their cultural heritage, which may cause
offence and in some cases documentation may not be readily available.

In addition, it is important to be mindful of the administrative burden for contractors associated with additional
pre-employment checks.

To the extent possible, the proposed approach to verifying Indigeneity aligns with established and accepted
practices for other Indigenous policies and programs, such as the Australian Government’s Indigenous
Procurement Policy (IPP).
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For the purposes of verifying that a business meets the definition of an Indigenous business:
e Businesses listed on Supply Nation’s register are accepted as an Indigenous business.

e If a business says it is Indigenous owned and is not listed with Supply Nation, the procuring officer
must take steps to assure themselves that the business is 50 per cent or more Indigenous owned. This
may include:

- confirming registration with an Indigenous Chamber of Commerce,

- seeking a statutory declaration or a letter of Indigeneity from organisations such as Land
Councils.

e Indigenous corporations registered with Office of the Registrar of Indigenous Corporations ORIC
(www.oric.gov.au) are accepted as an Indigenous business.

The definition recognises that in some family businesses just one member of a couple is Indigenous and that
private sector investment is critical to support growth of the Indigenous business sector.

For the purposes of verifying that a business meets the IPP definition of an Incorporated Indigenous joint
venture:
e  They must be registered with Supply Nation; and

e Beat least 50% Indigenous owned and demonstrate 50% Indigenous involvement in the management
and control of the joint venture; and

e Additionally, as part of this registration they must have in place:
- Astrategy to build the capability of the Indigenous business partner.
- AnIndigenous workforce strategy.
Individuals would be required to sign and provide a statutory declaration or a confirmation of Indigeneity to the
employer stating they:
e are of Aboriginal descent and/or Torres Strait Islander descent
e identify as an Australian Aboriginal and/or Torres Strait Islander

e are accepted as an Australian Aboriginal and/or Torres Strait Islander in the community in which they
live or have lived

e are aware that under the Criminal Code Act 1995 (Cth) section 137.1 giving false or misleading
information is a serious offence

e have documentary evidence to support information contained in the declaration.
Funding Recipients should communicate these requirements to contractors as part of the tender process.

Where a Funding Recipient determines that this approach would not be suitable for their specific
circumstances, they may apply a different approach to verifying Indigeneity, provided they can satisfy
themselves as to the level of genuine Indigenous participation in projects.

A3.5 Sectors in the supply-chain

Indigenous participation requirements apply to roles and industry sectors that primarily relate to infrastructure
construction, in line with the Approved Purposes or eligible project costs stipulated in the National Land
Transport Act 2014 and in the Notes on Administration. These include roles spanning across the infrastructure
construction supply chain, for example but not limited to: project management; engineering design; financial
services; environmental management; traffic management; supply-chain logistics; construction of roads; rail;
bridges; tunnels and retaining walls.

However, where a Funding Recipient or contractor identifies an opportunity for Indigenous participation in an
aspect of project delivery not specifically identified in the Notes on Administration, this may be considered in
consultation between the Australian Government and the relevant State governments. This provides additional
flexibility to meet any Indigenous participation requirements.
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A3.6 ‘Local first’ principle

The Framework is intended to result in tangible economic and social benefits for local Indigenous people living
in surrounding communities. To this end, ideally employees and contractors required for a project should be
first sourced from within the local area, then from the wider region and beyond, where local capacity is unable
to meet the participation requirements.

There may be circumstances where this approach is neither practical nor cost-effective. Where necessary and
culturally appropriate, contractors may need to rely on Indigenous employees or contracted businesses from

outside of the local area. As such, ‘local first’ should be regarded as a principle, rather than a requirement of

the Framework.

Stakeholders have indicated that there are a range of definitions for ‘local’ being used in the different States
and that definitions are dependent on the context of specific projects. On this basis, local should be defined in
terms of what makes sense for a specific project, based on but not limited to:

e the needs and values of the local community, including Indigenous connections to land and country
e formal definitions such as local government area

e  proximity to the project.

A rationale for this definition and the approach forward should be clearly outlined in the Indigenous
Participation Plan.

A3.7 Supply-side supports

The success of the Framework will rely on the availability and whole-of-government coordination of appropriate
supply-side supports to ensure an increase in the demand for Indigenous labour and business services is able to
be met by a suitably skilled and qualified workforce.

This includes support for Indigenous job seekers and businesses for the training required to develop skills and
obtain necessary qualifications; support for contractors to identify suitably skilled Indigenous job-seekers and
businesses; and better visibility of project opportunities to enable time for upskilling. This is likely to involve a
range of agencies across levels of government.

Support for job-seekers

Employment service providers deliver support to Indigenous job seekers and work with employers to support
better opportunities for job seekers. Given adequate notice of industry projects, they can be leveraged to
encourage Indigenous job seekers to upskill and seek relevant employment or apprenticeship opportunities.

Complementing Indigenous specific supply-side measures are a range of mainstream employment services in
metropolitan and regional areas managed by the Commonwealth Department of Education, Skills and
Employment. These mainstream employment services include:

e Jobactive — the Australian Government’s mainstream employment program

e Transition to Work — which provides intensive pre-employment assistance to young people aged 15-21
who have disengaged from the labour market

e ParentsNext — which is an early intervention program for recipients of Parenting Payment who have
young children

e New Enterprise Incentive Scheme — which provide individualised support to help job seekers to start
their own business.

Indigenous specific services such as the Community Development Programme (CDP), Vocational Training and
Employment Centres (VTECs) will work with contractors to prepare job-seekers for specific roles. Flexible
employment grants such as Tailored Assistance Employment Grants (TAEG) are also available to directly support
hiring action by employers.
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Support for businesses

Existing and emerging Indigenous businesses will be supported by the Australian Government’s:

e Indigenous Entrepreneurs Fund which includes regionally-based business advisers and grants for
capacity-enhancing plant and equipment for start-ups and growing remote and regional Indigenous
businesses.

e Indigenous Business Sector Strategy which is rolling out Indigenous Business Hubs, an Indigenous
Entrepreneurs Capital Scheme and a doubling of the footprint of microfinance services.

The Australian Government will consider partnering with relevant agencies in the States to establish
employment/business project hubs in strategic locations, where there is a business case for this, in order to
help with the coordination of support services.

Staff in the NIAA regional offices will also play a role in tailoring supply-side strategies for projects as necessary.

This investment will be maximised if the Australian Government and the States work to coordinate and tailor
existing programs and services. Indigenous participation will be increased with sufficient lead-time for effective
planning and implementation of supply-side strategies.

A3.8 Project Thresholds and Exemptions

Thresholds
The Framework applies to projects receiving $7.5 million or more in Australian Government contributions.

For projects below the $7.5 million threshold, the State’s own Indigenous policy would apply. In some
circumstances, the Australian Government or the relevant State government may identify a project with strong
potential to support Indigenous participation but where the Australian Government contribution is below $7.5
million, such as locations where there is a high proportion of Indigenous people within the population. These
projects may also require an Indigenous Participation Plan.

The Framework will apply to all projects funded under the Australian Government’s Roads of Strategic
Importance in Northern Australia regardless of the level of Commonwealth contribution.

Exemptions

States may seek an exemption to Indigenous participation requirements for a specific project, where there is
strong justification. This will be considered by exception only and requires agreement from relevant Australian
Government ministers.

In addition, the IIP sub-programs are not covered by the Framework. Where relevant, the State’s own
Indigenous participation policy will apply. The sub-programs not covered by the Framework include:

e  Black Spot;

e Bridges Renewal Program;

e Heavy Vehicles Safety and Productivity Program; and

e  Roads to Recovery.
States, through both their relationships with local governments and their State procurement policies, are also

well-placed to play a role in encouraging and supporting greater Indigenous participation in the delivery of
smaller, local projects, including those funded under the Roads to Recovery and Black Spots sub-programs.

Projects funded under the Northern Australia Roads programs are covered by a separate Indigenous
participation framework created in response to the Government’s White Paper on Developing Northern
Australia.

A3.9 Accountability

The Australian Government recognises that the Framework’s success will depend on an effective partnership
between governments and industry.

NOTES ON ADMINISTRATION 39
410f 119



FOI 23-265 - Document 11

The Framework seeks to leverage the goodwill and effort demonstrated by State governments and industry.

That said, it is important that governments and industry are accountable for Indigenous participation
commitments — this has been particularly emphasised by Indigenous stakeholders.

States will be required to keep effective records on the performance of contractors against their Indigenous
participation requirements. States should review contractors’ performance (such as if they have met the target
or not, and whether appropriate justification was provided where targets were not met) at the completion of
each project and this would be a factor in consideration for the award of future contracts. This creates a clear
incentive for contractors to meet Indigenous performance requirements in order to win future contracts.

A3.10 Reporting
Business-as-Usual Reporting Requirements

For individual projects, States will be required to report on progress against Indigenous Participation Plans or
the State’s own Indigenous participation plan accepted by the Department (as outlined in A3.2) as part of the
standard monthly reporting process in place for the Infrastructure Investment Program. Where practical,
reporting should cover:

e the target (per the agreed Indigenous Participation Plan)

e  progress against the target, including (where available):
o number of FTE Indigenous employees
o value of contracts awarded to Indigenous businesses, as a proportion of the total project cost
o qualitative information, including the type of roles in the supply chain filled by Indigenous

persons and certifications obtained on the job.

Where actual participation rates vary from targets proposed in the Indigenous Participation Plan, States should
provide advice on the circumstances influencing the outcomes and should seek to address any issues in
consultation with the Australian Government.

Transparent reporting from the States throughout the project life cycle will also assist the Australian
Government to provide the necessary supply-side supports that are required to achieve the best Indigenous
participation outcomes over the long-term.

At the conclusion of a project, States will be required to provide information on Indigenous participation,
including performance against targets, as part of the Post Completion Report.

Public Reporting Requirements

COAG agreed at its February 2018 meeting to report publicly on Indigenous employment and business
outcomes annually. As part of this commitment, COAG has established online performance reporting for
priority policies of the Closing the Gap Refresh, at the national and State government level.

Under the Framework, States will be required to report publicly on Indigenous participation on a project-by-
project basis, including performance against targets for all projects.

At a minimum, performance against targets must be reported publicly upon completion of a project, however,
States may report more frequently at their discretion and in line with their own policies.

As a guide, public reporting on projects underway should include the participation target pursued for the
project, and indicate the progress to date (on-track, not on-track, or met, not met):

e  For projects that have met or exceeded participation targets, include key achievements, the factors
that contributed to meeting targets, and where appropriate share lessons learnt.

e  For projects where target are not on track or not met, a brief explanation of the reason(s) for targets
not being met should be included.

This is intended to promote accountability and transparency, as well as consistency in reporting across all States
so that progress can be measured effectively. It is up to States to decide the most appropriate channel to
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publicly report this information, for example on the relevant government agency website or through their
respective COAG channels, noting States may already have reporting requirements in place under their own
policies.

Prior to public reporting, States should undertake appropriate consultation with relevant Indigenous
stakeholders and contractors, and observe the principles of respect and appropriateness, and protect the
privacy of individuals.

As part of the Post Completion Report, Funding Recipients will be required to confirm that public reporting
requirements have been met.

A3.11 Review

An interim review of the Framework will be undertaken two years after the Framework’s implementation
(expected around mid 2021) and a substantive review at around the three-four year mark (expected to
commence late 2022), to feed into the development of the next NPA.

A review of the Framework will seek to test:

e ts effectiveness in delivering increased Indigenous employment and supplier-use, including whether
targets are becoming higher or more ambitious over time

e lessons learned and how these could be incorporated into future design of the Framework

e any implications in terms of project delivery including value for money

e adequacy and efficiency of monitoring, reporting and accountability arrangements

e adequacy of supply-side supports in place to enable governments and industry to meet targets.
The outcomes of the review should inform the need for any changes to the design and implementation of the
Framework, and the need for any additional or different supply-side supports. The review provides an

opportunity for evidence-based analysis of the Framework’s impacts in terms of benefits and any costs, drawing
on actual project data.

The review would be led by the Australian Government, in consultation with State governments, industry and
Indigenous representative bodies, such as the Prime Minister’s Indigenous Advisory Council, peak land councils
and Indigenous businesses and associations.
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Appendix B — Project Proposal Report Templates

Road Project Proposal REPOIt TEMPIATE ...covvviiiiiiiiiiiiieieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt ettt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eaaaaaaes 43
RET] M adde (=Tt l ad fo) o T 1= H aT=Y o Yo T Al [=Y 0 1 o) =1 (< 64
[[aYe [T ={=TaTe YV I =Y A (ol =1 1 To) o W ad =1 o NSRS 84

For road projects receiving a total Australian Government contribution up to $7.5 million, but with the total
estimated project cost not exceeding $25 million, a Small Road Project Proposal Report Template is available
for use at: https://investment.infrastructure.gov.au/about/resources/notes on administration.aspx
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Road Project Proposal Report Template

Project Name
Version Number
Date submitted to the Department

NOTES ON ADMINISTRATION 43
450f 119






FOI 23-265 - Document 11

A. PROJECT OVERVIEW

This section provides a snapshot of the Funding Recipient and the Project to be assessed.

Proponent Details
Al Entity Name

A2 Primary Project Contact
Name:

Phone:
Position:
Email:

Postal Address:

A3 Project Partners
Identify Federal, State or Local Government and/or private organisations making a financial or
in-kind contribution to the project. .

Project Details
A4 Project Name

Project name must be used consistently across future stages of PPRs.

A5 Project Identification (ID)
Project ID is assigned by the Department. Project ID must be used consistently across future stages of
PPRs.

A6 Project Summary
A project summary should be prepared with potential publication on the Department’s website in mind.
The summary should be a maximum of 500 words in length and should cover the Project’s:

Rationale/ objectives

Location

Key benefits

Progress to date

A7 Geographical Coordinates in Shapefile format if available (.shp, .shx, .dbf)

Provide geographical coordinates of the project location or area under investigation.
A8 Corridor and section of the National Land Transport Network (if applicable)
Provide details of the National Land Transport Network's coverage of the Project location.

The National Land Transport Network is defined by the National Land Transport Network
Determination 2020 ) available at: _https://www.legislation.gov.au/Details/F2020L00851 .

If not applicable mark n/a.
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A9 Related Projects
Provide details of other works, projects or studies related to the proposed Project (please provide web
links to studies where applicable).
This may include works related to the Project that are not considered ‘Approved Purposes’ under
Section 2.1.3.2 of the NLT Act.
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PROJECT SCOPE

This section details how the problem or opportunity was determined, why it is eligible for
Australian Government funding and the options the Funding Recipient explored before
settling on the final Scope.

B1

B2

B3

Problem/ Opportunity Statement

Please describe the problem/ opportunity as a succinct statement that clearly identifies the cause and
effect of the problem/ opportunity. Please include evidence and data to demonstrate the scale of the
problem/opportunity and the need for Australian Government funding to address the problem and/or
make the most of the opportunity.

Options Evaluation

What options are being considered/ were considered? These could include:
o  Mode;

o Alignment; and

e  Capital intensive vs non-capital intensive options.

Please also explain:

o  The process for evaluating the options and determining the preferred option

e  How public participation helped inform the preferred option?

e  Assumptions made in comparing options; and

e Ifthe project with the highest Net Present Value was not selected, explain why.

Note: If the Project is Scoping Phase and seeking funding for studies such as Options Analysis and/or
Business Case development that will include an investigation of the options this should be noted here
with further detail provided in B3.

Scope of Project Phase

Please outline, in as much detail as possible, and in conjunction with the advice on phases, outlined
below, the Scope of the project, Scope could include:

o  Type of work being undertaken (duplication, widening, sealing, intersection upgrades etc.);
Kilometres of road being upgraded/constructed;

Flood immunity standard for Project;

Type of report that will be produced — Study, Business Case, Options Analysis; and

How safe system principles will be built into the Project.

Note: Funding will only be approved for the scope related to the current Phase.
Description and specific information required for each specific phase:

Scoping Phase
Scoping Phase should outline at a high level the proposed Project that will be developed further as
part of this Phase.

Scoping Phase may outline in detail how a Business Case or Options Analysis will be undertaken,
including a high level explanation of the multiple options being considered (including a ‘do nothing’
option) to best address an identified problem/ opportunity.

Scoping Phase may also include requests for funding for land acquisition if the land acquired is
common to all options being considered as part of the analysis.

Development Phase
Development Phase should include detailed Project design works, including whether the Project is an
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upgrade or new, type of work being undertaken, kilometre length and axillary works to support the
Project (such as environmental measures). Development phase may also outline steps still needed in
order to get the Project ‘delivery ready’. This could include Environmental Impact Assessments, early
earth works, service relocations, geo-technical investigations or design refinement.

Delivery Phase

The Delivery Phase should build on the work undertaken in the Development Phase and outline a
detailed delivery plan for the construction of the Project.

Note: if the Project has a fixed cost but a variable scope (such as package of road sealing works along
a corridor) please outline the works is expected to be completed within the available funding envelope
as well as staged scope increases that could be done if savings are identified.

B4 Eligibility under the National Land Transport Act 2014
Please indicate which part(s) of the Act are relevant to Project approval.

National Land Transport Act 2014, Part 3, Section 10:
A project is eligible for approval as an Investment Project if the project is for one or more of the
following:
(a) the construction of an existing or proposed road that is in a State or Indian Ocean
Territory;
(b) the maintenance of an existing or proposed road that is included in the National Land
Transport Network;
(¢) the construction of an existing or proposed railway that is in a State or Indian Ocean
Territory;
(d) the maintenance of an existing or proposed railway that is included in the National Land
Transport Network;
(e) the construction of an inter-modal transfer facility in a State or Indian Ocean Territory;
(f) the acquisition or application of technology that will, or may, contribute to the efficiency,
security or safety of transport operations in a State or Indian Ocean Territory.

Note: The definition of ‘construction’ in Section 4 of the NLT Act covers some kinds of work on an
existing road, railway or inter-modal transfer facility (hence the references above to the construction of
an existing road, railway or inter-modal transfer facility).

NOTES ON ADMINISTRATION 48
500f 119



C.

FOI 23-265 - Document 11

PROJECT COSTS

This section considers project cost information and includes a summary of the data required in
the Project Cost Breakdown Template. This section is to be completed in as much detail as
possible based on current Project Phase.

C1

C2

C3

Complete the jurisdiction-specific Project Cost Breakdown Template provided by the
Department

A probabilistic Cost Estimation process must be used for Projects with a total anticipated Qutturn cost
(including contingency) exceeding 325 million unless otherwise approved by the Commonwealth.
Projects with a total anticipated Outturn cost (including contingency) under $25 million may use a
deterministic methodology, however the Department recommends using a probabilistic cost estimation
method where possible.

The Department provides detailed guidance on cost estimation on its webpage

Provide details of the Total Outturn Cost breakdown in the summary table.

Overall Project Cost Summary Table

P50 (Sm AUD) P90 (Sm AUD)
Base Cost Estimate 0 0
Contingency 0 0
Total Project Cost Estimate 0 0
Escalation 0 0
Total Qutturn Cost Estimate 0 0

Provide a budget profile for the Project in the table below

The budget profile should outline the Australian Government and State Government funding
contributions for the overall Project per financial year at P50 Qutturn Costs for projects that have an
Australian Government contribution of $25 million or more. For projects that have an Australian
Government contribution of under $25 million, P90 Qutturn Costs should be used.

If the Project has a fixed committed amount but a variable scope (such as a package of road sealing
works along a corridor) please provide a budget profile for the Project outlining the Australian and
State funding contributions for the overall Project per financial year at the total committed amount.
The totals and cash flows must be consistent with the populated Project Cost Breakdown template and
the NPA schedule.
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. FY FY FY FY FY Balance of
S8 (Sm) | ($m) (Sm) (Sm) (Sm) | Commitment**
E. (Sm)
5 g Australian 0 0 0 0 0 0
3= Government
g 38 contribution
g = State Government 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 g contribution
< Other contribution 0 0 0 0 0 0
(provide detail)
Total

*Payment of Australian Government funding will be subject to the achievement of Project milestones
determined in consultation between Commonwealth and state officials.

**To be made available on demonstrated need.

C4 What is the status of the State Government funding outlined above? Please state if the
funding is committed in budget forward estimates, announced but not yet committed

in the budget or yet to be confirmed.
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D. BENEFITS

This section provides the Department with qualitative and quantitative data that will be used
to highlight the benefits of the Project.

D1 Provide a summary of the expected positive outcomes and benefits to be delivered by

the Project:
This section should include a description of the benefits to be delivered by the Project. Examples may
include (but not limited to):

o the number of traffic lights avoided

e active transport measures

e additional kilometres of public space available for community amenity

e greater access for high productivity freight vehicles

e increased flood immunity

e enhanced regional connectivity

e social impacts, such as visual amenity/ liveability

e cultural impacts

e biodiversity and environmental measures

D2 Provide a summary of the BCR in the tables below:
The proponent should estimate Project benéfits in line with their own standard practice and aligned
with guidance provided by Infrastructure Australia and the Australian Transport Assessment and
Planning (ATAP) Guidelines. Standard definitions for Benefit Areas and examples of best practices for
the collection and collation of benefits data are available on the following websites:

o Infrastructure Australia: https://www.infrastructureaustralia. gov.au/submission-guidelines

(refer to the Assessment Framework-Section D- Technical Guidance)

o  ATAP Guidelines: https://atap.gov.au/

Where practicable, provide details of the Benefit Cost Ratio (BCR) using a discount rate of 4per cent
and 7 per cent for both the P90 and P50 cost of the Project. If not practicable to do so, please
outline reasons why.

Definitions of the benefit categories:

o Standard benefits: core transport economic benefits are per the ATAP guidelines and set out in
the table at D4.

e  Wider Economic Benefits (WEBS): includes agglomeration benefits as specified in ATAP
guidelines

e  Other benefit categories: transport economics is evolving to include new benefit areas that
may not yet be formally recognised in transport guidelines such as city shaping benefits.
Where analysis on broader benefit categories has been undertaken please include it as a
separate line item in the table below.
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4% Discount rate

7% Discount rate

Present Value
Cost

Standard benefits

Present Value Standard benefits with WEBS

Benefits Standard benefits with WEBS
and other benefit categories
Standard benefits

Benefit Cost Standard benefits with WEBS

Ratio Standard benefits with WEBS

and other benefit categories

Summary Measures (P90)

4% Discount rate

7% Discount rate

Present Value
Cost

Standard benefits

Present Value Standard benefits with WEBS

Benefits Standard benefits with WEBS
and other benefit categories

Benefit Cost Standard benefits

Ratio Standard benefits with WEBS

Standard benefits with WEBS
and other benefit categories

D3 Please complete the Benefit Indicators table below.

The Department will undertake a detailed review of the benefits used to calculate the Project BCR. All
costs and benefits contained within the benefits indicator table sheet should be in the metrics listed
below. Unless otherwise specified indicators are to be annual averages over the appraisal period.

Fill in as many data fields as possible.

Benefits indicator table

Benefit Area

Benefit indicator and units

Value

per annum)

Public Transport reliability (standard deviation hours

Reliability/ amenity

annum)

Journey time reliability (standard deviation hours per

Number of avoided crashes (average annual)

Safety Number of avoided serious injuries (average annual)

Number of avoided fatalities (average annual)

Active transport (kilometres)

Additional kilometres of walk and cycle paths

benefits

Increased walking and cycling activity (number of
trips by mode and average kilometres per annum)
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Commuter time savings
(daily commute to
work)

Minutes saved by commuters on their daily commute
to work based on a sample of commutes along the
relevant corridor (average annual)

Average number of commuter trip (annual)

Leisure time savings

Average time savings for people on trips for leisure
activities (minutes)

Average number of leisure trips (annual)

Freight / business time
savings

Average time savings for business trips, including
freight (minutes)

Average number of business and freight trips (annual)

Vehicle Operating
Costs

Average change in vehicle operating costs for freight
and business operators (annual)

Average change in vehicle operating costs for
passengers (annual)

Freight and Business
Productivity

Average annual value of the sum of reduced vehicle
operating costs, time savings and travel time reliability
for freight and business users

Construction Jobs

Number of jobs supported by the Project during the
construction phase of the Project (average per annum
FTE)

Operations Jobs

Number of jobs supported by the Project during the
operational phase of the Project (average per annum
FTE)
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D5 Please complete the traffic and use assumptions table below. For public transport

projects please complete the table by mode (new public transport investment and
mode of transport from which traffic will be induced from).
Transport model data to be provided to the extent possible in accordance with the table below. If peak
travel time data is available please provide. Data is to be provided for passenger trip numbers and

Vehicle Kilometres Travelled (VKT).

Description of Traffic and use assumptions rows

o  Users of existing infrastructure in Base Case: refers to use of the infrastructure in the future under

a “no project” scenario — that is, if the Project did not go ahead.

e  User of new upgraded infrastructure in Project Case: refers to the use of the new or upgraded

infrastructure under the Project scenario — that is if the Project goes ahead.

o  Users diverted from the rest of the road network: refers to the users of the new/upgraded

infrastructure that otherwise would have used alternative roads
o  Users diverted from other transport modes: refers to the users of the new/upgraded infrastructure

that otherwise would have used alternative modes of transport
e Generated trips: refers to induced demand — i.e. trips that were non-existent anywhere on the

network without the project. Include only those generated trips that will utilise the project.

Lo i ool (L 10 years following 30 years following
Project - . : .
. Project completion | Project completion
completion
Passenger (trips
Users of / VI.(T) -
A" Business (trips /
existing
. VKT)
infrastructure ;
. Freight and
in Base Case . .
business (trips /
VKT)
Passenger (trips
User of new/ / VKT)
upgraded Business (trips /
infrastructure | VKT)
in Project Freight and
Case business (trips /
VKT)
Passenger (trips
Users / VKT)
diverted from | Business (trips /
the rest of the | VKT)
highway Freight and
network business (trips /
VKT)
Users Passenger (trips
. / VKT)
diverted from . -
Business (trips /
other VKT)
transport -
Freight and
modes (where . .
ossible). business (trips /
P VKT)
Passenger (trips
Generated / VKT)
trips Business (trips /
VKT)
Freight and
business (trips /
VKT)
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FINANCING AND PROCUREMENT

This section is to provide the Department with a narrative as to why a particular financing
and/or procurement method was chosen and details on how that procurement method will be
managed.

El

E2

E3

If the total estimated project cost greater than $50 million, please outline the process
for considering alternative funding and/or financing opportunities and the outcome of

the considerations.
If NO - go to E2

Proponents must provide details of how this exploration was carried out and whether there is scope for

private sector financing or alternative funding. Consideration should be given to the following:

What will be covered? Core versus non-core services;

The capacity and appetite of the market to be able to deliver this kind of Project;
Public interest;

Long term sustainability;

Value for money;

Value capture opportunities; and

Opportunities for private sector contributions

Please attach a copy of the formal assessment.

If the estimated Project cost is less than $50 million was private funding or financing
investigated proportional to the size of the project. If so, please provide a summary of
how it has been considered and the outcome of the considerations?

Noting that the Project is less than $50 million are there are Project characteristics that warrant
consideration of private sector funding or financings. For example, does the Project significantly
benefit specific private sector operators?

What is the preferred procurement method for the Project? Please outline the specific
details of the contracting method (design and construct for example) and why it was
chosen. If over $50 million, how was a Public Private Partnership considered in line
with the National Public Private Partnership Guidelines?

Funding recipients should consider the different procurement methods available to deliver the Project
including, traditional contracting, alliance contracting and Public Private Partnerships. For major
projects, this should take the form of robust, careful procurement options analysis. The Australian

Transport Assessment Planning Guidelines provide a comprehensive framework to support decision
making for transport infrastructure and serves as a national standard. It can be found at

https://atap.gov.au/.

If a Public-Private Partnership is proposed, provide details of the structure and funding method (user
charges, availability payments) proposed. The Department provides guidelines on and instruction on
Pubhc Prtvate Partnerships m its National PPP Guzdelmes which can be found at

Note: The preferred procurement method may only be a prospective preference at this stage.
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E4 Is a tender exemption being sought?
A tender exemption excuses the funding recipient from having to take the Project to market for delivery.
For a project to be eligible for a tender exemption it must meet at least one of the requirements under
Section 24(1) (c)i to vi of the NLT Act.

If eligible a tender request must include the following detail:
e Category under which the exemption is being sought — Section 24(1) (c)i to vi of the NLT Act;
How the proposed procurement strategy will ensure value for money;
Scope of work for which the exemption is being sought;
Value of the works;
Intended entity to undertake the work;
Supporting reasons for the exemption.

ES5 Project Timeline
Include the expected timing of high-level Project activities, including those on the critical path, and
estimated completion date of the Project (i.e. the complete Project for an investigative study would
typically be the study itself).

Please list and describe the assumptions underpinning the schedule set out above, including if the
Project is dependent on the delivery of other projects, planning approvals or environmental studies by
other bodies or agencies.

Activity Timeline

NOTES ON ADMINISTRATION 57
5%f 119



F.

FOI 23-265 - Document 11

RISK AND SUSTAINABILITY

This section outlines major risks associated with the Project, where the responsibility for
managing these risks lies, and how sustainability can be built into the Project to increase its
overall benefit.

F1

F2

F3

Identify the major risks, and proposed mitigation strategies to successfully deliver this
Project.

Proponents should explain the risk identification process, including the use of risk workshops, to be
undertaken as part of the Project. Please also list the most significant risks to successful delivery and
provide details of the mitigation strategies proposed, including requesting increased Australian
Government involvement where appropriate.

This information may be supported by an attached summarised risk register table.

Identify the major dis-benefits of the projects and how the Project may impact the

community and environment.

Proponents should explain major dis-benefits and negative externalities associated with the Project
including social, cultural and environmental impacts. This should include information such as the
number and type of property resumptions, any increase to noise or pollution levels, a-flux issues and/
or environmental considerations such as clearing and habitat removal should be included.

Detail any sustainability strategies that will be adopted
Environmentally sustainable strategies could include the reuse of dug out dirt as prefill, innovative
tarmac solutions, solar panelling for ITS equipment etc.

Animal protection policies could include animal underpasses, overhead ‘bridges’ and the
redevelopment of animal habitat in the area.
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G. STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

This section outlines the steps the Funding Recipient will take to ensure that the public and
other relevant stakeholders are engaged and actively managed throughout the Project.

G1 Provide details on how public and stakeholder participation will be facilitated during
this phase, and the Project overall.
Factors that should be considered when determining the appropriate level of public and stakeholder
participation may include:
e Potential for conflict over the Project;
e Potential for major social, environmental or economic impacts; and
e  Relevant legislative requirements.

G2 Please complete the stakeholder consultation table below.

Provide information on completed or planned consultations including the type of consultation the
relevant stakeholders involved as well as a brief description of the issues raised and a plan to manage
those issues.

Date Type of Consultation (stakeholders Issues raised Management plan
invited i.e. industry, community)

G3 Provide a comprehensive public recognition signage plan
The plan should set out the proposed signage for the Project in line with the Signage Guidelines
avatlable from the Department s website at
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H. COMPLIANCE

This section provides the Department assurance that the Funding Recipient understands their
responsibilities with regard to both State and Commonwealth legislation and regulation and
has taken steps to actively comply.

H1

H3

H4

H5

List Commonwealth or State legislation triggered by the Project.

As an example, legislation that may be triggered by the Project could include the Commonwealth’s
Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999 or the Queensland Government’s
Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Act 2003 and the Torres Strait Islander Cultural Heritage Act 2003.

For the Scoping Phase, it is necessary only to highlight foreseen legislation issues.

Does the Building Code 2016 apply to this Project? If so, please confirm compliance.
YES/NO

YES — please confirm compliance.
NO - please explain why.

See Appendix A2 for more information.

Does the Australian Government Building and Construction WHS Accreditation
Scheme apply to this Project? If so, please confirm compliance.
YES/NO

YES — please confirm compliance.
NO - please explain why.

See Appendix A2 for more information.

If the Project has an Australian Government funding contribution of equal to or
greater than $7.5 million, has an Indigenous Participation Plan been attached?

YES/NO

YES — plans will assessed by the Department for compliance.
NO — please explain why.

See Appendix A3 for more information.
See Appendix B3 for the Indigenous Participation Plan Template

If the Project is more than $20 million, a Local Industry Participation Plan or an
Australian Industry Participation Plan must be provided to the Department.

YES/NO
YES — please send, once complete, for forwarding to the Commonwealth Department of Industry,

Science, Energy and Resources (aip@industry.gov.au) for compliance.

Note: final milestones will not be paid out for a Project until a LIPP is provided.

See Section 2.3 of the Notes on Administration for more information.
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H6 Is the proposed Australian Government contribution $250 million or greater. If yes,
has the Business Case been submitted to Infrastructure Australia for review?
YES/NO

YES — provide date and status of IA assessment (if known).
NO — please provide advice on expected timing of submission to IA.

See Section 2.2 of the Notes on Administration for more information.

I.  SIGN OFF

The Project should be signed and dated by the appropriate officer, as per each jurisdiction’s in-house
approval process.

/120
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J.  ATTACHMENTS

This section is where information that was used to help complete the PPR will be attached as
Appendices.

If a Business Case (including strategic or preliminary Business Cases) or Options Analysis
was undertaken on the Project the Department requires a copy be attached to the PPR.
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J1  Supporting Information
Supporting information should only include documents that have been referred to in the body of the
PPR, for example:

GIS data / shape files;

Photographs;

Locality and/or topographical plans and maps;

Demand forecasts;

Safety audits;

Historical crash statistics;

Engineering plans;

Environmental, cultural and social studies;

Risk assessment reports;

Other descriptive information.

Documents in relation to cost estimates that must be provided include:

e  Completed Project Cost Breakdown spreadsheet;

e  Cost Estimate Report explaining how the cost estimate was developed, which must include:
background and context for the Project;
outline scope for the Project;
details of the risk workshop/s undertaken, and subject matter experts consulted;
copy of the Risk Register underpinning the contingency included in the Project
costings (where a probabilistic cost estimation process has been used this will be
the source of much of the Cost Estimation Tool risk input data);
details of the person/firm preparing the cost estimate; and
evidence that Project costs have been comprehensively reviewed and authorised in
accordance with the Proponent’s published guidelines.

0 0 O O

o O

For projects equal to or over 825 million in total Outturn Cost or where a probabilistic cost estimation
process has been used, the following information must be provided:

o Cost Estimation Tool (for example, @RISK and Crystal Ball) Output Report files, which
must at a minimum include charts showing the non-Outturned Project Cost probability
distribution and associated cumulative probability distribution ('S’ Curve), Simulation
Summary Details (that is, sampling type, number of iterations, Random Number Generator
a Tornado diagram and accompanying Regression and Rank Information Table, and
Summary Statistics for the Project Cost, including the Project cost estimate (unescalated)
at 5 per cent intervals from 5 per cent to 95 per cent confidence).

e  Cost Estimation Tool input data files in spreadsheet format that includes sufficient
information to permit the Department or its contractors to re-run the probabilistic cost
estimation simulation.

e  Bibliography of all documents consulted by the cost estimator in preparing the cost
estimate (including version number/date, proper title, document format and author). Note:
It is a requirement that the Proponent maintains a digital library of all documents
consulted in preparing the cost estimate.

Projects with cost estimates prepared using a deterministic estimation process must provide, when
requested.:
o  Underpinning documentation explaining the derivation of the Base Estimate and the
approximate P50 and P90 values (both Non-Outturned and Qutturned).
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Rail Project Proposal Report Template

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
in-kind contribution.

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
Provide details of the National Land Transport Network’s coverage of the Project location.

The National Land Transport Network is defined by the National Land Transport Network
Determination 2020 ) available at: _https://www.legislation.gov.au/Details/F2020L0085] .

If not applicable mark n/a.
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A9 Related Projects
Provide details of other works, Projects or studies related to the proposed Project (please provide web
links to studies where applicable).
This may include works related to the Project that are not considered ‘Approved Purposes’under
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
e Mode;

e Alignment; and

e Capital intensive vs non-capital intensive options.

Please also explain:

e The process for evaluating the options and determining the preferred option

e  How public participation helped inform the preferred option?

e Assumptions made in comparing options; and

o Ifthe project with the highest Net Present Value was not selected, explain why.

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

o  Type of work being undertaken (extensions, level crossing removals, station upgrades etc.);

e  Kilometres of rail being upgraded/constructed;

e Flood immunity standard for Project;

o Type of report that will be produced — Study, Business Case, Options Analysis; and

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

Note: if the Project has a fixed cost but a variable scope (such as package of level crossing removals)
please outline the works is expected to be completed within the available funding envelope as well as
staged scope increases that could be done if savings are identified.

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
(c) the construction of an existing or proposed railway that is in a State or Indian Ocean
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

Note: The definition of construction in Section 4 of the NLT Act covers some kinds of work on an
existing road, railway or inter-modal transfer facility (hence the references above to the construction of
an existing road, railway or inter-modal transfer facility).

B5 Supply chain analysis (freight rail only)
Provide a summary of the potential supply chain impacts, including consideration of how the Project
may impact:
e the volume and value of current and future freight demand by commodity type;

e community and industry opportunities and any anticipated structural changes;
e industry competitiveness; and
e links to intermodal hubs and ports; and
® alignment with national key freight routes.
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PROJECT COSTS

This section considers project cost information and includes a summary of the data required
in the Project Cost Breakdown Template. This section should be completed in as much detail
as possible based on current Project Phase.

C1

Complete the jurisdiction-specific Project Cost Breakdown Template provided by the

Department
A probabilistic Cost Estimation process must be used for Projects with a total anticipated Outturn cost

(including contingency) exceeding $25 million unless otherwise approved by the Commonwealth.
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
http://investment.infrastructure.gov.au/about/funding and_finance/cost_estimation_ guidance.aspx.

C2 Provide details of the Total Outturn Cost breakdown in the summary table.

Overall Project Cost Summary Table

P50 (Sm AUD) P90 (Sm AUD)
Base Cost Estimate 0 0
Contingency 0 0
Total Project Cost Estimate 0 0
Escalation 0 0
Total Outturn Cost Estimate 0 0

C3 Provide a budget profile for the Project in the table below.

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

The totals and cash flows should be consistent with the populated Project Cost Breakdown template
and the NPA schedule.
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FY FY FY FY FY Balance of
5% Gm) | Gm) | Sm) | (Sm) | (Sm) | Commitment**
g ($m)
g 2 Australian 0 0 0 0 0 0
3 § Government
S 2 contribution
g = State Government 0 0 0 0 0 0
o é contribution
< Other contribution 0 0 0 0 0 0
(provide detail)
Total

*Payment of Australian Government funding will be subject to the achievement of project milestones
determined in consultation between Commonwealth and state / territory officials.

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

C5 Provide details of the escalation rate(s) used in the table below:

Please provide details of the escalation rate(s) used and the source and justification for those rates.

FY

FY

FY

FY

FY

Escalation Rate (%)
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BENEFITS

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
e improved on time running
e reductions to over-crowding
e enhanced regional connectivity
e social impacts, such as visual amenity/ liveability
e increased flood immunity
e cultural impacts
o Biodiversity and environmental measures
D2 Provide a summary of the BCR in the tables below:
The Proponent should estimate Project benefits in line with their own standard practice and aligned
with guidance provided by Infrastructure Australia and the Australian Transport Assessment and
Planning (ATAP) Guidelines. Standard definitions for Benefit Areas and examples of best practices for
the collection and collation of benefits data are available on the following websites:
o Infrastructure Australia: hitps://www.infrastructurequstralia gov.au/submission-guidelines
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
o  Standard benefits: core transport economic benefits are per the ATAP guidelines and set out in
the table at D4.
o  Wider Economic Benefits (WEBS): includes agglomeration benefits as specified in ATAP
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
Benefits

Standard benefits

Standard benefits with
WEBS

Standard benefits with
WEBS and other benefit
categories

Benefit Cost
Ratio

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

Reliability / amenity

Crowding penalty (average hours per annum)

Public Transport reliability (standard deviation hours
per annum)

Journey time reliability (standard deviation hours per
annum)

Mode shift

Reduced car use (annual average trips and VKT)

Safety on roads due to
mode shift

Number of avoided crashes (average annual)

Number of avoided serious injuries (average annual)

Number of avoided fatalities (average annual)

Active transport
benefits

Additional kilometres of walk and cycle paths
(kilometres)

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

Average number of commuter trips (annual)

Freight time savings

Average time savings freight (minutes)

Freight and Business
Productivity

Average annual value of the sum of reduced vehicle
operating costs, time savings and travel time reliability
for freight and business users

Frequency of service

Peak and off-peak service frequency

Public Transport Number of additional dwellings within 400 metres of
Access public transport stations/stops

Number of jobs supported by the Project during the
Construction Jobs construction phase of the Project (average per annum

FTE)

Number of jobs supported by the Project during the
Operations Jobs operational phase of the Project (average per annum

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
o Users of existing infrastructure in Base Case: refers to use of the infrastructure in the future under

a “no project” scenario — that is, if the Project did not go ahead.

o  User of new upgraded infrastructure in Project Case: refers to the use of the new or upgraded

infrastructure under the Project scenario — that is if the Project goes ahead.

o Users diverted from the road network: refers to the users of the new/upgraded infrastructure that
otherwise would have used alternative roads

o Users diverted from other transport modes: refers to the users of the new/upgraded infrastructure
that otherwise would have used alternative modes of transport

o  Generated trips: refers to induced demand — i.e. trips that were non-existent anywhere on the
network without the project. Include only those generated trips that will utilise the project.

First year after
Project
completion

10 years following
Project completion

30 years following
Project completion

Users of
existing
infrastructure
in Base Case

Passenger (trips
/VKT)

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
. /VKT)
diverted from - -
Business (trips /
other
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

This section is to provide the Department with a narrative as to why a particular financing and/or
procurement method was chosen and details on how that procurement method will be managed.

El

E2

E3

If the total estimated project cost greater than $50 million, please outline the process
for considering alternative funding and / or financing opportunities and the outcome

of the considerations.
If NO —go to E2

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
Publzc Prtvate Partnershtps in its National PPP Guzdelmes which can be found at

Note: The preferred procurement method may only be a prospective preference at this stage.
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E5

Is a tender exemption being sought?

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

o Category under which the exemption is being sought — Section 24(1) (c)i to vi of the NLT Act;
How the proposed procurement strategy will ensure value for money;
Scope of work for which the exemption is being sought;

Value of the works;

Project Timeline

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

Activity

Timeline
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F.

This section outlines major risks associated with the Project, where the responsibility for managing
these risks lies, and how sustainability can be built into the Project to increase its overall benefit.

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
including social, cultural and environmental impacts. This should include information such as property
resumptions, any increase to noise or pollution levels, a-flux issues resulting from flood immunity and/
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
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

This section outlines the steps the Funding Recipient will take to ensure that the public and other
relevant stakeholders are engaged and actively managed throughout the Project.

Gl

G2

G3

Provide details on how public and stakeholder participation will be facilitated during
this phase, and the Project overall.
Factors that should be considered when determining the appropriate level of public and stakeholder
participation may include:

e  Potential for conflict over the Project;

e Potential for major social, environmental or economic impacts; and

e Relevant legislative requirements.

Please complete the stakeholder consultation table below.

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

Provide a comprehensive public recognition signage plan
The plan should set out the proposed signage for the Project in line with the Signage Guidelines
avallable from the Department s website at
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H. COMPLIANCE

This section provides the Department assurance that the Funding Recipient understands their

responsibilities with regard to both State and Commonwealth legislation and regulation and has taken

steps to actively comply.

H1 List Commonwealth or State legislation triggered by the Project.
As an example, legislation that may be triggered by the Project could include the Commonwealth’s
Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999 or the Queensland Government’s
Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Act 2003 and the Torres Strait Islander Cultural Heritage Act 2003.

For the Identification Phase, it is necessary only to highlight foreseen legislation issues.

H2 Does the Building Code 2016 apply to this Project? If so, please confirm compliance.
YES/NO

YES — please confirm compliance.
NO — please explain why.

See Appendix A2 for more information.

H3 Does the Australian Government Building and Construction WHS Accreditation
Scheme apply to this Project? If so, please confirm compliance.
YES/ NO

YES — please confirm compliance.
NO - please explain why.

See Appendix A2 for more information.

H4 If the Project has an Australian Government funding contribution of equal to or
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
See Appendix B3 for the Indigenous Participation Plan Template.

HS5 If the Project is more than $20 million, a Local Industry Participation Plan or an
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
NO - please provide advice on expected timing of submission to IA.

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
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J. ATTACHMENTS

This section is where information that was used to help complete the PPR will be attached as
Appendices.

If a Business Case (including strategic or preliminary Business Cases) or Options Analysis was
undertaken on the Project the Department requires a copy be attached to the PPR.

J1  Supporting Information
Supporting information should only include documents that have been referred to in the body of the
PPR, for example:

GIS data;

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

o  Cost Estimate Report explaining how the cost estimate was developed, which must include:
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

O 0 OO0

o O

For projects equal to or over $25 million in total Outturn Cost or where a probabilistic cost estimation
process has been used, the following information must be provided:

o Cost Estimation Tool (for example, @RISK and Crystal Ball) Output Report files, which
must at a minimum include charts showing the non-Outturned Project Cost probability
distribution and associated cumulative probability distribution (‘S’ Curve), Simulation
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

o  Cost Estimation Tool input data files in spreadsheet format that includes sufficient
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
requested:
e  Underpinning documentation explaining the derivation of the Base Estimate and the
approximate P50 and P90 values (both Non-Outturned and Outturned).
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Indigenous Participation Plan

PROJECT NAME:
PROJECT NUMBER:
FUNDING RECIPIENT:

This Plan will be submitted to the Australian Government prior to commencing the formal tender process.

Bef";:;;’: Scope for Indigenous participation (mandatory)
This Plan should | The Australian Government requires Funding Recipients to identify a range of potential
be developed in | opportunities to Indigenous job-seekers and businesses across the infrastructure
;Z"ggﬁf’;’;‘::g construction supply chain.
underthe | 1. Provide an overview of the project phases and project delivery roles (i.e. primary
Indigenous o sReas . . . o o . . .
Employment and role's, skills and capabilities) targeting Indigenous Participation in the delivery of this
Supplier-Use project.
Infrastructure
F K (th . C . , .
f:,::",,,{, ; [E.g. Indigenous participation will target the delivery of earthworks to prepare the
Appendix A3. project site for the development of an intersection between the Bruce Highway
and the Bajool Port Alma Road. The primary roles targeting Indigenous
participation to deliver this phase include the servicing and operation of heavy
machinery and entry-level traffic management positions to divert traffic flows
from the project site. These roles require on the job work experience and license
to operate and/or service heavy machinery and equipment.]
:"’l"n“c”zg“ Setting an Indigenous participation target (mandatory)

Fu,,d,-,,g' In order to have funding formally approved and released, the Australian Government
Recipients are | requires that an Indigenous participation target is set with reference to the local
e"w”mgi‘;‘: Indigenous working age population figure for the relevant region/project locality, and

employmentand | consistent with the ‘local first principle’ of the Framework.

business

opportunities to
the Indigenous
Australians local
to the area.

In determining
‘local’ and
‘locality’
Funding
Recipients may
consider
Indigenous
communities’
connection to
land and
country, formal
local
government
definitions and
proximity to the
project.

Determining the
‘Local
Indigenous
working age
population’

NOTES ON ADMINISTRATION

2. What is the definition of ‘local’ for this project phase?

3. Using the ABS Census data (or equivalent), determine the local Indigenous working
age population figure for the project, and set the Project’s Indigenous participation
target (double click on the excel table to open, click anywhere on document to exit)
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Once ‘local’ has
been defined for
the project, the
local Indigenous
working age
population is the
number of
Indigenous
peoples aged
between 15-64
years of age as
found by the
Australian
Bureau of
Statistics (ABS)
most recent
Census data
available - look
for Indigenous
and Torres Strait
Islander Peoples’
community
profiles- refer to
Iable 103
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What is the local Indigenous working age
population figure in the locality? 0

What is the total working age population
(non-Indigenous and Indigenous) figure
in the locality? 0

The Participation Target the Project
will aspire to achieve is:

#DIV/0!

Equation 1 : “Defined Local Indigenous Working Age Population figure” is divided by the
“Defined Total Local Working Age Population figure” and is then multiplied by 100 to express it
as a percentage.

If using an alternative data source, please provide the relevant links or evidence for
verification purposes.

Adjusting Participation Targets (required if not adopting the target calculated at
Question 3, otherwise go to Question 6).

Targets can be adjusted up or down depending on a range of factors, for consideration
by the Department of Infrastructure, Transport, Regional Development and
Communications. Where the proposed target is significantly lower than the local
Indigenous working age population, Funding Recipients must complete this section, and
demonstrate through market sounding, research and consultation with relevant
government agencies, including written advice from the Regional Network of the
National Indigenous Australians Agency, that a lower target is required.

4. What is the proposed adjusted participation target?

5. Explain the rationale for the adjustment and variations on the Indigenous
participation target (calculated at Question 3) with reference to at least one of the
factors listed below (as applicable):

e the local employment market, including in terms of the number of
Indigenous businesses, workers and job seekers, and their relevant
skills, capabilities, qualifications and training;

e the scale, value and location of the project, and skills and capabilities
required to deliver the project;

e the availability of supply-side services to support the meeting of any
targets and assist in building the capacity of Indigenous businesses and
job-seekers to take up opportunities; or

e existing state and territory policies and/or targets.

[E.g. the Indigenous working age population in the defined local area is 12 per
cent. The proposed project is situated in a semi-remote area and the majority of
work requires complex and diverse skillsets and tertiary project management
qualifications. The skills are not widely available in the local area and supply-side
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supports are limited. It is estimated that an Indigenous participation target of 7
per cent, consisting of 3 per cent FTE positions and 4 per cent contract value for
Indigenous businesses would be achievable in this delivery context.

Provide the Indigenous participation target for the life of the project® and include a
breakdown of the employment? and supplier-use® component towards the target®.

[E.g. a participation target of 10 per cent comprises 3 per cent FTE positions and 7
per cent of total contract value for Indigenous businesses].

Employment [Example FTE hours or positions that is anticipated or planned as a
3%] proportion of the total FTE hours or positions estimated

i.e. 1.5 FTE of an estimated total 50 FTE positions

Supplier-use [Example For supplier-use % of total contract value that is anticipated
7%]) or planned*to be awarded to Indigenous Businesses

i.e. $840,000 of 512million total project/contract value

*note this can be adjusted (up or down) to reflect market
soundings before contracts are awarded.

Total = [example
10%])

(The
Participation
target)

Note: The target can be met through an employment component, a supplier-
use component or a combination of both. There is no specified minimum for
either of these components. Where a Funding Recipient proposes to use
alternative metrics to calculate targets, including in accordance with their own
State policy, this should be explained in the Indigenous Participation Plan.

Explain how the community will be made aware of opportunities under this project,
and outline prospects for long-term capability development.

1The ‘life of the project’ timeframe should correspond with the project phases identified at Question 1.
2The number of full-time employee (FTE) positions or equivalent hours undertaken by Indigenous employees.
3 Supplier-use is the percentage of the total contract value to be awarded to Indigenous businesses.
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[E.g. the Funding Recipient will advertise opportunities in the local media and
look at opportunities for the Indigenous workforce/businesses to undertake
commercial scaffolding, painting and finishing].

Developing a ‘supply-side’ strategy
The success of Indigenous
Participation Plans may rely on the
availability and whole-of-
government coordination of
appropriate supply-side supports to
ensure an increase in the demand
for Indigenous labour and business
services is able to be met by a
suitably skilled and qualified
workforce.

The Australian Government will
consider partnering with relevant
agencies in the jurisdictions to
establish employment/business
project hubs in strategic locations,
where there is a business case for
this, in order to help with the
coordination of support services.

Contact your local National
Indigenous Australians Agency
https://www. niaa.gov.au/contact-
us/regional-network-addresses for
help with tailoring a supply-side
strategy for the project.

Supply side supports and engagement with Indigenous Stakeholders

' (mandatory)
Achievement against Indigenous participation targets may rely on the
availability of appropriate supply-side supports. Funding Recipients should
identify the supply-side supports required to meet the project’s Indigenous
participation requirements and engage early with government agencies.

Funding Recipients should consult a representative Indigenous body, for
example, an Indigenous land council or an Indigenous advisory council to
address any identified barriers to supply-side supports.

8. Outline the supply-side supports required to engage Indigenous job-
seekers and businesses in the project locality.

[E.g. Indigenous Business Australia and Supply Nation portals were
used to identify Indigenous businesses that could undertake earthworks
to prepare the site for construction. The local job service provider
(include name) was contacted to identify Indigenous job-seekers willing
to apply for entry-level traffic management roles].

9. Detail any engagement to date (or expected in future) with the National
Indigenous Australians Agency, including its Regional Network Offices,’
and the Commonwealth Department of Education, Skills and
Employment®

10. Detail any engagement to date (or expected in future) with other
government (e.g. state/territory agencies/service providers) or non-
government services (e.g. employment or training providers, and
representative Indigenous bodies, including local land councils).

| Risks and mitigation strategies |

11. List the key risks and mitigation strategies that may affect the
achievement of the Indigenous participation target.

Risk 1 Mitigation or treatment

Risk 2 Mitigation or treatment

5 The National Indigenous Australians Agency regional networks and contact details are available at: https://www.niaa.gov.au/who-we-

are/contact-us

6 The Commonwealth Department of Education, Skills and Employment have a range of employment programs to assist job-seekers

and businesses: https://www.emplovment.gov.au/

NOTES ON ADMINISTRATION
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Risk 3

Mitigation or treatment
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Appendix C — Project Reporting Guidance

Appendix C1 Monthly Progress Report

The Monthly Progress Report is the key reporting mechanism for the progress of funded Projects. It is also the
mechanism for submitting Claims for Payment of Milestones.

The Funding Recipient should use the Department’s template when generating the Monthly Progress Report. The
template will be available to be generated between the 1st and 13th of each month, and must be completed and
submitted into IMS by the 13th of each month, or when requested by the Department.
The Monthly Progress Report requires the following information to be entered into IMS:

e  Financial Status;

e Project progress;

e  Progress against Indigenous targets; and

e Claims for payment.

Financial Status

Funding Recipients must provide financial status information on the Project including:
e Total expenditure to date
e Year-to-date expenditure
e  Estimated expenditure for the current month

e Estimated expenditure for the upcoming month.

Funding Recipients must also report on the expenditure by each Project contributor.

Project Progress
When no Milestone is scheduled for Claim
Funding Recipients must provide a single, free-text Project status, detailing information on Project progress for the
monthly reporting period. This must include, as appropriate:
e  Known risks to Project completion and strategies adopted to mitigate these risks

- Where a Project is to be delivered using a collaborative contracting method (for example, alliance or
early contractor involvement), the risks associated with this contracting method should be reported.

e  Progress against agreed Milestones

- Where Projects are combined into a single approved Project, progress against each sub Project should
be reported.

e Key events to take place in the next two months (for example, request for an expression of interest, a tender,
contract award, an opening, commencement of completion of a key Project stage

e Details of Building Code breaches.

When a Milestone is scheduled for Claim
Funding Recipients will be required to provide the following Project status information in a series of free text fields in
IMS.
e The Project status in each of these four areas:
- Financial status. Example: Is the Project on budget? Is there an overspend? Is there an underspend?

- Scope status. Example: Is the Project proceeding according to the approved scope or does the Project
team anticipate that scope changes are required?
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- Schedule status. Example: Have events occurred that are likely to delay the Project? Is there potential
for acceleration of the schedule?

—  Stakeholder status. Example: What impact do stakeholders have on the progress of the Project?
e Strategies adopted to address issues or risks for each of the four areas noted above.

- Where a Project is to be delivered using a collaborative contracting method (for example, alliance or
early contractor involvement), the risks associated with this contracting method should be reported.

- Where Projects are combined into a single approved Project, progress should be reported against each
sub Project.

e Overall Project progress, including:

- Key events to take place in the next two months (for example, request for an expression of interest, a
tender, awarding of a contract, an opening, commencement or completion of a key Project stage.

- Details of Building Code breaches.
- Whether the Project is Complete.

Claims for Payment

Where a Milestone is scheduled for payment in a given month, Funding Recipients may submit Claim for Payment in the
Monthly Progress Report. The claim must verify that the Milestone is complete. The Department may request additional
information to support verification.

If the Department accepts the Claim for Payment, the Funding Recipient will be paid the agreed amount of funding. If the
Department does not accept a Claim for Payment, a Milestone variation will be triggered.

Indigenous Reporting

Funding Recipients are required to use the Monthly Reporting process to provide reports to the Department
demonstrating evidence of progress against the participation targets set out in the relevant Indigenous Participation Plan.
While the Indigenous reporting requirements have been incorporated into Monthly Reporting to streamline the process,
Funding Recipients need only update the Indigenous component when there is progress to report on. That said, Funding
Recipients must advise at the earliest opportunity where targets are not on track to be met, to enable appropriate
support to be provided, as needed, in an effort to meet agreed targets.
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Appendix C2 Post-Completion Report

The Post-Completion Report must be submitted with the Claim for Payment of the Final Milestone. The Final Milestone
will not be paid until the Department accepts the Post-Completion Report. If required, the Department may ask the
Funding Recipient to revise the submitted report before accepting it.

PROJECT:

PROJECT NUMBER:

FUNDING RECIPIENT:

Scope

Provide details of all material changes to the scope following Project approval’.For comparison purposes, including

descriptions of the:

1. original Project scope approved
2. scope change
3. rationale for the change.

Original scope Scope change Rationale for change

Schedule

Project Period as agreed on approval of the Delivery Phase Actual Project Period

Construction start date Physical completion date Construction start date Physical completion date

Provide details of the rationale for changes to the construction start or physical completion dates and how the impact of
these changes was managed

Cost

Provide a populated Project Cost Breakdown template detailing the actual Project costs. The template is available from
the Department.

7 Unapproved changes to scope and quality will require further investigation by the Department and the Final Milestone will not be
paid until this has been achieved
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Performance

Provide information on the progress of the Project in meeting agreed Transport Performance Indicators. Include a table of
figures if appropriate.

Innovation

Provide innovative Project delivery techniques that have resulted in positive economic, safety, social, environmental,
integration or transparency outcomes (for example, use of recycled material, techniques to reduce water and energy
consumption, Project delivery methods that deliver Project savings, or private funding or financing models.)

Indigenous employment and business participation targets
Provide:
1. Results against Indigenous participation target
Variations

Results for Indigenous job seekers

2
3
4. Results for Indigenous businesses
5. Supply-side supports

6. Risk mitigation

7

Unanticipated project costs

a. Results against Indigenous participation targets (to be made public)

e Provide the Indigenous participation target outlined in the Indigenous Participation Plan for this project.
O Include a breakdown of the employment and supplier-use component of the target.
e Was the Indigenous participation target met? YES/NO
e What is the rationale / justification for progress made against targets?
e Has the above information been made public through the States’ project reporting processes?
b. Variations

e Ifthe Indigenous participation target was not met for this project, explain the variation from the target
outlined in the Indigenous Participation Plan.

O Include the planned vs actual results against the target.

o Provide information about the issues faced by the contractor to fulfil the Indigenous
employment and supplier-use requirements.

e Ifthe Indigenous target was exceeded, explain the factors that encouraged or allowed the contractor to
achieve this.
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O  E.g. aresult of supply side support and early engagement with the local community regarding
opportunities.

O E.g. astrong Indigenous labour force within the project locality.

Results for Indigenous employees

Mandatory: What was the number of Full Time Equivalent (FTE) Indigenous positions created for the duration of
the project?

If available, include details about:®
e The number of Indigenous applicants for available positions.

e The aggregate income of total FTE Indigenous positions created in a local area.

O Include a definition of the ‘local area’ (e.g. township, Indigenous nation, local government area,
ABS data region).

e Indigenous employees’ primary role (i.e. key job responsibilities), gender, age group, cultural group and
disability (if relevant to employment).

[Note: the Australian Government recommends obtaining this information in a standard spreadsheet from the
principal contractor. The information should de-identify individuals, and any corresponding personal information
should not be traceable to an individual].

1. Results for Indigenous businesses

Mandatory: What was the total contract spend on Indigenous businesses in a local area?
If available, include details about:®

e Number of certified Indigenous businesses awarded a contract in a local area.

0 Include a definition of the ‘local area’.

e Locality of the Indigenous businesses (e.g. office location, where they were sourced from).
e Size of Indigenous businesses contracted in this project (e.g. annual turnover, net income).

e Ifany new Indigenous businesses were established in response to market demand created by the project.

2. Supply side supports

e Type of employment and business support service accessed by Indigenous individuals, and Indigenous
and non-Indigenous businesses.

e Type of resource/qualification obtained from the service provider (e.g. finance, capital investment, wage
subsidy, cultural awareness training, and certifications).

e Date and duration of service access.

8 The Australian Government is collecting this information to assess the impact of the Framework on Indigenous economic
participation for Commonwealth funded or co-funded investment projects.

9 The Australian Government is collecting this information to assess the impact of the Framework on Indigenous economic
participation for Commonwealth funded or co-funded investment projects.
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e Identify any gaps in services or any issues relating to accessing supply-side supports.

[Note: this feedback will be provided to relevant Australian Government agencies]

3. Risk mitigation

e Identify any project risks that eventuated as a result of the Indigenous participation requirements for this
project and explain how they were managed.

e  Were the risk mitigation strategies (including those outlined in the Indigenous Participation Plan) effective
in treating these risks?

4. Unanticipated project costs

=  Provide details of any additional unanticipated project costs resulting from the Australian Government’s
requirement for Indigenous economic participation, for this project, and how these costs were managed.

5. Public reporting requirements

=  Please advise location of public reporting on performance against Indigenous participation requirements
including targets.

[Name] Date

Position and organisation
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Appendix C3 Annual Financial Statement and Audit Report

The Chief Executive Officer, or their delegate, is required to submit the Annual Financial Statement and Audit Report to
the Department no later than 31 December after the end of the financial year. In accordance with Section 21 or Section
82 of the NLT Act, please note that the information in this report is to be submitted at Project level.

The Report comprises four components a:

1. Financial statement;

2. Statement of disposals of interests in land;

3. Signed written statement by the appropriate auditor; and
4. Signed statement from the Chief Executive Officer.

1. Financial statement

The Financial statement should be in the format described below:

Total Amount

available for
Amount!! brought expenditure year
forward from Amount received ended 30 June xxxx Amount expended
previous financial year ended 30 June (Total of previous yearended 30 June Amount carried
year XXXX two columns) XXXX forward

10 For Black Spots the Financial Statement should be at the programme level and provide information for Columns 2-6
11 Amount’ refers to the amount of Australian Government funding.
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2. Statement of disposals of interests in land acquired with Australian Government
funds'?

The statement should detail the sale or disposal of interests in land acquired with the use of Australian Government
funds in accordance with Section 25 of the NLT Act.

Australian Government

Land Interest Australian Government Amount Owed to
Contribution Land Interest Land Interest Sale Value Australian Government
Project Proportion % Contribution Amount $
% $ $ $
% $ $ $
% $ $ $
|'I'0TAL n/a

Provide details of disposed land (such as title reference numbers and subdivisions) as an attachment.

3. Signed written statement by the appropriate auditor

The signed written statement by the appropriate auditor should certify that the:

e Financial statement is based on proper accounts and records; and
e Financial statement is in agreement with the accounts and records; and
e Amount expended by the Funding Recipient during the year, as shown in the financial statement above, has
been spent on the funded Project(s).
According to Section 4 of the NLT Act, an appropriate auditor is:

d. inrelation to a person or body whose accounts are required by law to be audited by the Auditor-General of a
State—the Auditor-General of the State; or
e. inrelation to a person or body whose accounts are required by law to be audited by the Auditor-General of the
Commonwealth—the Auditor-General of the Commonwealth; or
f. inrelation to any other person or body—a person (other than a director, officer or employee of the person or
body) who is:
(i) registered as a company auditor or a public accountant under a law in force in a State; or
(i) amember of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia or of the Australian Society of
Accountants.

12 A statement of disposals of interests in land is not required for the Black Spot Programme report.
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4. Signed statement from the Chief Executive Officer

The Chief Executive Officer signs a statement certifying that:

Amounts expended from funding payments have been wholly expended on Approved Purposes in relation to
funded Projects;

All tenders invited and contracts awarded for Australian Government funded Projects for which there is a
tendering requirement have been dealt with in accordance with the NLT Act and Section 2.4 of these Notes
Signs have been erected in accordance with the agreed signage plan (Section 5.3)

The Funding Recipient has met the compliance requirements of the Building Code 2016

Funding Recipients have met the requirements of the Australian Government Building and Construction WHS
Accreditation Scheme

Conditions outlined in the NPA, or any funding agreement with the Australian Government, have been met.
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Appendix D — Black Spot Projects

Appendix D1 General Requirements for Black Spot Projects
D1.1 Objective

The objective of Black Spot Projects is to reduce the social and economic costs of road trauma by:

e Identifying and applying cost-effective treatment of locations with a record of casualty crashes;

e  Placing significant focus on the need to reduce rural road trauma, in accordance with national road safety policy
objectives; and

e Using a proportion of funds to treat sites identified as potential crash locations, and to implement other road
safety measures.

Australian Government funding for Black Spot Projects makes an important contribution to reducing the national road toll
under its National Road Safety Strategy.

Financial assistance is provided to improve the physical condition or management of sites noted for a high incidence of
crashes involving death and injury, termed Black Spots. Black Spot Projects also aim to encourage the implementation of
safety-related traffic management techniques and other road safety measures that have proven road safety value. This
includes traffic signs, traffic control equipment and street lighting.

D1.2 Eligibility

Consistent with Section 71 of the NLT Act, a Project is eligible if:

a. Itisfor the improvement of road safety of a site (being all or part of any road); and
the site is in a State; and

c. the nature of the site has contributed to, or is likely to contribute to, serious motor vehicle crashes involving
death or personal injury.

In general, sites that do not meet crash history criterion, but are eligible on the basis that the site is likely to contribute to
serious motor vehicle crashes involving death or personal injury, will have been the subject of an official road safety audit
report or relevant assessment methodology.

Black Spot Projects focus on locations where the highest benefits can be achieved. Works eligible for funding may include
safety-related construction, alteration or remedial treatment.

Funding Recipients are not to propose Projects for Black Spots funding where the Project duplicates a Project included in
the NPA Schedules.

D1.3 Approved Purposes

Black Spot Projects funding is available to treat road safety problems at identified sites. Funding may be sought for all or
part of the costs directly associated with an approved Black Spot Project, expect for parts listed as an Unapproved
Purpose (see list below). The Australian Government’s funding contribution for each Project will not exceed $2 million.
However, to achieve maximum effect from available funding, emphasis will be on low-cost, high-return Projects.

Direct administrative costs should be a component of the total Project cost submitted for consideration by the
consultative panel.

Unapproved Purposes for Black Spot Projects include:

e  Purchase of road-building plant or equipment;

e Costs involved in preparing Road Safety Audits or assessments used to support a nomination for Black Spot
Projects funding under D2.2 (Proactive Proposals - noting the exception to this in the paragraph below);

e Maintenance costs;

e Speed/red light cameras; and

e Costsincurred after installation.
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A design stage road safety audit is not mandatory but may be a requirement in some States. Where a Project Proponent
considers that a design stage Road Safety Audit is appropriate, or required by the relevant State road authority, the cost
of the audit undertaken as part of a Black Spot Project and approved on the basis of a site’s crash history is an Approved
Purpose.

D1.4 Rural and urban Black Spot

The National Road Safety Strategy 2011-2020 specifically targets inhabitants of rural and remote areas in its strategic
objective to improve equity among road users.

In recognition of this, funding will be allocated approximately 50:50 between rural and urban areas in each year where
applications allow.

For the purposes of this provision, urban areas are defined, on the basis of Australian Bureau of Statistics statistical
divisions, as cities and towns with a population in excess of 100,000. With the agreement of their Black Spot Consultative
Panel, States may use boundaries in use for state programs, for example regional office boundaries, to define urban
areas.

The urban-rural criterion does not apply to the Australian Capital Territory, Northern Territory or Tasmania.

D1.5 Administration

The Department administers Black Spot Projects funding on behalf of the Australian Government. State road and
transport agencies manage approved Projects within each State.

Funding Recipients must observe the funding conditions provided in Part 7 of the NLT Act. Appendix A1 summarise these
conditions. However, Black Spot Projects are not required to:

e Call for public tenders (Condition A1.5); or
e Declare sales or disposals of interests in land acquired with Australian Government funding (Condition A1.6).

A consultative panel has been established in each State comprising, as appropriate, representatives of the relevant State
road and transport agency, local government, and community and road user groups. The panel’s purpose is to consider
and comment on all nominations for Black Spot treatment within a State. The Minister has appointed a Chair for each
panel. The Minister or the Chair may, from time to time, amend panel composition except that it must always include a
representative of the relevant State road and transport agency.

Each panel has a Secretariat. These services are provided by the State road and transport agencies. Agencies provide
expert input to the consultative panels, particularly with collating and assessing site nominations.

D1.6 Black Spot Projects undertaken as part of larger works

Discrete sites or lengths to be treated as part of a larger Project and/or program of works may be nominated for Black
Spot Projects funding. Any site or length must meet the eligibility criteria for Black Spot Projects funding and be
accompanied by evidence that the crash statistics supporting the nomination relate to the discrete site or length for
which funding is sought.

Where possible, Projects to be undertaken as a part of larger works should be identified before approval.

Eligible Project costs, such as design, construction and direct administration, are to be apportioned appropriately where
Black Spot Projects-funded works are undertaken as part of a larger Project. For example, where the Black Spot Projects-
funded works comprise 10 per cent of the road length treated, then 10 per cent of all eligible Project costs must be
apportioned to the Black Spot Project.

D1.7 Timeframe for Approved Projects

In general, a Black Spot Project is approved for delivery in a specified financial year and Funding Recipients are
encouraged to ensure approved Projects are Complete or are sufficiently advanced to enable payment of approved
Australian Government funding.

Where a Project will not be complete within the financial year for which it was approved, Funding Recipients should
discuss the circumstances of the delay with their State road authority.
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Funding Recipients may nominate a multi-year Project for Black Spot Projects funding. Multi-year Project nominations
should be clearly presented as such to the consultative panel and the Minister to enable full consideration of whether the
commitment of forward funding is warranted. Multi-year Projects do not include Projects where the final seal or related
works cannot be completed within the approved financial year.

Appendix D2 Black Spot Projects criteria
D2.1 Proposals based on crash history

Funding is mainly available for the treatment of Black Spot sites with a proven history of crashes. Project proposals of this
sort should be able to demonstrate a benefit to cost ratio (BCR) of at least 2.

A discount rate based on current Austroads Guidance should be applied in calculating BCRs, however other rates are
allowed. An example of this is where a State uses an alternative discount rate when assessing proposals for State
government funding. The discount rate used by the State must be applied when assessing all candidate Projects.

For discrete sites (for example, an intersection, mid-block or short road section) the minimum eligibility criterion will be a
history of at least three casualty crashes over five-years.

For road lengths the minimum eligibility criterion is:

e an average of 0.2 casualty crashes per kilometre per annum over the length in question measured over five
years; or
e Alength that is among the top 10 per cent of locations identified in each State with an identified higher crash
rate than other roads.
Notes: Measures of casualty crashes should be provided from the most recently available five-year period.

The road length criterion may only be applied to proposals for the treatment of road lengths of three kilometres or more.
This is to ensure that the road length has a crash history similar to that required for a discrete site.

When a site receives project funding under the Black Spot Program it is for the treatment of the crashes that have
occurred at the site. This means that, once a site has been nominated and successfully receives funding, that funding is
considered to be for the treatment of the crashes that have occurred over the five-year period. Should a site be
nominated again, the crash history used for the previous nomination cannot be used again, as those crashes are
considered to have been treated by the previous project.

The table of crash reduction potentials for typical treatments, at D8, will assist crash analysts and traffic management
engineers. The table is not intended to replace more detailed information and professional judgement available at local
level.

More information and guidance on crash location identification and treatment are included in the Austroads Guidelines.

D2.2 Proactive proposals

In addition to D2.1, up to 30 per cent of Black Spot Projects funds may be used to treat sites that may not meet the above
crash history criteria, but that have been recommended for treatment in an official Road Safety Audit or relevant
assessment methodology report provided by the Project Proponent.

The Minister may consider proactive Projects above this amount if, in any given year, a Black Spot consultative panel
recommends proactive proposals in excess of 30 per cent of available funding.

Austroads publishes a guide outlining a suitable standard for completing a road safety audit. AusRAP or ANRAM
assessments of local government roads, or similar assessments as agreed with the Department, may also be used to
identify proactive nominations.

Road Safety Audits or equivalent assessments should normally recommend the treatment proposed in the application for
Black Spot Projects funding. Where this is not the case, the State road authority should advise the Department that it has
assessed the proposed treatment and considers it appropriate.
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Appendix D3 Nomination and Assessment of Project Proposals
D3.1 Nominations

Nominations of sites are invited from State and local governments, community groups, clubs and associations, road user
groups, industry and individuals.

Community nomination and joint funding of Projects is encouraged. Applications that indicate a commitment of funds,
labour or materials from other government or community/industry sources for associated works will receive favourable
consideration.

All nominations are to be referred to:

The Black Spot Consultative Panel
c/o State road and transport agency in your State.

(A list of addresses for the State road and transport agency in each State is on the back of the
nomination form. This is available for download from the Department’s website or by contacting the
Department.)

On receipt of a site nomination, the State will assess the eligibility of the nomination against the criteria and undertake a
benefit-cost assessment of a treatment proposal. In assessing nominations, States can use the table at D8 or use their
own assessment methodology. However, States must ensure that all nominations for a particular year are assessed using
the same methodology and the same inputs (such as crash reduction percentages and Project-life assumptions). States
may need to provide advice to the Department on their Project assessment procedures and methodology and give an
undertaking that all Project assessments are consistent with these procedures.

All nominations will be referred to the consultative panel. However, nominees should be aware that nominations for sites
that fail to conform to the criteria will not be considered for approval.

Nominees should note that Australian Government funding for Black Spot Projects will be paid directly to the States.
States are responsible for distributing Project funds against each approved Project as appropriate.

D3.2 Costs used in Project assessments

For nominations based on crash history, the Department recommends that States use the full cost of the Project,
including proposed contributions from external sources, when calculating the BCR for the Project.

Funding contributions from other sources may be taken into account by the State consultative panel when
recommending nominated Projects for consideration by the Minister. The Minister may consider the extent to which
persons other than the Australian Government propose to contribute funding when deciding whether to approve a Black
Spot Project.

D3.3 Consideration by State consultative panel

Each nomination must be submitted to the relevant State consultative panel for consideration against Black Spot Projects
criteria. In general, nominations will be ranked by priority, based on the assessment undertaken by the State. The State
may include relevant comments arising from the assessment, to assist the panel’s consideration of the nomination.
Ranking of proposals assessed on crash history should consider the proposal’s BCR, but States are also able to priorities
eligible proposals using alternative measures such as a calculated Fatal and Serious Injury (FSI) Reduction score. For
proactive nominations, the Department supports ranking proposals on the basis of a systematic risk assessment
methodology.

Consultative panels will recommend nominated Projects for consideration by the Minister, and comment, where
appropriate, on proposals.
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D3.4 State submission of Projects recommended by the consultative panel

State agencies, on behalf of the consultative panel, are invited to forward submissions to the Department for Projects
recommended by the consultative panel for consideration by the Minister. State agencies should endeavour to forward
submissions within six weeks of the consultative panel meeting.

Preferably, submissions comprising recommended Projects should be provided in electronic format using the template
available for downloading from IMS.

D3.5 Minister may nominate Australian Government priorities

The Minister may consider Black Spot Projects recommended by a State consultative panel. Under Section 73(3) of the
NLT Act, the Minister may nominate Australian Government Project priorities at any time and may consider other Projects
that meet the eligibility criteria for a Black Spot Project set out in the NLT Act.

Appendix D4 Approving a Project Proposal
D4.1 Consideration by the Minister

Upon receipt of the Proponent’s submission, the Department will prepare the necessary documentation for the
Minister’s consideration.

Eligible Project proposals will be considered for approval against a range of factors intended to maximise the safety
benefits of Black Spot Projects. In assessing which Projects will be approved for funding, the Minister can consider, but is
not limited to considering, these factors:

e Relative safety and economic merits of proposals;

e Relative merits of competing Projects for which an official road safety audit report or relevant assessment
methodology has been undertaken;

e Australian Government’s policy on the mix of Projects between urban and rural areas;

e Recommendations made by the State consultative panel;

e Available funding levels;

e Contributions to the Project from sources other than the Australian Government;

e  Whether the Australian Government’s funding contribution for each Project exceeds $2,000,000 with an
emphasis on low-cost, high-return Projects; and

e Anticipated completion times of proposals.

D4.2 Minister will issue a Project approval instrument for approved Projects

The Minister will issue a Project approval instrument for a Black Spot Project or Projects for each State. Section 74(1) of
the NLT Act states that the Project approval instrument for Black Spot Projects must:

identify the Project; and

a

b. specify the maximum funding amount the Australian Government may contribute to the Project; and

c. identify the eligible Funding Recipient, being a State or authority of a State, to which funding may be paid; and
d

if the approval is conditional on a funding agreement being entered into with the eligible Funding Recipient,
contain a statement to that effect.

D4.3 Announcement of approval by the Australian Government Minister

State Ministers will be advised in writing of the outcome of the Minister’s decision. The Minister may announce publicly
the approval of Projects within a State at the same time as notifying the State.

No public announcement concerning a Black Spot Project or Projects is to be made by a State agency or State Minister
before the Minister’s announcement.
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Appendix D5 Dealing with Project variations
D5.1 Minister may vary or revoke a Project approval

The Minister may use Section 76 of the NLT Act to vary or revoke the Project approval instrument for a Black Spot Project.

D5.2 Variation of cost

Australian Government payment for each Project is limited to the maximum funding amount specified in the approval
instrument for that Project. Formal variation of an approved Project must be sought by the Funding Recipient and
approved by the Minister.

Formal variation of approvals must be sought before construction starts, where it is known that the cost of an individual
Project is subject to an increase of 20 per cent or $30,000, whichever is the lesser. This is:
e When a Project is subject to an increase of less than 20 per cent but that percentage is greater than $30,000; or
e Where a Project is subject to an increase of less than $30,000 but that increase is greater than 20 per cent of the
maximum funding amount.

Any request to vary the cost of a Project under this provision must be accompanied by sufficient details explaining the
reasons so the Minister can consider the merits of each variation request.

Formal variation of all minor increases in the cost of approved Projects (less than 20 per cent or $30,000) must be sought
as soon as practicable. Such minor variations are expected to be of a routine nature and need not be sought in advance of
construction. Funding Recipients are reminded that a payment to cover a minor increase in cost to an approved Project
cannot be made until the Minister formally varies the Project’s maximum funding amount.

An annual reconciliation of the maximum funding amount with the final cost of completed Projects is expected to be
undertaken towards the end of each financial year. However, Funding Recipients may request a variation to reconcile a
completed Project or group of completed Projects at any time during the financial year.

D5.3 Variation of scope

Formal approval for significant changes to the scope of approved Projects must be sought from the Minister before
construction begins. A significant change includes additional treatments, omission of approved treatments and changes
to the original proposal. Any request to vary the approved scope must be accompanied by sufficient explanation on the
reasons for the requested variation.

The Minister’s power to vary any Project approval instrument is discretionary.

Appendix D6 Claiming Payments
D6.1 Mandatory conditions apply to Australian Government funding

The Mandatory conditions attached to Black Spot Projects funding are outlined in Appendix Al.

D6.2 Reporting requirements of Funding Recipients

Funding Recipients will provide reports notifying the Department of the financial status of approved Projects and annual
performance measures. The NLT Act requires Funding Recipients to provide annual audited financial statements.

Status Reports

Status Reports must be provided to the Department in electronic format using the template available for downloading
and uploading through IMS. Status reports must be provided quarterly and include the project’s start and end dates. The
report’s purpose is to update the Australian Government on the Project progress and enable payments to the State.

It is expected that Status Reports will also be used, in consultation with the States, to reconcile the maximum funding
amount with the final cost of completed Projects. This ensures maximum funds are available for new Projects.
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Annual Statement of Expenditure

Each State is required to submit to the Minister, as soon as practicable after 30 June each year, financial statements giving
details of expenditure from amounts paid under the NLT Act.

Guidance on this Annual Financial Statement and Audit report is provided in Appendix D4.

D6.3 Payment of funding

Payment of funding is on the basis of submission of the Status Reports as outlined in the Table directly below.

Activity Date due

Submission of the first quarterly Status Report August
Submission of the second quarterly Status Report November
Submission of the third quarterly Status Report February
Submission of the fourth quarterly Status Report May

The amount of each payment will be determined when the status report is submitted and will be based on the following
formula:

Estimated Any amount
Actual expenditure Payments above the
expenditure for the next made maximum
Payment due = + - -
to date two months previously funding
amount

Under Section 78(3) of the NLT Act, the total amount of funding provided for a Project must not exceed the maximum
funding amount specified in the Project approval instrument.

States are reminded that forecast expenditures must be broken down by Project or all forecast expenditure will be
excluded from a payment. This level of reporting enables the Department to meet NLT Act requirements.

Appendix D7 Public recognition and evaluation

Chapter 5 of the Notes cover the Public Recognition and Evaluation requirements which Black Spot Projects must comply
with. This Section covers specific requirements or exceptions of Black Spot Projects.

D7.1 Signposting

Black Spot Projects worth less than $100,000 are not required to erect permanent signage, but must erect temporary
signage while work is underway.

Black Spot Project Signage Guidance is available from the Department.

D7.2 Evaluation

Itis of fundamental importance that Black Spot Projects be accountable for outcome results. To determine actual effect
on crashes, a formal evaluation of Black Spot Projects may be conducted from time-to-time.

As set out at 3.2, Funding Recipients must maintain, and make available as required, records relating to the nature and
frequency of motor vehicle crashes involving death or personal injury occurring at the site of funded Projects.
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Appendix D8 Treatment/Crash Reduction Matrix

APPLICATION OF THE TREATMENT/CRASH REDUCTION MATRIX"

Traffic crashes arise through a combination of factors. Remedies can be sought through a variety of approaches. This
matrix focuses on traffic engineering remedies. It provides broad guidance only and does not replace local experience or
judgement.

Assuming that sites have been identified for treatment on the basis of a history of crashes or other systematic
techniques, then crashes should be analysed for the pattern of crash-types [Definitions for Coding Accidents or DCA code]
and consistency of other factors. If road-related factors are relevant to ameliorating crashes at a site, this matrix can be
used for guidance as to the influence of particular treatments.

The matrix provides ball-park guidance on the estimated extent of changes in crashes of particular types that might
generally be expected from typical treatments. The reductions for treatments are averaged values. The results [percent
reduction] that will therefore be observed when a treatment is installed may be greater or less than the value in Table 1
below.

The selection of a treatment depends on factors such as the characteristics of crashes, the expected potential of reducing
those crashes, the cost of alternative treatments, and possible wider road network considerations. The Australian Manual
of Uniform Traffic Control Devices sets out minimum warrants for a number of treatments.

The treatment/crash reduction matrix is divided into two tables:

e Table 1: Relates to intersections (and intersection-related crashes).
e Table 2: Relates to road sections (and non-intersection-related crashes). This table is spread over two pages 2(a)
and 2(b) for the ease of reading the information.

At some locations more than one road feature may be present. On the one hand, for example, with a tee intersection on
a curved section of road, crashes of accident-type DCA codes 801 to 804 (run off road types) would generally not relate to
the intersection. On the other hand, crashes of DCA codes 101 to 109 would relate to traffic movements at the
intersection.

The matrix tables emphasise the importance of the road user movements leading up to the crash when determining
appropriate treatments. The average costs per casualty crash have been derived for Australia-wide use and are split by
rural and metro’ environments. They are based on there being good coding compatibility between the crash data being
used and the DCA codes.

The crashes described by the DCA codes and the costs per crash for DCA codes relate to one vehicle and two-vehicle
crashes. The vehicles included are all road vehicles (for example, cars, trucks, motor bikes and bicycles). A treatment may
be installed to provide for a particular vehicle type (for example, traffic signals for bicycles where a bicycle track crosses
an arterial road, or the improvement of lighting at an intersection where there are many bicycles at night and, say, a
history of crashes of DCA codes 301 to 304).

13 This matrix was prepared by Dr David Andreassen of Data Capture Analysis
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Appendix E — Maintenance Indicator Formulas

The Australian Government uses two indicators—the Preventative Maintenance Indicator (PMI) and the Riding Quality
Indicator (RQl)—to monitor road conditions under the NPAs.

Preventative Maintenance Indicator (PMI)

Definition

The age of the pavement’s surface compared to the target optimum surfacing age for the section of road as determined
by road agency specialists.

Purpose
To indicate the extent that preventative or proactive maintenance of road pavements is being adequately undertaken.
Reporting method

Target Age (TA) is the optimum surfacing age as determined by road agency specialists, generally the time when the road
should be resealed to minimise whole-of-life costs. The PMI is categorised as being:

Good: actual age < TA;
Mediocre: TA < actual < 1.3 x TA;
Poor: 1.3 x TA < actual < 1.6 x TA; and Very poor: actual > 1.6 x TA

Or N/A (for example, if concrete pavement).

The report should show the length in each category for each link. To facilitate comparisons, PMI will also be reported as a
single percentage, known as PMhealth— between 0% (for a very poor seal 2 1.6 x TA) and 100% (for a new seal).

PMhealth = 100 *[1-(actual age/(1.6 x TA))]

Riding Quality Indicator (RQI)

Definition

The riding quality of the road, considering its traffic volume, percentage of heavy vehicles and speed environment.
Purpose

To indicate the adequacy of a road’s riding quality to meet its transport objectives based on the road’s roughness.
Calculation

Heavy vehicles are weighted by a factor of 4 compared to light vehicles. The weighted Average Annual Daily Traffic
(modAADT) becomes:

modAADT = AADT * (1 + 3 * HV / 100)

Where AADT is the Average Annual Daily Traffic and HV the percentage of Heavy Vehicles.
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The ‘good’ roughness limit for a high speed road is varied according to its traffic volume (modAADT) and is between a
minimum of 500 and a maximum of 8,000 using this formula:

IRIgb = 7.1 * (modAADT)(-0.11) +0.05 (for a 110km/h road)

The ‘good’ roughness limit is then modified to take account of speed using this equation:

IRlgood = IRIgb * (110 / SL)0.5

Where SL is the speed limit with a maximum value of 110 km/h.

Reporting method

The RQI can be categorised as being:

Good: actual roughness < IRIgood; Mediocre: IRIgood < actual < 1.3 x IRIgood; Poor: 1.3 x IRIgood < actual < 1.6 x
IRIgood; Very poor: actual 2 1.6 x IRIgood.

The report should show the length in each category for each link.

To facilitate direct comparisons, the RQl will also be reported as a single percentage, known as RQhealth, between 0%
(for a pavement with roughness greater or equal to the maximum for its function) and 100% (for a newly constructed
pavement).

The roughness of a newly constructed pavement shall be taken as 1.558 IRl (40 NRM).

Maximum roughness (RufMax) shall be calculated according to the formula:

RufMax = 1.558 + [2 x (IRIgood - 1.558)].
RQhealth = 100*[1 — ((IRlactual - 1.558)/(RufMax — 1.558))].

Where IRlactual = measured roughness between a roughness value of 1.558 IRl and RufMax.
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QB22-000342

ISSUE: WHAT ARE THE NATIONAL FASTER RAIL AGENCY’S PRIORITIES AND
PROJECTS?

BACKGROUND:

o 522(1)(a)(ii) :

e Faster, fast and high speed rail are all part of the same concept along a train
speed range that develops over time. One can progressively lead to the other
as corridors are upgraded.

o Faster rail is a foundation for high speed rail because faster rail upgrades to
existing corridors provide a stepping-stone to fast rail and high speed rail as
new and better alignments become available.

e The former government committed $6 billion to faster rail, with the following
commitments in the 2022-23 Budget:

o $1.0 billion for the Sydney to Newcastle faster rail upgrade (Tuggerah
to Wyong)
s22(1)(a)(ii)

CURRENT SITUATION:
s22(1)(a)(ii)

e The review found that the $20 million Sydney to Central Coast Planning
project was not required due to the $500 million election commitment to begin
the corridor acquisition, planning and early works for the high speed corridor
between Sydney, Central Coast and Newcastle.

e The following projects were deferred by one year:

o Sydney to Newcastle (Tuggerah to Wyong faster rail upgrade)
$22(1)(a)(ii)
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SUGGESTED SPEAKING POINTS:

e Government has contirmed nearly all of the previous commitments 10

faster rail projects in the October Budget. The only exception is $20 million for
the Sydney to Central Coast fast rail planning. However, the Government has
included $500 million in the Budget for its election commitment to begin
corridor acquisition, planning and early works for the high speed rail corridor
between Sydney, Central Coast and Newcastle.

20f2
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s22(1)(a)(ii)

$22(1)(a)(ii)

From:

Sent: Fridav, 3 March 2023 11:30 AM

To: s22(1)(a)(ii)

Subject: FW: FYl: New min corro (MC23-029131) - no action required [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Attachments: Information Only [SEC=OFFICIAL]; FastrackAustralia Hiah Speed Rail and

Regionalisation Report; Two Fastrack emails to $22(1)(a)(ii)

Hi guys, pls familiarise yourselves with this when you get a chance

From: WHALEN Greg

Sent: Monday, 27 February 2023 1:57 PM

To: s22(1)(a)(ii) k

Subject: FW: FYl: New min corro (MC23-029131) - no action required [SEC=OFFICIAL]

$22(1)(a)(ii)

Attached for your reading over the next week, is a copy of the Fastrack proposal we discussed last week.

Regards,
Greg
From: $22(1)(a)(ii) @NFRA.gov.au>

Sent: Friday, 24 February 2023 12:07 PM
To: BROE Barry <barry.broe@nfra.gov.au>; WHALEN Greg <Greg.Whalen@nfra.gov.au>
Subject: FYI: New min corro (MC23-029131) - no action required [SEC=OFFICIAL]

Barry/Greg

The MO received the attached new corro from Mr Glazebrook. It has been marked FYI — no action is required, so |
will close the record in PDMS.

FYI
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822(1 )(a)(ii) (part time: Mon, Tue, Thu, Fri)

Executive Assistant to Barry Broe, CEO

Executive Assistant to Greg Whalen, General Manager, Policy & Projects
National Faster Rail Agency

GPO Box 594, Canberra ACT 2601

02 822(1)(a)(

s24{1)(a)(ii) @nfra.gov.au | www.nfra.gov.au

OFFICIAL
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$22(1)(a)(ii)

From: teamfastrackaustralia@gmail.com

Sent: Tuesday, 21 Februarv 2023 3:01 PM

To: Minister.king.MO; $22(1)(@)([1) @pm gov.au
Subject: Two Fastrack emails to $22(1)(a)(ii)

Copies of previously sent Fastrack emails:

From: S47F @bigpond.com>
Subject: Re: High Speed Rail and Regionalisation
Date: 14 February 2023 at 6:00:07 pm AEDT

To: $22(1)(a)(ii) @pm.gov.au

Cc: Minister.King@mo.infrastructure.gov.au, S47F @gmail.com
Dear 822(1)(,
a)(ii)

Just a quick follow up on my earlier email of 24 January.

| just thought | would mention that 847 and | will be discussing our report with the Guardian
tomorrow, where we will mention the need for decentralisation of our future population growth,
and the role that high speed rail could play in that.

In that context, it seems that infrastructure priorities, and how to fund them, is becoming a
significant issue in the current NSW election campaign.

From recent announcements and press conferences, the State Government is promising another
four metro lines in Western Sydney. This is in addition the three metros currently under
construction, as well as Westconnex and other large urban road projects. The NSW State
infrastructure budget for the next four years is over $100 billion, most of which will go to transport
projects in Sydney.

This highlights the likely very large costs which will be needed in coming decades in our capital cities
for transport as a result of a return to high population growth in Australia post COVID. Transport
infrastructure in our capital cities is especially expensive given that much of it has to be
underground, but high land values means other infrastructure such as schools and hospitals are also
more expensive than in smaller cities.

As is well known, this population concentration in our major capitals also gives rise to a range of
other issues, including un-affordable housing, road congestion, and concerns at over-development.

COVID had a number of impacts on housing preferences, work patterns and travel behaviour. These
included a shift by some people to regional cities. However these changes in population distribution
are unlikely to persist without a change in the accessibility to the major capitals by people moving to
those regional cities. We believe the staged development of high speed rail in south-East Australia
will create this change in accessibility, and will be pivotal in enabling this trend to decentralisation to
become more established. Simply building more highways won’t create such a change, as travel
times from regional cities to the capitals are too long to make it viable for people to maintain
convenient connections with work, education, family and specialist services.
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All of this suggests that the time might be ripe for a reassessment of the need for a better
distribution of our population, and ways to achieve this. This debate is perhaps something the
national government could facilitate.

Clearly a range of policies, such as encouraging more overseas students to study in regional
universities, or measures to attract doctors and other medical staff to regional centres, will be
needed. And good regional planning will also be essential to avoid simply transferring our existing
capital city problems to regional cities.

But we believe high speed rail will turn out to be a necessary (though not sufficient) condition to
making decentralisation a reality. And while high speed rail will undoubtedly be expensive, so will
the alternatives, as demonstrated by the transport infrastructure spend within our capital cities.
These topics may well be of interest to your State-based colleagues, and as mentioned earlier, we

plan to forward our paper to the Shadow Minister for Transport in NSW shortly.

Yours sincerely,

s47F

On 24 Jan 2023, at 7:03 pm, S47F @bigpond.com> wrote:
Dear 822(1)(
a)(ii)

You may recall that | contacted you around a year ago in relation to a high-speed rail
seminar. | would like to congratulate the Government on successfully enacting the
legislation to establish a High-Speed Rail Authority, which represents a major step
forward in this important initiative.

In the last few months my colleague S47F , Who was also involved in the
seminar, and | have developed an Implementation Plan for HSR in Australia
(attached). A pre-release copy has also been sent to Catherine King as the relevant
minister (see separate email also copied to you). We also plan to share this with
s22(1)(a)(ii) at the Treasurer’s Office, and note that she suggested we speak
first with you.

We are aiming to forward the plan to relevant people in the Federal Opposition, in
Government and Opposition in NSW and Victoria, and in the ACT in a week or so,
and to publicly launch it a few weeks after that on the Fastrackaustralia website
(Error! Filename not specified.www.fastrackaustralia.net).

The HSR Plan
In summary, the plan:

- Provides evidence of why high-speed rail in the East Coast can help
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decentralisation and regional development
- Indicates some of the developments of both passenger and freight rail overseas
which can be utilised in Australia
- Outlines a detailed five-stage program for implementing high speed rail between
Sydney, Canberra and Melbourne, covering infrastructure, service patterns and
rolling stock
- Suggests that an early priority should be to build the “Wentworth Deviation”
between Campbelltown and Mittagong, followed by a high-speed link to Canberra
from the vicinity of Gunning
- Notes the need and opportunity for upgrading both freight and passenger rail
capacity through this strategy, and indicates how this can be achieved.

Making an Early Start

The purpose of the plan is to facilitate the implementation of high speed rail in
Australia. We are aware that the currently announced priority for high-speed rail is
the Sydney - Newcastle corridor, reflecting its significance and high passenger
volumes. However this corridor has challenging geography, making it relatively
time-consuming and expensive to construct. Given the extensive tunnelling
required, we believe the first actual high-speed trains on this corridor would be
unlikely to operate before the early 2030’s.

We therefore believe that high-speed rail could be accelerated by beginning with
the Sydney - Melbourne corridor, whilst the Sydney - Newcastle corridor is being
further refined and detailed design studies completed. Once this is finished, work
could continue in parallel on both corridors.

In doing so, we propose that the Sydney-Canberra-Melbourne corridor be built in
five stages, as an upgrade to the existing conventional rail line (similar to rollout of
dual carriageways on the highway network). This approach supports both passenger
and freight traffic, provides economic benefit to connected regional centres, and
the benefit of travellers to centres beyond the upgraded sections of line.

There has already been extensive investigation of much of this corridor. We believe
that actual construction of the first stage between Macarthur and Mittagong could
commence within three years, and that the first high-speed capable trains could
commence operation by the late 2020’s, along with accelerated freight and
passenger services in the corridor. In terms of staging:

- The first stage implements the ‘Wentworth Bypass’. This section would cut travel
times for both passenger and intermodal freight trains, and is a high priority for the
improvement of freight traffic according to the ARTC. It opens the opportunity for
increased urban development in the Wilton and Southern Highlands areas. Work by
NIEIR and SGSEPS indicates it will have a high benefit-cost ratio due to the wider
economic benefits derived by diverting population growth away from Sydney. It also
provides the beginning of a potential high-speed line between Wollongong and
Western Sydney.

- The second stage implements a new section of high speed line out of Canberra,
along with the addition of a more direct, higher speed line between Goulburn and
Yass (another high priority section according to the ARTC). This will open the
opportunity for increased urban development to the north of Canberra, which will
generate a high benefit-cost ratio, and further cut travel times.

- The third stage implements a new section out of Melbourne following the same
rationale as the first two stages. It also includes the implementation of a high speed
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line between the Southern Highlands and Goulburn, completing the high speed line
between the outskirts of Sydney through to Canberra. This will allow the
introduction of genuine high speed trains, and a positive benefit-cost ratio through
its associated travel time savings.

- The final two stages will complete high-speed rail line between Sydney and
Melbourne. In combination with the existing, slower route, this will provide capacity
for high-speed inter-capital, regional and commuter passenger trains, fast
intermodal freight trains, local passenger trains and conventional freight trains
serving industries along the line, enabling a tripling of total rail capacity in the
corridor. Depending on availability of finance and other factors, this could be
achieved over a 25-30 year period.

Recommended Early Steps

Given the potential problems from urban development alienating the corridor, and
of land speculation, we suggest that the Government take steps to have the key
corridors defined and protected, and that the Government complete business cases
for the first three stages, as a matter of urgency.

We suggest that these should be backed by a strategic framework study designed to
examine the “big picture” and long-term issues arising from the potential of HSR to
restructure population settlement patterns in Eastern Australia. These include
benefits such as reducing congestion, housing affordability problems and urban
infrastructure needs in the main capitals, as well as from improving access to
employment, education, health and other services in regional cities and towns. It
will also include wider environmental and other benefits from shifting part of the
current and future air and road transport demand to rail.

We would also suggest that the Government develop the strategic framework and
individual business cases through the HSRA (instead of funding business cases to be
developed by state governments). We have attached an outline of the Case For HSR
which provides more detail.

We also recommend that the Federal Government should examine establishing its
own train operating company to use carbon-neutral trains to provide fast commuter
services out of Canberra to Goulburn and Yass, as well as long-distance passenger
services from Canberra to Sydney and Melbourne. This provides an opportunity to
further enhance the sustainability of rail transport and to accelerate the transition
to green electricity / hydrogen power.

Opportunity for a Briefing

We would appreciate the opportunity to provide you with a briefing on the
approach if possible, and can be contacted by email or by phone S47F

We are very glad that the Government is taking the initiative on high speed rail, and
look forward to seeing how it progresses.

Yours Sincerely,

s47F
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Administrator
s47F

Fastrack Australia: Advocating for an implementation plan for High Speed Rail (HSR) in the Melbourne - Sydney
corridor
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822(1)(a)(ii)

From: s47F

Sent: Tuesdav. 21 February 2023 2:43 PM

To: s47F Minister Kina. MO

Cc: S4/F

Subject: FastrackAustralia High Speed Rail and Regionalisation Report

Attachments: HSRA Final 20th Jan 2022.pdf; ATTO0001.htm; Case for HSR Final.pdf; ATT00002.htm

Hi Catherine, S47F
| submitted this report to Catherine King’s office on 24 January (see attached). | have copied Elias on this email as |
believe the office didn’t recognise me as co-author with S47F . Nor had | used FastrackAustraila in the
email which would have made it easier.
Thanks

s47F

Begin forwarded message:

From: s47F @gmail.com>
Subject: High speed rail and regionalisation

Date: 24 January 2023 at 6:45:24 pm AEDT
To: Catherine King <Minister.Kina@mo.infrastructure.qov.au>
Cc: s22(1)(a)i)) @pm.gov.au, S47F @bigpond.com>

Hi Catherine,

Further to my earlier email on the HSRA Board, | would like to congratulate you and the
Government for passing the High Speed Rail Authority Act, which marks an important step to
achieving high speed rail in Australia.

Since contacting you, my colleague S47F and | have developed an Implementation Plan
for High Speed Rail in Australia, which we would be happy to present to the HSRA when it is
established. A pre-release copy of our paper is attached for your information. Our intention is to
release the report to the public and are working towards this goal.

The purpose of the document is to provide the reasons why high speed rail is essential, and to
outline a staged implementation approach that connects the Sydney-Canberra-Melbourne corridor.
We also outline governance arrangements and associated regional development initiatives required
to maximise the benefits from implementing high speed rail. The paper also suggests why a line out
of Canberra could be used as the foundation for a new high speed rail network across the south east
of Australia.

We believe that the biggest constraint to implementing high speed rail is the public’s uncertainty of
its benefits, due to the conflicting viewpoints of various experts on the viability of high speed rail in
Australia. We therefore think that it would be useful if the HSRA developed a strategic business
framework for evaluating the long-term benefits of high speed rail. This will need to consider the
effects on the long-term population distribution of high speed rail, and its benefits from improving
housing affordability, reducing congestion and limiting infrastructure costs in the major capitals, and
from improving access to employment, health, education and other services in regional cities and
towns. It will also need to consider the environmental benefits from shifting part of road and air
transport demand to rail.
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This framework can then be used to inform individual business cases on key sections of the high
speed line. The purpose of these business cases is to demonstrate:

e The regional economic benefits that will flow from faster rail connections; and
e The ability to progressively implement sections of high speed line, each with its own positive

business case, to incrementally build a network eventually encompassing all of south east
Australia.

This recommendation is detailed in the Case For HSR, which is also attached.

Our objective is to give you a heads-up so you can consider the issues raised in our paper. We would
appreciate the opportunity to provide you and/or your advisers with a briefing if possible. We have
also forwarded a copy of this report to Phoebe Drake in the Prime Ministers Office, given the Prime
Minister’s very public interest in the topic.

We are very glad that you are taking the initiative on high speed rail, and look forward to seeing
how it progresses. We can be contacted by email, or you can contact me on S47F

Best Regards
s47F
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AN IMPLEMENTATION PLAN FOR HIGH SPEED RAIL
IN THE SYDNEY-MELBOURNE CORRIDOR

The staged implementation of high speed rail can power the growth of Australia and its economy.
Countries around the world have typically upgraded existing conventional rail networks with high
speed rail to increase connectivity that promotes regional growth and economic development.

This paper examines the Sydney-Melbourne corridor to develop an approach that progressively
unlocks regional economic benefits through the staged implementation of sections of high speed
track along with the rollout of new rolling stock.

Appropriate governance arrangements need to be put in place and coordination with other regional
development initiatives are essential to maximise the benefits.

The "Wentworth Deviation” between Sydney and Mittagong, and the section of high speed rail out
of Canberra are considered the best starting points for the upgrades to rail infrastructure. They will
produce immediate benefits, and can become the foundation for a national rail network across
Australia’s south east.

s47F

January 2023
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One significance of removing the previous assumptions is that high speed rail can be implemented in stages, progressively
connecting regional cities along the line (in the same way that the national highway network continues to be rolled out,
progressively linking more regional cities with dual carriage highways). This enables the benefits to be accrued as each section
of the line opens. This in turn means that each section can be managed as a separate project with its own business case, which
progressively accumulate for the full high speed line.

The new approach to implementing high speed rail between Sydney and Melbourne is based on:

=  Progressively upgrading the existing line with new sections of high speed capable main line parallel to the existing line.

= Introducing innovative new high speed passenger and fast freight trains. These would operate on both the new high
speed sections (where available) and the existing main line (where new sections were not yet available).

=  Progressively expanding and accelerating both passenger and freight services, as new sections of high speed line are
commissioned.

= Introducing very fast trains (top speeds above 250 km/h) only when the first full corridor is completed and electrified
(Sydney — Canberra). However all new high speed sections would be designed from the outset to accommodate these
trains.

= Continuing to operate local passenger and slower industrial freight trains on the existing main line. This would enable
continued provision of passenger service to existing stations in intermediate cities, as well as freight service to industrial
sidings and yards between Sydney and Melbourne.

START NOw

The timing of the proposed high speed rail network will depend on the availability of finance, growth rates in population and the
economy, future technology developments, the need to decarbonise Australia’s transport sector, and other factors. However, it
should be possible to complete the Sydney — Melbourne corridor between 2022 and 2050, and the Sydney — Brisbane corridor
between 2030 and 2060.

Stage 1 of the Sydney — Melbourne plan (the Wentworth Deviation to straighten the alignment between Macarthur and
Mittagong) is recommended as the logical place to start. Provided there was a sense of urgency, construction of the new rail
infrastructure could commence as soon as 2024-5, and be completed by 2028-30. This provides time for the acquisition of the
complementary rollingstock and other steps required to launch new services.

Considerable investigation of this part of the corridor has already been undertaken. However, planned urban development in the
vicinity of Picton threatens to create difficulties, unless the corridor is protected without further delay.

The important issue is to make a start with concrete “no regrets” investments which can demonstrate a pathway forward. This
is how many countries have implemented high speed rail and reaped the benefits. It should not be beyond Australia’s imagination
or capability.

RECOMMENDATIONS

The High Speed Rail Authority:

* |Immediately start the planning for the staged introduction of high speed rail in the Sydney — Melbourne corridor as
outlined in this report.

=  Accelerate the necessary corridor protection measures needed to ensure rail access into the capital cities, particularly
the entry into Sydney from the South-West. This is essential if high speed services between Sydney and Melbourne and
also between Sydney and Wollongong are to become a reality.

=  Continue to examine the Sydney — Newcastle corridor. Previously identified as the highest priority for investment, it
should proceed when sufficient funds are available. However, meaningful investment in this corridor is likely to involve
atunnel from Sydney (probably Olympic Park) to the Central Coast (probably Gosford). When funded, this project could
proceed in parallel with the proposed Stage 1 of the Sydney — Melbourne corridor.
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says that connectivity within systems of secondary cities is crucial to lifting the performance, prosperity, and development of
regions and nations across the world*.

Cities are becoming increasingly interlinked and dependent upon each other to boost trade, investment and local economic
development. Systems of secondary cities are exerting a greater influence upon the economic development of nations and larger
geographic regions. This is why megaregions are increasingly becoming the focus for planning and co-ordination of economic
development and settlement policy.

The Cities Alliance argues that governments should support the development of systems of cities. A secondary city’s
performance is largely shaped by the level, quality and global orientation of its connectivity with other cities. Therefore,
strengthening a city’s connections supports the development of the local regional economy by facilitating the trade of goods and
services within regional and international value chains.

Economic modelling by NIEIR®> shows that implementation of faster rail connections in Victoria will lead to a 5% increase
economic activity. This study confirms that growth in a ‘system of cities’ outperforms growth concentrated in a single megacity
(Melbourne), primarily because urban sprawl creates a drag on economic growth in the megacity.

SGS Economics ® argues that creating an Australian Eastern
Seaboard Megaregion would enable Australia to respond to
growing global competition and managing a growing population.
A megaregion is a set of cities integrated with each other and their
surrounding hinterlands, where labour and capital can be moved
around at a very low cost.

Forming a south east Australia megaregion will boost our
economic productivity and innovative capacity, and enable us to
better-compete in international markets. It would allow
population dispersion to relieve our congested cities, help regional
activation, improve housing affordability, reduce inequality,
promote economic growth and job creation, and improve
liveability.

The economic benefits of regionalisation in Australia will only be achieved if regional cities are well-connected, particularly to the
capital cities in each state. Attracting people and businesses to regional cities is very dependent on the city’s accessibility to the
larger population and markets in capital cities.

INCREASE CONNECTIVITY

As the economic connectivity between regional cities grows, there will be more demand for people to commute to work in major
cities, for tourists to access regional attractions, and for business travel to sites in the region. In addition, there will be more
demand for local travel for shopping, access to services and gatherings.

High speed lines increase economic activity at intermediate stops along the line, stimulating growth in population and services,
making them more attractive places to live. In turn, this creates demand for local and long-distance travel services, particularly
commuting services to the main centres on the line. Awell-developed “feeder” network extends the benefits into the surrounding
area, becoming an important factor for local development within regional areas.

“ Cities Alliance (2019), Connecting Systems of Secondary Cities, UNOPS
> NIEIR (2020), National Institute of Economic and Industry Research: Economic impact assessment of fast regional rail on Victoria.
¢ SGS Economics & Planning (2020), Reimagining Australia’s South-East: Prepared for The Committee for Melbourne
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Internationally it is now recognised that high speed rail dominates travel over distances between 150 km and 8oo km (up to four
hours travel time), where it has clear advantages over car and air travel. It then competes with air travel for distances up to about
1200 km, after which air travel dominates. Significantly reducing the need for air travel will reduce the demand for additional
airports, for example in Melbourne and Brisbane.

It is expected that high speed rail has the potential to dominate regional travel demand in Australia. The majority of regional
cities are more than 150kms from a capital city, and many are more than 150kms from their nearest regional city. If faster rail
connections were available, then it is highly likely that rail will become the preferred travel option to regional cities, especially for
these longer trips. This will reduce the need to upgrade highways, which are currently the only viable option for most of these
trips currently.

Therefore the rollout of high speed rail should be planned with this eventuality in mind. This suggests that high speed rail should
supplement the existing conventional rail network. It should be rolled out in stages that progressively connect regional cities with
faster services to capital cities, in much the same way as the national road network has been upgraded with multi-lane dual
carriage motorways.
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*  New, separate high speed lines between Brisbane-Sydney-Melbourne, with high speed links to Canberra, the Gold Coast
and Wollongong. These would handle high speed passenger inter-capital and inter-regional passenger trains, as well as
fast freight trains which would operate mainly at night.

*  The existing slower-speed conventional rail lines between Brisbane-Sydney and Sydney-Melbourne, used primarily for
heavy freight trains and regional passenger trains;

*  Mixed passenger and freight lines to connect regional cities away from the main corridor, such as to the Hunter Valley,
Toowoomba, Ballarat, Bendigo, Griffith etc;

= Dedicated freight lines for the bulk carriage of goods and material to terminals or ports; and

=  Passenger-only suburban heavy rail and metro lines in the capital cities for high-intensity passenger movements.

CREATE AN INTEGRATED NETWORK

High speed rail lines should integrate with existing lines where advantageous to provide greater operational flexibility. This allows
high speed trains to extend their coverage by continuing on the conventional rail network. It allows a mix of passenger and freight
services to use the high speed line with cross-overs to the conventional line. And it opens the possibility of new types of services,
such as fast freight that cross-over from the conventional line to use the high speed line between cities.

INCORPORATE HIGH SPEED RAIL INTO THE EXISTING NETWORK

Japan was the first country to introduce a new era of passenger rail transport, when it opened its first Shinkansen line between
Tokyo and Osaka in 1962. France was the next country to introduce high speed rail in 1984. Since then around 20 countries have
embraced or are introducing this new approach to rail. Thisincludes countries with much lower per capita incomes than Australia
(like Turkey, China, India, Indonesia and Morocco) and those with lower populations and smaller cities than Australia, like Finland,
Portugal and Denmark.

Japan's existing rail system in the 1960's was an antiquated, narrow gauge (three foot six inch gauge) network. Consequently,
Japan opted for a separate, standard gauge system for its first high speed line. The network has since been extended in a number
of stages to about 3000 km.

Source: International High Speed Rail Association

11

20 of 62



FOI 23-265 - Document 16
AN IMPLEMENTATION PLAN FOR HIGH SPEED RAIL

“Mini-Shinkansen” trains have a narrower loading gauge allowing services

t0 extend to f i thouah at | 4 Kawasaki has developed an experimental Shinkansen train which can
o extend to former narrow-gauge lines, although at lower speeds

switch between standard and narrow gauges"

While a few countries (e.g. Taiwan) have built completely separate high speed systems, the more common approach, has been
to integrate high speed rail to varying extents with their existing regional or long-distance rail networks. This includes countries
like France, Spain, Germany, ltaly, the UK, and now in Japan. High speed trains in these countries typically utilise existing tracks
to access stations in major cities, and to reach destinations beyond the high speed rail networks. These trains have therefore
been designed to operate with multiple signalling and electrical power supply systems, switching seamlessly between them as
required.

Spain has gone even further, building dual-powered high speed trains which can operate both on electrified and non-electrified
tracks, and even change gauge between standard and broad-gauge tracks without stopping. Even Japan has utilised such
approaches to extend its Shinkansen network to narrow gauge lines.

Cologne Main Station, showing a mix of high speed trains in the foreground, Alstom’s new 250 km/h high speed trains for Sweden will also be able to
and local and regional trains in the background" operate on existing rail lines in Sweden, Denmark and Norway"
Talgo 250 Dual in Spain Spain’s latest High speed Rail project in Extramadura is part of a multi-stage
Note the supplementary diesel power behind the electric locomotive" corridor upgrade"
12
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added, allowing average speeds to be increased over time. These would have speeds comparable to fast intermodal
freight trains, and operate primarily at night, thus avoiding conflicts with the faster high speed and very fast trains. They
could share motive power with fast freight trains, which would be hybrid, renewable locomotives capable of utilising 25
kV AC power where available, and hydrogen plus rechargeable battery power where not.

MiX FREIGHT AND PASSENGERS

In many European countries it is also common to mix freight trains with both conventional and high speed trains on the same
tracks. Typically, passenger trains operate at up to 200 km/h on such shared tracks, with freight trains operating up to 2130 km/h
or even faster. Only where traffic densities are very high are completely separate high speed tracks justified. The integration of
freight and passenger services occurs even on the newest lines, such as the Gotthard Base Tunnel in Switzerland.

The Gotthart Base Tunnel has been designed to handle high speed trains, regional passenger services and up to 260 freight trains per day*"

ENHANCE FREIGHT SERVICES

Whilst passenger trains capture the attention, it is freight that “pays the bills” for most railways. Rail freight tended to lose mode
share to trucks as roads have improved and trucks have increased in size and axle-weight. However, rail freight is now beginning
to benefit from significant innovation, including:

= Automated shunting and automated uncoupling in yards;
= Automated loading / unloading of containers, such as in Sydney’s new Moorebank Intermodal terminal;
= Bi-mode locomotives, such as the Eurogooo, which can operate on both electrified and non-electrified lines, and new
locomotives powered by batteries / hydrogen;
= New types of trains which carry trucks on specialised rollingstock which can allow whole trainloads to be loaded and
unloaded in as little as 45 minutes; and
*  High speed freight trains which utilise high speed lines at night and carry high-value parcels and other freight.

A new “Rolling Motorway"” route using French Modalohr wagons opens Germany’s Cargo-Beamer is building a plant to produce 500 of its specialised

viii

wagons p.a. as new intermodal routes open in Europe, such as Rostock —
Kaldenkirchen™

between Montpellier and Paris
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Stadler “Eurodual” Locomotive has 2800 KW using diesel, and up to 7,000 KW Digital Automatic Coupling systems are being developed in Europe, along
using electric power” with driverless shunting engines, to reduce terminal costs*

These innovations can potentially cut costs in terminals as well as transit times by rail, making it more competitive with trucks for
high-value and time-sensitive freight, such as the overnight freight market between Sydney and Melbourne. For example, Swiss
National Railways has begun trials with automated uncoupling as a way to reduce “last mile” costs for rail freight.

ADAPT TO AUSTRALIAN CONDITIONS

While the distances between our major cities (Sydney — Melbourne; Sydney — Brisbane) are relatively long compared to inter-city
distances common in Europe, Japan and some other countries, our topography is generally less challenging than in countries such
as Switzerland, Italy, Japan, Taiwan, Turkey etc, all of which have all implemented significant high speed rail networks.

Australia also generally has relatively low train densities compared to the situation in Europe or countries like Japan. This means
it makes sense to operate rail as a mixed service accommodating both passenger and freight traffic on the same tracks where
possible. There are however a number of places where this can be difficult:

=  Sydney, Melbourne and Brisbane all have extensive suburban rail and metro systems which can make access for longer
distance passenger and freight trains an issue.

= There are also some sections of main lines with relatively high freight traffic densities, for example the Main South Line
between Macarthur and Moss Vale, or the Main Northern Line between Port Waratah and Maitland.

Fortunately, some improvements have already been made to overcome these potential conflicts, for example with dedicated
freight lines into Sydney. In addition, conflicts in the entry to Sydney’s Central Station from the south-west (the route for trains
from Canberra and Melbourne) will be reduced with completion of the metro line to Bankstown, which will free-up track capacity
between Wolli Creek and Redfern. The rail approach to Brisbane’s Roma Street station from the South will also be freed up with
completion of the Cross-River Rail project.

Some simple track work near Erskineville Station will allow high speed trains The new Cross-River Rail project will relieve congestion on the Merivale
to enter Central Station when the metro to Sydenham is completed*' Bridge, allowing future high speed trains to enter Brisbane CBD*"
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Ultimately some enhancements to access routes into Sydney and Melbourne will be needed to accommodate higher volumes of
high speed trains and new high speed rail stations. As explained later, this will mean some tunnels into a new Sydney high speed

station (probably at Olympic Park) and a new tunnel into Melbourne’s Southern Cross station. However, these investments will
not be needed initially. Instead the key will be to begin by upgrading the main lines between the cities, to provide both faster

alignments and in some cases, added capacity.
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THE SYDNEY-MELBOURNE CORRIDOR

The greatest demand for faster rail services is in the Sydney-Melbourne corridor. Therefore the rest of this paper focuses on this
corridor. This section provides an overview of the current conventional rail line and an outline of the proposed high speed line.

THE EXISTING CONVENTIONAL RAIL LINE

CURRENT ALIGNMENT

The current main interstate line is double-tracked between Sydney and Melbourne, except for the section between Junee and
Albury. Current train volumes are within capacity limits.

Philip Laird’s paper to the recent Ausrail conference’ provides an outline of the history of the current Sydney — Canberra —
Melbourne railway, and its current condition. The original line was modified mostly in the early 20" century to reduce gradients,
which had become an impediment to the steam engines of the day. This involved making the line wind around a large number
of tight radius curves, for example in climbing from Sydney to Mittagong, crossing the main Dividing Range between Goulburn
and Yass, or overcoming the hills between Cootamundra and Junee by using the Bethungra Spiral.

At the time rail transport was far more advanced than road transport, and rail was able to haul much heavier loads and still be far
faster than road. However, in the decades since then rail investment was neglected. In contrast, the Federal Government
effectively subsidised the creation of the modern, dual carriageway Hume Highway between Sydney and Melbourne, enabling
driving time between the two capitals to be reduced to nine hours, and providing a shorter and faster route for trucks than for
trains.

Despite numerous studies and reports over the years, including the 2001 ARTC national track audit and the 2013 AECOM High
Speed Rail study, nothing significant has been done to address the steam era alignments on our most important interstate rail
corridor. As a result, travel times by rail for both passenger and freight trains have barely improved since the extension of
standard gauge tracks from Albury to Melbourne some 60 years ago.

The rail line to Canberra is similarly disadvantaged by poor alignments, both between Menangle and Goulburn and between
Goulburn and Canberra. The average speed achieved is only 7okm/h, making rail significantly slower than driving or coach
transport.

The route through Molonglo Gorge may be scenic, but it means trains between Sydney and Canberra are extremely slow and uncompetitive with other options

While air transport has greatly expanded in the last half-century, this mainly benefits residents of Sydney and Melbourne, our
two largest cities, and does little for those living in other cities and towns in the corridor. Furthermore, new airport capacity (new

7 Philip Laird (2022): “Bringing the Melbourne to Sydney Railway up to Standard”, Ausrail Conference, December 2022.
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airports or additional runways) in Melbourne and Brisbane will be needed in the future unless rail is significantly upgraded to take
a meaningful role in interstate passenger travel.

Similarly, while road transport has improved, it is unlikely to improve much in the future and in contrast will suffer from increasing
traffic congestion. As a result, the over-concentration of our population in our two largest cities will continue to worsen, with
significant economic, social and environmental consequences. If improved rail infrastructure is not built, the only alternative to
more highway congestion would be to duplicate the existing Hume and Pacific Highways, a massively expensive and
environmentally damaging alternative.

Truck volumes have increased notably on the Hume and Pacific Highways Sydney’s second airport will increase the need additional airport capacity in
with adverse safety and environmental consequences Brisbane and Melbourne if the rail system is not upgraded

However, upgrading rail to a similar standard now found overseas would significantly improve the accessibility of other cities and
towns in South-East Australia, facilitating a more sustainable population distribution in the long term and improving the
economics generally of inter-city transport. . It will also reduce the need for more airports and highways. The challenge is to find
a way to achieve this over three decades, just as the Hume Highway was progressively turned from a goat track to a motorway.

CURRENT RAIL SERVICES

It is important to understand the current use of the existing rail network, as well as the potential for growth, before proposing
upgrades.

Current Passenger Services
Whilst the number of longer-distance passenger services on the main interstate corridor south of Sydney has declined from
previous times, there have been increases in local services from both Sydney and Melbourne. Current passenger services include:

*  Twice daily Melbourne — Sydney XPT services in each direction, one during the day and one at night. These both make
numerous stops to service local cities and towns on the route, and consequently are relatively slow (11 hours between
the capitals, compared to around g hours driving time and 1.5 hours flying time terminal to terminal, or 3 hours city centre
—city centre). These services are due to be replaced with new rollingstock but service patterns will be little changed.

*  Three-times daily Sydney — Canberra services in each direction, taking between 250 — 270 minutes for the nominal 300
km trip. These are significantly slower and less frequent than current bus and car travel times (180 — 220 minutes; hourly
or better bus services) or air services (18pprox.. 30 — 45 minutes flying time; 120 minutes city centre — city centre).

*  Around 20 daily Sydney-Moss Vale local passenger services in each direction (with a couple of services extending beyond
to Goulburn or southern NSW). These services are again very slow compared to driving, and involve a change at
Campbelltown/Macarthur to suburban electric services.

= Approximately 4 daily Melbourne — Albury return services. These have recently been upgraded to standard gauge Vlocity
trains. They take around 4 hours for the 300km journey, somewhat slower than driving (3-4 hours from Melbourne CBD
depending on traffic).

= Additional services between Melbourne , Seymour, Wangaratta and Shepparton, the latter branching off at Seymour.
These are also being upgraded with new Vlocity trains.
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Current Freight Services

* Interstate intermodal trains (e.g. Sydney — Melbourne; Sydney — Adelaide / Perth; Melbourne — Brisbane). There are
around 4-5 of these daily in each direction in the northern part of the corridor (between Sydney and Cootamundra),
somewhat fewer south of that point as the trains for Adelaide and Perth divert off the main south. Most are long (up to
18oom in length), heavy (up to 5,000 tonnes) container trains, but with some non-container traffic such as automobiles
carried in specialised wagons. They are typically powered by 2-3 high-power modern diesel-electric locomotives capable
of 115 km/h and operate on reasonably fast schedules given the current track conditions, typically taking 12-13 hours
between Sydney and Melbourne terminals. However, they are not time competitive with interstate trucks, which take
around g — 10 hours. These trains carry international and domestic containers, and generally convey somewhat less
time-sensitive freight than that carried by road, which handles almost all of the overnight freight market.

* Domesticintermodal trains serving intermediate terminals such as the Ettamogah Rail Hub near Albury, or various other
locations such as Griffith and Goulburn. These generally convey either general containerised freight, or specialised
containerised freight, such as Barley from southern NSW to the Brewery at Minto in SW Sydney; or export timber from
Goulburn to Port Botany.

* Interstate steel trains between major steel product production centres and specialised terminals. There are typically two
of these each way per day between Moss Vale and Melbourne, one which connects to Port Kembla steelworks via the
Moss Vale Unanderra link, and one via Sydney.

=  Grain trains, including wheat, rice and other grains, mainly from southern NSW and the Riverina to Port Kembla in NSW
or to Geelong / Portland in Victoria. Depending on the grain season and time of year this can require up to 5 or more
grain trains in each direction daily on parts of the Sydney —Melbourne corridor. There is also some domestic grain hauled
by rail to flour mills at Maldon and Enfield.

= Limestone, Mineral and Coal trains. These operate mainly from the limestone mine at Marulan to the cement works at
Berrima and Maldon to the Port Kembla steelworks; from gravel mines also near Marulan to various sidings in Sydney;
and from the Tahmoor coking coal mine to Port Kembla steelworks.

= Cement, waste and other industrial trains. These include cement and clinker daily trains from Berrima to Sydney and
Maldon and return, as well as thrice daily in each direction containerised waste trains from Sydney (Clyde) to the waste
disposal site at the Woodlawn Mine at Tarago on the Goulburn — Canberra line. Other industrial traffic includes timber
hauled south from the Albury area to Melbourne.

CURRENT TRAFFIC PATTERNS

Total rail traffic therefore varies significantly in composition and volume both at different places along the main interstate route;
at different times of day/night; and at different times of the day, week and year.

The Maldon to Moss Vale section in NSW is the most critical part of the corridor as it:

*  hasthe highest overall volume of trains (approximately go per day)

* includes a wide mix of traffic types from slow industrial freight trains through to express passenger trains

*  has continuous 1.3% gradients against southbound trains

* includes industrial sidings and junctions to the cement works and Flour mill at Maldon; the Tahmoor coal mine; the
cement works and grain silos at Berrima and the junction to the Moss Vale — Unanderra line at Moss Vale.
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The proposed deviation from Bowning to Frampton would also eliminate a very windy section of track and significantly reduce the distance travelled.
An alternative via Cootamundra would also benefit Sydney-Perth freight trains.

These sections include some of the slowest and most winding sections of the existing line. The planned deviations would
reduce the rail distance between Sydney and Melbourne from g6okm to gookm, and enable significantly higher speeds for both
passenger and freight. These initial sections are also seen as the potential first stages in the creation of a new high speed
railway between Sydney, Canberra and Melbourne.

Laird has also proposed the introduction of tilt trains will further speed up longer distance passenger services on this route. A
tilt train — a train designed to negotiate curves more quickly — could travel at more than 200 km per hour between Sydney and
Melbourne on an upgraded alignment.

POTENTIAL FOR GROWTH

There is substantial potential for growth in rail volumes, both freight and passenger, especially if measures are undertaken to
reduce travel times by rail to be competitive with road (in the near term) and even with air travel on some corridors in the longer
term. For example:

= The completion of the Ettamogah Rail Hub near Albury and the commencement of operations at the Sydney Moorebank
Intermodal Terminal (with fully automated loading / unloading of containers) is leading to increased volumes of rail
freight in the corridor. For example, Qube has recently announced the purchase of an additional 12 high-powered
locomotives to increase its Intermodal Sydney — Melbourne services™.

*  The completion of the Inland Rail between Melbourne and Brisbane is expected to see a significant increase in rail freight
between Junee and Melbourne.

»  Areduction of rail passenger travel times between Sydney and Melbourne to g hours would make it competitive with car
or coach travel, and would likely lead to a significant increase in demand.

» A reduction in travel time between Sydney and Canberra to 3 hours would enable rail to be competitive with car and
coach travel, and likewise lead to substantially increased demand and the need for more frequent services.

*  Further reductions in travel times in the corridor would generate additional demand, enabling additional services to be
operated, as well as improvements in efficiency.

* https://www.railjournal.com/fleet/qube-orders-locomotives-from-progress-rail/
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BUILD IN STAGES TO A MASTER PLAN

A careful assessment of both existing conditions and traffic on the Main South Rail Line, together with an understanding of how
high speed has typically been introduced overseas, suggests that a staged approach to high speed rail is needed to meet
Australian conditions.

This should begin with selected infrastructure improvements, coupled with the introduction of new types of rollingstock to take
advantage of this and to steadily reduce travel times, improve competitiveness, and generate demand for higher frequency
services.

This section sets out how this could be achieved. Five stages of the complete upgrade on the Sydney — Canberra — Melbourne
corridor are suggested. These will eventually accommodate a trebling of rail traffic in the corridor, and enable the full range of
services to operate, from high speed passenger trains and fast freight services, to local passenger services and industrial freight.

A similar approach can be applied for the Sydney — Brisbane corridor, leading to the ultimate completion of a high speed Rail
system between Melbourne and Brisbane. High speed connections to the Gold Coast, Canberra and Wollongong, and upgraded
connections to the Sunshine Coast, Geelong, Toowoomba, the Hunter Valley and other regions will greatly facilitate both freight
and passenger movement in the megaregion.

This in turn will stimulate and support a less concentrated population settlement pattern in South-Eastemn Australia, with wider

economic, social and environmental benefits that go well beyond the immediate improvements in transport efficiency.

PROPOSED STAGES

Itis proposed that infrastructure enhancements and rollingstock improvements should be combined in five distinct, manageable
stages that progressively reduce travel times in the Sydney — Melbourne — Canberra corridor.

Staged Infrastructure and Service Enhancements

Stage Key Infrastructure Key Service Enhancements Fastest Fastest Passenger Services (Hrs)
Enhancements Freight
(hrs)*
Sydney - Sydney - Melbourne | Sydney -
Melbourne | Melbourne | - Canberra | Canberra
Now 13 11 10.5 4.2
1 Glenfield - Mittagong New High Speed Tilt Trains 12 9 8.5 3.0

New Fast Commuter Trains
New Sleeper Trains
Bi-mode locomotives

First Hybrid Fast Freights 11 8 7 2.2
Additional Tilt Trains
Additional Commuter Trains

(Wentworth Deviation)

2 Goulburn - Yass
Gunning - Canberra

3 Wagga —Albury Duplication | Additional Tilt Trains 10 6 5 2.0
Mittagong — Goulburn Additional Fast Freights
Broadmeadows — Seymour

4 Seymour —Albury First High speed Non-Tilt 9 5 4 1.7
Yass —Junee Passenger Trains

Additional Fast Freights

5 Albury —Junee Additional High speed 8 4 3 1.5
Melbourne Entry Passenger Trains
Sydney Entry Additional Fast Freights

(*) Most of these would operate it night, when high speed passenger services are not operating
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ROLLINGSTOCK UPGRADES

The table below shows an indicative plan of how new rollingstock should be introduced to support the growing services, and the
way in which older rollingstock can be cascaded to other services as additional high speed trains are introduced.

Stage New Trains (a) Example of Allocation Notes on Re-Allocations
Rollingstock
1 5 X Bi-mode High Speed Talgo 250 Dual Used on Sydney - Canberra and NSW Next Gen regional trains re-allocated to
Tilt Trains Sydney- Melbourne services additional Sydney-Melbourne day trains and to
2 X Night Sleeper Trains Night-Jet Sleeper Shares locomotives with Fast other routes
Trains (Europe) Freights
10 X Bi-mode Freight/Pass | Eurodual Allows additional fast Intermodal Bi-Mode locos included in 3-unit consists with
Locos Electric/Diesel Freight Trains Daily existing diesels, allowing additional industrial /
intermodal freight servicestobe run.
4 X Fast Commuter Train AlstomilLint Sydney-Southern Highland fast
commuter services
2 10 X Bi-mode High Speed Talgo 250 Dual Additional Syd- Canberra, Sydney- | Displaced Tilt Trains allocated to additional
Tilt Trains Melbourne plus new Canberra - Sydney - Melbourne Services
Melbourne Services
20 X Bi-mode Fast Freight | Eurodual or other Additional Fast Freight Intermodal | Any diesels displaced re-allocated to intermodal
Locomotives Bi-Mode Locos Services /industrial freight services on existing
Melbourne - Sydney line, Inland Rail etc
6 X Fast Commuter Train AlstomiLint Canberra-Goulburn/Yass fast

commuter services
More Sydney-Southern Highlands

3 5 X Very Fast Trains Many options Replace Tilt Trains and provide Tilt Trains previously used on Sydney -
available increased frequencies on Sydney - | Canberra Services re-allocated to Sydney -
Canberra Services. Southern Highlands, Melbourne - Albury and
Melbourne — Shepparton Services
50 X Hydrogen - Electric Under Additional Sydney — Melbourne New Hydrogen-Electric Locos would displace
Freight Locos Development Fast Freight Services diesels in consists, which be re-allocated to a
wide variety of conventional freight services
12 X Fast Commuter AlstomiLint Melbourne-Seymour/Shepparton Vlocity Trains re-allocated to other Corridors in
Trains fast commuter services Victoria
More for existing services
4 10 X Very Fast Trains Many Options Melbourne - Albury via Tilt trains displaced from Victorian services re-
Available Shepparton, additional Sydney - allocated to Canberra — Melbourne / Goulburn /
Canberra and Sydney - Junee fast Yass and other Services
services.
10 X High Speed EMU Many Options Melbourne - Shepparton, Sydney — | New type of service.
Trains Available Southern Highlands Fast
Commuter Services
100 X Hydrogen - Electric | Likely to be various | Fast Freightand other Freight Older Diesels would be being retired and
Freight Locos options available Services replaced
5 10 X Very Fast Trains Many Options Melbourne - Sydney Interstate Tilt Trains re-allocated to Brisbane -Sydney and
Available Express Services other corridors
200 X Hydrogen - Electric | Likely to bevarious | Fast Freightand other Freight Older Diesels would be being retired and
Freight Locos options available Services replaced

The plan is based on the assumption that older rollingstock would be replaced after typical service lives of 35 years, beginningin
the next few years with NSW current fleet of XPT, Endeavour and Xplorer trains and remaining loco-hauled sets in Victoria,
followed in the 2030’s with retirement of older Vlocity trains in Victoria. Older diesel-electric locos used in freight service would
begin to be replaced by Electrodual type locomotives in the next few years, followed by a new generation of hydrogen — electric
locomotives, probably from the late 2020’s. The objective would be to fully decarbonise rail by 2050 through use of pure electric
or hybrid electric power, using green electricity / green hydrogen energy sources.

SERVICE UPGRADES

The proposed upgrades to the Sydney-Melbourne line will progressively create sections of parallel double-track rail corridors for
high speed and conventional services. This will permit the introduction of high speed passenger services, specialised fast freights
and sleeper services (running mostly overnight), an increase in lower speed regional and local passenger services, plus more
double-stack container and heavy industrial freight trains.

Each new section will increase the range and number of services offered. When the full corridor has been upgraded, the high
speed passenger and fast freight services will operate either exclusively or mostly on the high speed tracks. The lower speed
existing conventional line will cater mostly for regional passenger services, industrial traffic and heavy double-stack container
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Shepparton and Wangaratta. The northern Melbourne HSR station at Campbellfield would allow connections to other
stations on the suburban line as well as destinations such as Melbourne Airport via the Suburban Rail Loop.

= A new high speed line between Albury and Junee. Together with the entries into Sydney and Melbourne, this will
complete the whole corridor between the two capitals.

=  Complete electrification of the high speed line. Any sections of the line not electrified would have this completed,
allowing operation by purely electric trains (though these would have dual voltage 25 kV AC/ 1.5 kV DC capability).

= New Very Fast Train services. New, fully electric trains capable of perhaps 320 km/h top speeds (or above) can be
introduced between Sydney and Melbourne when the full corridor is completed and electrified at 25 KVAC (except for
some tracks into Melbourne and Sydney). The hybrid trains previously used on this line would be cascaded to other lines
(such as Sydney — Brisbane, Sydney — Orange etc).
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FUNDING AND STRATEGIC DIRECTION

The Australian Government has to provide the strategy and predominant funding of the capital costs of high speed rail. Some
funding will come from States and the ACT Government, and rail operators should be able to fund their own rollingstock.

The objective is to use high speed rail as a lever to increase the population and economic performance of regions outside the
major capital cities. The intention is to balance growth between regional and capital cities, rather than continue to grow our
capital as mega-cities on a global scale. Only the Australian Government can provide the leadership and strategic planning to
implement this vision.

It is expected the new High Speed Rail Authority (HSRA) will provide lead the strategy and planning for high speed rail. The high
speed rail network will become national infrastructure, which means that the HSRA has to manage the planning and
implementation of the network and services. This includes specifying services to be delivered; balancing investment across the
states and nation; ensuring services are safe, secure and sustainable; and promoting a transport network that is efficient and
productive.

Redirecting growth into regional areas has to be a federal policy supported by the relevant state and territory governments. High
speed rail is essential infrastructure for regional cities which will benefit all Australians, but requires massive investment that only
the Australian Government can provide. In addition, a long-term commitment to the success of regionalisation is required. The
economic viability of high speed rail in Australia is based on the benefits of regionalisation, which means that the investment will
take a long time to recoup.

SEPARATION OF OWNERSHIP, INFRASTRUCTURE MANAGEMENT AND RAIL OPERATIONS

Given the high capital cost of rail infrastructure, it is generally agreed that the “below rail” fixed infrastructure should be in public
hands, and that the rolling stock and operations should be in private hands or some form of Public Private Partnership. The 2013
AECOM study adopted this principle in its recommendations for the governance of a future high speed rail system:

Infrastructure Ownership Joint Ventures

While it is recognised that the bulk of the funds for high speed rail infrastructure will have to come from the Australian
Government, the state governments have a role to play in providing the land for the rail corridor and in capturing land value uplift
resulting from rail infrastructure investment.

It is therefore recommended that a joint financing arrangement be entered into for each section of high speed track. The relative
equity in the joint venture should reflect the relative equity provided by each partner, which may vary over time depending on
future investment requirements.

The funding would be provided to the Infrastructure Manager to build the rail infrastructure. Operating returns from the
Infrastructure Manager to the financing joint venture would then be split between the partners based on their relative equity in
the financing joint venture.

Infrastructure Management

It is proposed the railway track and infrastructure for the new network should be managed by a new government agency. It is
critical that a high standard of track quality is built and maintained in order to support high speed services. This means that
management of the network’s infrastructure (which crosses state borders) should be under the control of a single national agency.

The Infrastructure Manager will also be responsible for the technical standards for high speed rail. Technical compatibility
between the existing rail system and the high speed rail system will be required to allow trains and services to operate on both
networks.

As this is a new network, the agency should be responsible for building and maintaining the network from the outset. It should
enter access arrangements for use of land easements from state governments. It would also be responsible for the control of
trains using the network. This includes managing the scheduling, timetabling, pathing and control of trains using its network.
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One option is to extend the role of Australian Rail Track Corporation (ARTC) to include ownership and management of the new
network. The ARTC already provides a single point of access for the Interstate Rail Network, the standard gauge interstate track
across Australia, which it either owns or leases from state governments. The Interstate Rail Network is predominantly used by
freight services), along with some long-distance and regional passenger services.

However it is recommended that a new government-owned body be established. Australia does not have a depth of experience
in building and operating high speed rail. Therefore the agency will have to draw on experience from countries running high
speed rail networks. Building and operating high speed rail is also very different from the conventional rail network. Therefore
separation of roles between the two networks will allow the high speed infrastructure manager to establish itself without the
constraints of simultaneously managing a conventional rail network.

Train Operators

Train operators are licensed to provide services using the rail network infrastructure. Train Operators should have complete
control of their business and train operations within the standards and operational constraints of the high speed network.

It is expected that there will be three train operators offering passenger services using high speed rail, and potentially others
offering specialised services.

* |tis recommended that the Australian Government establish a government-owned carrier to offer fast commuter and
long-distance services using the high speed line (and the conventional line during the construction of the various stages
of the high speed line). This carrier would own and operate new high speed rolling stock purchased for these services.

* |t is expected the current state operators will use the high speed line within their home state, with some services
continuing out of their home state.

= |tis possible private sector operators may offer specialised services e.g. long distance sleeper services.

In addition it is likely that freight operators could use some sections of the high speed line.

REGULATORY AUTHORITIES

Train Operators should be subject to the economic, safety and customer service regulations set by the existing regulatory
authorities for rail services.

Safety

The Office of the National Rail Safety Regulator (ONRSR) is the current body that has responsibility for regulatory oversight of
rail safety in every Australian state and territory. Its objectives are to encourage and enforce safe railway operations and promote
and improve national rail safety. The new high speed line would come under the responsibility of this body.

Access Rights and Access Charges

The Australian Competition and Consumer Commission (ACCC) is the national body with responsibility for access to the Interstate
Rail Network nationally and the Hunter Valley Network in NSW. It is proposed the new high speed line should fall under the
ACCC. This means the new high speed line should be a “declared service” under current regulatory arrangements for rail
infrastructure.

The issue of Access Charges is a critical one. It is not expected that above rail operators would be able to generate sufficient
profits to pay for the expensive below rail infrastructure, and there are relatively few rail lines in the world where this occurs. The
same is true for highways, where road users receive the benefits of enormous government investment in what is considered
national infrastructure.

Rail access charges need to be realistic or they will quickly make any rail services uneconomic, and hence nullify the whole
objective of the investment. Access charges are a contentious issue, even in Europe with much higher population densities and
greater history of using rail, especially for passenger services. The EU has taken the view that governments have a major role in
developing a balance between road and rail modes. This has been critical for economic development of Europe, and will be in
Australia. Therefore a realistic approach to access charges will be needed in Australia.
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It is recommended that large-scale precinct development should be undertaken by a development authority with the power to
plan and manage the renewal project.

NEw URBAN DEVELOPMENT

The purpose of implementing high speed rail is to attract more people to live in regional cities. This requires planning and
development of new urban areas in or around a regional city with a high speed station. Planning schemes need to be prepared in
readiness for release in line with the expected increase in growth of the city.

ENHANCED LOGISTICS CAPABILITIES

Shifting freight from road to rail could have a major impact on regional economies. The high speed rail network will allow the
replacement of point-to-point distribution by long haul trucks with the hub and spoke movement by rail freight services and local
distribution by truck. This assumes major regional cities have inter-modal terminals capable of quickly moving trailers between
rail and trucks (cabs). This will make the movement of goods more efficient, opening opportunities to attract more
manufacturing into regional cities. New types of trains, such as the Modalohr trains in France or the CargoBeamer trains in
Germany, may make this a much more viable prospect than in the past.

ECONOMIC INCENTIVES

Consideration needs to be given to the provision of economic incentives to coincide with the opening of a high speed rail line into
aregional city. The opening of the line will make the city a more attractive place to live. This could be enhanced by the provision
of additional incentives to attract people, businesses or facilities, such as major hospitals or university campuses, to relocate the
city. The attraction of new businesses is particularly important to provide jobs for new residents. This will require longer planning
and potentially coordination across all levels of government.

LAND VALUE UPLIFT

It is well-known that land near a railway station attracts a premium. One study in China has shown that the development of an
HSR station contributes to about 3-13% of land value increase of the nearby area, and the effect is stronger if the land is closer to
the HSR station. As a result, China’s municipal governments have raised significant fiscal revenues through land sales to real
estate developers. They put the new HSR station in an undeveloped area, and bundle it with an urban development plan called
an “HSR new town”. There are at least 139 cities with at least one "HSR new town"” in China.

Capturing the upliftin land values is a state government responsibility. They should use their relevant infrastructure contributions
tax to capture the uplift in urban and precinct land values when the high speed rail is connected to a regional city. These funds
should be hypothecated to the station and high speed line infrastructure. However these arrangements need to be put in place
as soon as possible to prevent land speculation and the loss of any land value uplift to private individuals.
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While studies can support or dispel these hypotheses, they cannot be completely proven until tested with the actual
implementation of high speed rail. This creates a tremendous challenge when the benefits are largely dependent on connecting
Sydney and Melbourne, as in the approach adopted by the 2013 study.

This project encompasses both aspects needed to show that high speed rail (faster connections) promotes regional growth and
that it has to be implemented as an upgrade to the existing network:

= The new high speed track connects both Goulburn and Yass to Canberra, creating the opportunity for growth and
development in each city.

= This limited section of high speed track will be integrated with the existing network in order to add new services
(including ones that will extend beyond this track) and also improve the performance of existing services operating
between Goulburn and Yass.

NATIONAL INFRASTRUCTURE

The high speed line crosses the border between NSW and the ACT, which makes it national infrastructure. In fact, itis unlikely to
proceed without federal leadership, backed by both the ACT and NSW governments.

The primary justification for this section of line will be regional economic benefits from the growth of Canberra, but a significant
portion of its cost will be the rail infrastructure in NSW, and the primary source of funds will be the federal government. It is
therefore an opportunity for the Australian Government to lead the planning and implementation of this line. This would give
the Australian Government a similar role for national passenger services as it already has for national freight services.

NATIONAL RAIL CARRIER

Similar to the rail infrastructure, the new services using this line will cross state borders, opening the opportunity to create a
national rail carrier.

It is proposed that this new carrier should offer commuter services (between Goulburn and Yass to Canberra) and long distance
passenger services (to Sydney and also Melbourne) when the new line opens. The proposed long distance services would use the
conventional line to operate services to Sydney and Melbourne, and other major regional cities on the line.

New services from a national carrier will also enable improved rail technologies to be adopted. In particular, it is recommended
that new tilt trains using hydrogen fuel cells or batteries alone should be acquired. This will leverage the proven ability for tilt
trains to improve the performance of services on this route, plus seed the transition to renewable energy in the rail industry.

GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS

Despite being a small project, it requires a completely new high speed line to be built across two states. This creates the need for
new governance arrangements for passenger rail in Australia.

It is proposed the new high speed line should be owned and built by the Australian Government through land reservations owned
by the relevant state/territory governments. This arrangement is achieved by creating new financing joint ventures for each
section of track. It also creates the need for a new authority to build and manage the high speed rail infrastructure. This requires
skills and expertise that are not readily available in Australia. Therefore this section of line creates the need for new governance
arrangements to be put in place, that will carry on for all future stages.

RAIL STANDARDS

This section will ultimately carry very fast Canberra-Sydney and Canberra-Melbourne services, potentially operating at up to
350km/h. Therefore the track should be built to the appropriate standards to support these services. Not only does this require
the establishment of an Infrastructure Manager with the appropriate capabilities, but it is probable that the standards set for this
section of track will continue to be applied across all future sections when they are implemented.
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REGIONAL CITY DEVELOPMENT

This paper argues there is a range of development opportunities that should be undertaken in conjunction with the rollout of high
speed rail to aregional city. Goulburn and Yass can be used to explore and test ideas relevant for Australia’s regional cities. These
could then be used as a template for the development of other regional cities as they are connected to the high speed network.

TRANSPORT INTEGRATION

One of the objectives of this project is to create a mixed business and transport hub at the new high speed rail station in Canberra.
This will require precinct planning to establish the precinct and transport planning to integrate the station with the airport and
Canberra’s light rail network. Canberra already sets a very high standard for urban planning. This is an opportunity to build on
its existing structure to establish a major activity centre that will be core to Canberra’s long term growth.
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CASE STUDY - HIGH SPEED RAIL IN SPAIN

Spain provides an interesting comparison with Australia in the context of high speed rail from a number of perspectives:

=  With a population of 47 million spread across an area of 5o5,000 sq. km, its population density is comparable with South
- East Australia (28 million across approximately 200,000 sq.km. in the corridor between the Sunshine Coast and
Geelong, with 16 million of those living in the 20 largest urban centres.)

= Afairly urbanised population distribution. In Spain’s case, Madrid (population 3.2 million) and Barcelona (pop 1.6 million)
are the two largest cities, but there are 20 cities with 2022 populations above 250,000 people. In contrast, South-East
Australia is more dominated by Sydney, Melbourne and Brisbane, but with a further 7 cities with populations over
250,000.

= Distances in Spain are significant, and the topography is actually more challenging than in South-East Australia.

=  Spain had a moderate-sized rail system, complete with a gauge problem like Australia when talk of high speed rail began
around 1990, about the time Australia was beginning to discuss the Speedrail proposal for high speed rail in Australia.

Comparison of Population in Spain (2022) and South-East
Australia (2021)

However, unlike Australia, Spain decided to proceed with high speed rail. Its first line, from Madrid to Seville, a distance of 471km,

Spain’s Population Distribution (2022). 3

was opened in 1992. As Murray Hughes™ notes “The AVE line to Seville was born out of a need to cut journey times to Andalusia.
Any train travelling from Madrid to Cordoba had to negotiate a single-track bottleneck dominated by along climb over the steeply
graded Despenaperros pass, where sharp curves restricted speeds to no more than 100 km/h or sometimes just 70 km/h". This is
reminiscent of the situation in Australia, where trains leaving Sydney need to negotiate slow, winding alignments whether
headed north, west, south or south-west.

Like Australia, Spain also now has an extensive motorway network, and the usual airport infrastructure found in modern
countries. But unlike Australia, Spain has built a network of high speed rail lines over the last 32 years, at an average of around
100km. It now totals over 3,000 km, the second largest network in the world.

As a result, rail travel times are significantly different between Spain and South-East Australia. For example, one can travel from
Barcelona in the north-east to Cadiz in the south-west, a distance of 11200km, in under 7 hours by train (260 km/av speed), much
faster than driving even on an excellent motorway network, whereas it takes 11 hours for the g60 rail journey from Sydney to
Melbourne (average speed 87 km/h), two hours longer than by car.

Several features of the approach in Spain to high speed rail are worth noting:

= The current system was the result of an ambitious, but well-executed plan.

*  The high speed rail elements connect with and utilise the existing rail network, which was initially mostly broad-gauge.
Initial high speed lines were also built as broad gauge, but later lines are being built as standard gauge, or able to be
converted easily to standard gauge when required.

 https://worldpopulationreview.com/countries/cities/spain
* Murray Hughes (2020): “"The Second Age of Rail — A History of High speed Trains”. The History Press.
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»  The initial high speed lines radiated out from Madrid, but later lines are forming a network of cross-regional links. For
example current projects are extending the high speed network down the Mediterranean coast, and are also extending
towards Portugal and to France.

And the network and range of services are still growing. For example, in the last six months:

= Passenger services began using an upgraded 193 km mixed-traffic route between Plasencia and Badajoz in Extremadura
on July 2022, following the inauguration of three sections of new alignment totalling 146 km by King Felipe VI the
previous day. In the longer term, the line is intended to form part of a high speed corridor linking Madrid with
Extremadura and potentially Lisboa in Portugal.

= Passenger services on a 75 km high speed line between Burgos and a junction with the Madrid — Valladolid — Ledn line at
Venta de Bafios began on July 2022, the day after a formal inauguration by King Felipe VI. It is planned that this will
eventually form part of a high speed corridor to the French border™.

= In November 2022, a third high speed rail operator, IRYO, announced it would begin operations in Spain in December,
with the aim of gaining 30% of the high speed market during 2023 with services to multiple cities*. This operator is using
similar trains to those operating in Italy. These will join French trains operated by Ouigo (a subsidiary of France’s SNCF),
and a wide variety of Spanish high speed trains operated by RENFE, the national rail operator in Spain.

*  In December 2022 high speed services began using the latest 16km extension to the city of Murcia. A high speed line is
planned from a junction at El Reguerdn to Cartagena. This will complete the Levante high speed network as originally
envisaged in the early 2000s, linking Madrid with Albacete, Valéncia, Alacant, Murcia and Cartagena®.

INNOVATIVE APPROACHES

Another feature of Spain’s high speed rail system is its innovation. As mentioned this includes:

* Tilt Trains to overcome the many speed restrictions on existing lines due to curvature.

* Dual voltage trains to be able to utilise the international standard 25 kV AC 50 hertz as well as the Spanish broad-gauge
standard of 3 KV DC supply.

=  Hybrid locomotives to extend high speed services to non-electrified tracks.

=  Gauge-changing trains to overcome the change-of-gauge problem.

* https://www.railwaygazette.com/high-speed/high-speed-line-to-burgos-opens/62183.article
* https://www.railwaygazette.com/high-speed/iryo-brings-italian-style-to-spanish-high-speed-rail-services/63016.article
7 https://www.railwaygazette.com/high-speed/spanish-high-speed-network-extended-to-murcia/63212.article
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»  Light-weight, low-floor high speed trains, which have the highest energy efficiency of any such trains in the world.

* Innovative engineering to overcome some of Spain’s topographical challenges, including some massive bridges and
lengthy tunnels.

*  Progressive introduction of services, with sometimes only a few high speed services per day in each direction initially.
Services are then ramped up to match demand.

= Agreementfor multiple train operators to use the same tracks. This allows competition based on services, but maximises
utilisation of the fixed assets.

=  Extension beyond Spain’s borders into France and Portugal, with international services due to operate between Paris
and Madrid, and between Rome and Madrid (6-7 hour journey times). These are expected to be popular and demonstrate
that rail is attractive well beyond the artificial 3-hour limit sometimes thought to be a barrier.

As a result, a wide variety of rollingstock from a variety of manufacturers (including Talgo, Siemens, Alstom, and Bombardier)
now utilises Spain’s high speed network, with some extending onto the existing non-high speed network. Most secondary lines
also include freight as well as passenger trains, including high speed trains (operating at less than full speed).

Alstom Double-deck High Speed Train in Spain on Paris — Madrid
service. Operator Ouigo is due to extend services to other Spanish
cities in 2023.

Talgo-built (left) and Siemens-built (right) high speed trains in
Spain

It is interesting as well that Portugal has now decided to commence building high speed lines, no doubt inspired by the success
in Spain.

The Spanish experience suggests strongly that high speed rail can work in Australia provided:

=  The concept is well-designed, adopting both local experience and international experience as relevant

=  Appropriate governance arrangements are in place. This will mean a single, national, government owner of the track and
related infrastructure assets which can provide clear interfaces with any operator(s) of high speed trains

=  Appropriate use of the latest engineering techniques to minimise construction costs. This includes the latest tunnelling
techniques, use of pre-cast viaducts where possible, concrete embedding of tracks to reduce maintenance, 25 kV AC
supplied from green energy suppliers, in-cab signalling, high-quality maintenance and safety regimes etc.

Australia once had the engineering capability to build what was then one of the biggest engineering projects in the world (the
Snowy Scheme) after establishing the appropriate intergovernmental agreements and governance mechanisms and drawing on
the experience of the world experts in dams and hydro power (at that time mostly in the USA). The Snowy Scheme went on to
pioneer many safety and other innovations, including being one of the first places in the world to mandate safety belts in vehicles.

A similar level of excellence will be required to establish high speed rail in Australia. In this case, the leading experts are far more
likely to come from Japan, France, Spain, Germany or Italy than from English-speaking countries like the US or UK, which lag well
behind world’s best practice. We could do well to follow the example of Spain given some of the parallels to our situation.
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USE HIGH SPEED RAIL TO SPREAD SETTLEMENT
INTO REGIONAL AREAS

Australia is returning to a high rate of immigration as it exists the covid pandemic. Many, such as
the Business Council of Australia, want permanent migration to be set as a percentage of the total
population. While this will be good for Australia’s economy, the negative effects of rapidly
increasing settlement in our capital cities are well-known, and likely to produce the same push-back
that was evident before the covid pandemic. Diverting a significant proportion from capital cities
into regional areas will help defray the negative sentiment towards population growth.

Faster rail connections are known to promote regional settlement. There are many examples from
around the world where governments have built faster rail connections to spread settlement into
regional areas. A relatively recent economic analysis of Victoria with and without faster rail
connections has shown that there will be increased regional settlement if faster regional rail
connections are built. Notably, the study showed that productivity will be 5% greater, and that the
regional economic benefits alone are sufficient to justify the cost of the faster rail connections.

A faster rail network progressively connecting all regional cities to a high speed backbone between
Sydney, Melbourne and Brisbane will spread Australia’s population growth into regional areas.
Most Australian’s will be better off, with greater choice of lifestyle and liveability, that will only be
available through the implementation of a faster rail network. Initial feasibility studies should focus
on sections in the Sydney-Canberra-Melbourne corridor to demonstrate the positive regional growth
and wider economic benefits that arise from individual stages of the network. These will provide
the evidence to support the vision for an integrated network, especially given the already positive
view most Australians have about high speed rail.

Dr. Ross Lowrey

Dr. Garry Glazebrook

January 2023
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The evidence from this study would reinforce Australians’ support for high speed rail. Most Australians say they would like high
speed trains in Australia. Many have travelled on high speed trains in a wide range of countries across the world. They love the
ability to travel long distances quickly, with more comfort and convenience than with air travel. And they have a natural
appreciation of its benefits. It would encourage many to consider relocating to regional cities for a better lifestyle. And it would
provide businesses with more options to base their operations.

And most importantly, it would allay concerns about increased migration. Increased migration is needed to grow Australia’s
economy. High speed rail will divert a significant proportion of that growth into regional areas, defraying the negative impacts
that would otherwise have occurred in our capital cities.

Therefore, it is recommended an economic assessment of high speed rail on the south east of Australia should be undertaken by
the Australian Government. This would need to examine issues such as housing affordability, congestion costs, and the costs of
urban transport and other infrastructure required to support continued rapid population growth in our capital cities, and how
these could be alleviated by an alternative population distribution with more growth in regional cities and less in the major
capitals, as supported by a high speed rail network. An example of alternative population distributions, and the rationale for this
isincluded in a paper “"Population Trends and Decentralisation Options” (www.fastrackaustralia.net).

The overall strategic study would also need to look at the costs of upgrading capital city airports and interstate highways if high
speed rail is not implemented, as well as the environmental benefits of shifting some of the transport (freight and passenger)
demand from air and road to rail.

Such a study can then provide the strategic framework, together with detailed parameters, for including in more detailed business
cases on specific sections of the High Speed Line. These specific business cases will focus on upgrading sections of the Sydney-
Canberra-Melbourne corridor. They will draw on the overall results of the strategic study, noting that many of the benefits of high
speed rail will be cumulative and will take some time to materialise.

For example business case studies will need to be conducted to assess the benefits of implementing new high speed lines from
the outskirts of Sydney, Canberra and Melbourne. This will allow the introduction of new faster commuter services to support
urban growth in regional areas outside each city. The studies will demonstrate that diverting population growth into regional
areas will increase economic activity and productivity sufficient to justify the investment in high speed rail. They will turn the
discussion about high speed rail away from its raw cost benefit ratio towards its importance for regional settlement and state
economic growth.

Another business case study should look at the connecting the new high speed lines out of Sydney and Canberra to create a high
speed line connecting Sydney to the National Capital. This will allow the introduction of high speed passenger services to support
the connectivity between Sydney and Canberra, as well as faster services to support the connectivity with regional cities in the
corridor to Melbourne. It will also allow faster freight services to operate at night, more frequent local regional services to centres
on the conventional line, and operational flexibility by interchangeably using both the high speed and conventional lines. This
study will show the economic benefits that increased connectivity between regional cities will bring to regional areas.

Together, these studies will show that the high upfront cost to implement the full high speed rail network can be ameliorated
through staged rollout of sections that facilitate the progressive growth of regions across the country. High speed rail will still be
a massive national investment with very long payback period, but its long-term value for the future of Australia will be
understood.
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s22(1)(a)(ii)

From: BROE Barry

Sent: Monday, 26 September 2022 2:53 PM

To: WHALEN Greg

Subject: FW: HSR requirements? [SEC=OFFICIAL:Sensitive]

Copy for u only

Regards

Barry Broe

Chief Executive Officer

National Faster Rail Agency (NFRA)
GPO Box 594, Canberra ACT 2601
ph 02 6274 6428; m 0448744699
w: www.nfra.gov.au

The department proudly acknowledges the Traditional Owners and Custodians of
Australia, and their continuing connections to the land, waters and communities. We
pay our respects to them and to their Elders past, present and emerging.

From: BROE Barry

Sent: Monday, 26 September 2022 2:52 PM

To: s22(1)(a)(ii)

Subject: RE: HSR requirements? [SEC=OFFICIAL:Sensitive]

- 822(1)(
Hi a)(ii)

Its been done but the basic problem is | don’t have any authority to define such a strategic
element so Im not sure it would help you much. It was probably ambitious to suggest it

It could change in the future so how could you use it?

Its based on international standards and practice for HSR, mostly consistent with 2013
study and the BC, but those two reports only defined some parameters
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Until the HSRA is established Im not sure how far discussions on all this can be progressed.
Itd be great to discuss both projects and for us to know what you propose and its scope, eg
what safeguarding means

Maybe at your end the Min can contact ours to see how far we can take things?

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

From: $22(1)(a)(ii) @transport.nsw.gov.au>

Sent: Monday, 26 September 2022 12:49 PM

To: BROE Barry <barry.broe@nfra.gov.au>

Cc: WHALEN Greg <Greg.Whalen@nfra.gov.au>; $22(1)(a@)(ii) @transport.nsw.gov.au>
Subject: HSR requirements?

Hi Barry

| understood from our last catch up that you would be able to share some key / high level ‘HSR requirements’, to
help us inform any potential future proofing considerations.
Are you able to send this through?

Chrs

s22(1)
(a)(ii)
s22(1)(a)(ii)
A/Program Director
Fast Rail Program
Regional and Outer Metropolitan
Transport for NSW

| work flexibly. Unless it suits you, | don’t expect you to read or respond to my emails outside of your normal work hours.

v s22(1)(a)(ii)
E s22(1)(a)(ii) @transport.nsw.gov.au
20-44 Ennis Rd, Milsons Point NSW 2061
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| acknowledge the traditional owners and custodians of the land in which | work and pay my respects to Elders past,
present and future.

OFFICIAL: Sensitive = NSW Government

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

;‘ﬁ Consider the environment. Please don't print this e-mail unless really necessary.

OFFICIAL
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s22(1)(a)(ii)

$22(1)(a)(ii)

From:

Sent: Mondav, 20 June 2022 11:34 AM

To: 822(1 )(@)

Cc: BRoE Barry; WHALEN Greg; s22(1)(a)(ii)

Subject: FW: 1ID is meeting with Minister King next week | NFRA content [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Attachments: NFRA input to IID top 20 projects by state 17 Jun 2022_FINAL.xlsx

Hi 822

(1

The tables we just discussed are attached.
Please let me know if you need anything further, happy to help as needed.

Cheers, $22(1)
(a)(ii)

From: $22(1)(a)(ii)

Sent: Friday, 17 June 2022 6:36 PM

To: s22(1)(a)(ii)

Cc: $22(1)(a)(ii) ; BROE Barry ; WHALEN Greg ;
s22(1)(a)(ii)

Subject: IID is meeting with Minister King next week | NFRA content [SEC=OFFICIAL]

Evening $22(1) (and all)
(a)(ii)

I've attached our CEO cleared content for next week’s Top 20 briefing with Minister King.

As agreed amongst the team today, we’ve included all of our projects across VIC, NSW, QLD and WA, noting that
these will be rationalised amongst the other IID led projects to compile the final lists. Noting this, we haven’t
included fact sheets for all the projects but are ready to do so once we have confirmation about which projects
they’re required for.

Ill loop back to you on Monday to confirm further details and hope you have a lovely weekend in the meantime.

Cheers, $22(1)
(a)(ii)
$22(1)(a)(ii)

Director — Business Case and Projects

GPO Box 594, Canberra ACT 2601

Ph: (02) 822(1)(@)( (m) s22(1)(a)(ii)

s22(1)(a)(ii) @nfra.gov.au | www.nfra.gov.au
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Establishment of the High Speed Rail Authority

Issues/Possible Question:

QUESTION: What is the Government doing to deliver the High-Speed Rail it
has promised?

ANSWER:

The Australian Government has committed to establish the High Speed Rail
Authority (HSRA), as a high priority, to oversee the development of a High
Speed Rail (HSR) network and to advise on Australia’s current and future HSR
needs.

QUESTION: Will the High Speed Rail network cover all of Australia?

ANSWER:

The HSRA will focus on the delivery of an HSR network on the East Coast of
Australia; connecting Melbourne, Canberra, Sydney and Brisbane. Other
corridors may be considered in the future.

As a first step, the Australian Government has committed $500 million to
commence early works, including securing corridors, for an HSR connection
between Sydney, the Central Coast and Newcastle. The HSRA will work
collaboratively with the NSW Government to determine the best way to
deliver this project.

QUESTION: How will the Government ensure buy-in from the states to
deliver the HSR?

ANSWER:

The HSRA will work collaboratively with the state and territory governments to
determine the best way to deliver the project and secure corridors, building on
existing strong relationships between jurisdictions in the construction,
operation, and maintenance of other railway assets.

QUESTION: Will High Speed Rail actually have benefits? why doesn’t the
Australian Government just invest in Faster Rail?

ANSWER:

Cleared by: s22(1)(a)(

Division: DIV — Infrastructure Investment Division

Created: 06 July 2022 20of4
Last Updated: 08 July 2022
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HSR will be an economic game-changer for regional centres along the route
between Melbourne and Brisbane.

On 5 August 2010 the then Minister for Infrastructure and Transport, the Hon
Anthony Albanese MP, committed $20 million for a strategic study on the
implementation of an HSR network on the east coast of Australia.

In 2013 the Moving Forward with High Speed Rail final report into HSR was
released with the study indicating a return of around $2.30 on every $1.00
invested, showing that the benefits will greatly outweigh the costs. The HSRA
will update relevant business cases to ensure they provide decision-makers
with up-to-date advice and options.

While HSR will revolutionise travel and have economic and social benefits, it is
not the right solution for all rail needs in Australia. The Government will
continue to invest in and monitor delivery of alternative rail options (such as
faster rail), where these options’ design principles and application make sense.

QUESTION: How long will it take to deliver High Speed Rail?

ANSWER:

The Australian Government has committed to establishing the HSRA as a high
priority. HSR is a long-term project and the first step is to secure the corridor.
The Government has already committed $500 million to commence early
works and secure corridors.

The challenges in Australia are greater than in countries where routes are
shorter, however there are significant opportunities for Australia’s economic
and regional development. HSR recognises the importance of the prosperity of
regions, which can be improved by enhancing connectivity between regional
centres and major population centres and international gateways.
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Background:

The NSW Government’s projections show the population of the Central Coast and the
Hunter Valley growing by an estimated 200,000 by 2040 making timely, efficient and fast
transport a necessity.

The regions’ prosperity can be improved by better connectivity between regional centres
and from the major population centres and international gateways. Fast rail connections will
also offer people more of a choice of where to live and work.

A key commitment of the Australian Government during the election was to establish the
HSRA as a high priority and to ensure the timely delivery of the HSR network.

The current commitment is for the HSRA to identify and acquire corridors of land that would
accommodate either an initial fast rail line that could eventually be upgraded to

high-speed rail, or move directly to build high-speed rail itself.

The Government has committed $S500 million to start corridor acquisition, planning and
early works.

On 5 August 2010 the then Minister for Infrastructure and Transport, the Hon Anthony
Albanese MP, committed $20 million to undertake a strategic study on the implementation
of a HSR network on the east coast of Australia.

The two-part study, “Moving Forward with High Speed Rail,” informs the Australian
Government, the ACT and state governments' consideration of next steps for HSR in
Australia. The study was undertaken in two phases.

The Phase 1 report was released on 4 August 2011 and focussed on identifying corridors,
station locations and potential patronage. It also provided an indicative estimate of the cost
to build a HSR network. Phase 2 of the study commenced late in 2011 and the HSR Study
Phase 2 report was released on 11 April 2013. It refined many of the Phase 1 estimates,
particularly the demand and cost estimates.

After the release of the Phase 2 report, a High Speed Rail Advisory Group was established to
advise the Government on key industry and community issues arising from the report (the
Group was abolished in November 2013). The Group’s August 2013 Report found that HSR
had the potential to be an integral part of Australia’s future and consultations revealed that
generally people were supportive, with most wanting HSR delivered cheaper and much
sooner than proposed.

Contact:

s22(1)(@)(  Director, Investment Advisory and Business Improvement, $22(1)(@)(ii)

ii)
Andreas Bleich, A/g Assistant Secretary, Investment Advisory and Business Improvement,
02 6274 7934 and 0418 585 267.
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s22(1)(a)(ii)

$22(1)(a)(ii)

From:

Sent: Wednesday, 15 February 2023 3:28 PM
To: WHALEN Greg

Subject: FW: NSW fast rail money [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Hi Greg,

Jacqui has confirmed the budget envelope below.

Cheers, $22(1)
(a)(ii)

From: $22(1)(a)(ii)

Sent: Wednesday, 15 February 2023 3:14 PM
To: s22(1)(a)(ii)

Subject: NSW fast rail money [SEC=0OFFICIAL]

Rob Stokes MP to Minster King regarding high-speed rail.pdf

$95.0 million in capital expenditure ($274.5 million over four years) to continue planning of the
Fast Rail program to deliver faster connections between Sydney, Canberra, Bomaderry,
Newcastle, the Central Coast and the Central West which is NSW and Commonwealth funded
(NSW Budget 22-23— Transport and Infrastructure Cluster Statement pg 9-10)

2022-23 Budget-Paper-No-2-Outcomes-Statement-Transport-Cluster.docx (live.com)

$22(1)(a)(ii)

Assistant Director — Business Cases and Projects

GPO Box 594, Canberra ACT 2601

Ph: (02) 822(1)(a)(

s22(1)(a)(ii) @nfra.gov.au | www.nfra.gov.au

10of 1
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s22(1)(a)(ii)

From: BROE Barry
Sent: Tuesdav, 6 September 2022 9:47 PM
To: $22(1)(a)(ii)
Subject: Fwd: NSW Transport Strategy [SEC=OFFICIAL]
OFFICIAL
Thanks $22
Very usé?l)ﬁas)ummary and timely
Kind regards
Barry Broe
CEO
NFRA
0448744699
OFFICIAL
From: "s22(1)(a)(ii) @MO.infrastructure.gov.au>
Date: Tuesday, 6 September 2022 at 8:38:10 pm
To: "BROE Barry" <barry.broe@nfra.gov.au>, "$22(1)(@)(ii) @MO.infrastructure.gov.au>
Subject: RE: NSW Transport Strategy [SEC=OFFICIAL]
OFFICIAL

Thanks Barry.

Regards,

s22(1)(a)(ii)

Deputy Chief of Staff | Office of the Hon Catherine King MP
M: s22(1)(a)(ii)

E: s22(1)(a)(ii) @mo.infrastructure.gov.au
OFFICIAL
From: BROE Barry
Sent: Tuesday, 6 September 2022 10:30 AM
To: s22(1)(a)(ii) ; s22(1)(a)(ii)
Subject: NSW Transport Strategy [SEC=OFFICIAL]
OFFICIAL

$22(1)(a)(ii)

NSW released their transport strategy, in the media today. Key fast rail elements are
summarised below
As discussed, focussed on fast rail and their priority section Sydney to the Central coast

Weve searched the document and the term high speed rail is not used once
Key stats of the NSW Future Transport Strategy

Dedicated Fast Rail will transform train services between metropolitan cities in the Six Cities Region to ensure 30-
minute access to key destinations 24/7 in each of the six cities.

Transport has identified four key corridors that will benefit from Fast Rail connections They are the:
¢ Northern route including the Central Coast and Newcastle

 Southern Coastal route, including Wollongong and Nowra/Bomaderry

e Central West route, including Lithgow, Bathurst, Orange and Parkes

¢ Southern Inland route, including Goulburn and Canberra.

Fast Rail will cut travel times by about 50%, for example:

¢ Sydney to Newcastle will reduce to about one hour

1of 2
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¢ Sydney to Gosford will reduce to about 25 minutes
¢ Sydney to Wollongong will reduce to about 45 minutes.
Key interchanges at Epping and Campbelltown-Macarthur between the new Fast Rail lines and the Greater Sydney
transport network will provide improved links between Sydney and regional NSW. Given the scale of the task,
Transport will take an incremental approach, developing Fast Rail in sections over two to three decades.
The Fast Rail line between the Central Coast and Greater Sydney will be the first major project for construction. This
will improve connectivity and capacity along the fastest growing corridor in NSW and provide greater housing choice
and better access to jobs, education, health, and medical services. Complementary place making, economic
development and industry attraction activities will provide an opportunity to strengthen the role of Gosford.
A Fast Rail hub in the Central River City will further accelerate growth opportunities while providing easy access to
employment centres and world-class health and education precincts.

Regards

Barry Broe

Chief Executive Officer

National Faster Rail Agency (NFRA)
GPO Box 594, Canberra ACT 2601
ph 02 6274 6428; m 0448744699
WwW: www.nfra.gov.au

The department proudly acknowledges the Traditional Owners and Custodians
of Australia, and their continuing connections to the land, waters and
communities. We pay our respects to them and to their Elders past, present
and emerging.

OFFICIAL
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BRIGGS, Aaron

From: BROE Barry

Sent: Tuesdav. 28 June 2022 1:30 PM

To: s22(1)(@)(i) . BLEICH Andreas

Cc: WHALEN Greg

Subject: HSR Project and HSR Authority [SEC=PROTECTED]

Attachments: previous legislation hsr.doc.pdf; HSR project and HSR authority.doc.docx

s22(1)( & Andreas

a)(ii)

Many thanks for your time today and sharing with us and discussing.

Attached is the paper | mentioned, very happy to chat through any time.

Also attached are summary tables of the previous Acts introduced.

Separate from the discussion with the Min on the authority itself and legislation that you
are arranging, any assistance you can give getting a slot for us to brief the Min on faster,
fast and high speed rail, including Sydney-Newcastle, would be appreciated. Dave said this

would be coming up.

Regards

10f 16
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The Planning Authority

The authority can be located in Canberra but could move longer term, eg to Sydney should
the Sydney-Newcastle corridor be the priority focus and the first stage of construction.

Budget and resourcing would need to be confirmed as early as possible. Part of the ALP’s

S$500m commitment could be used to establish and run the authority, and fund the planning
required, leaving the bulk of these funds for corridor protection as envisaged.

HSR & HSRA

10 of 16

Released under FOI Act 1982 by High Speed Rail Authority
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Faster to Fast to High speed

Faster, fast and high speed are all part of the same type of concept along a train speed
spectrum over time. One leads to the other. The ALP’s policy statement says that the first
step would be fast rail for Sydney-Newcastle.
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e NFRA business cases have looked at HSR corridor options, especially the Sydney-
Newcastle corridor that investigated options for HSR consistent with the 2013 ECHSR
Report in terms of the route and station locations.
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PART B - Establishing the project

Project development

The focus would be to progress Sydney-Newcastle first with the NSW government, given the
ALP’s $500m commitment to Sydney-Newcastle. Another reason for its priority is that NSW
has been the jurisdiction most supportive of fast rail and high-speed rail options, as
evidenced by their fast rail network strategy and the HSR options investigated in the
Sydney-Newcastle business case.

13 of 16
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The 2013 ECHSR Report recommended the following construction staging based on cost,
demand and economic returns.

e Sydney — Melbourne (with stage 1 Sydney-Canberra)
e Sydney-Newcastle

e Newcastle-Gold Coast

e Brisbane-Gold Coast

2. Priority HSR Planning - Sydney — Newcastle and Sydney - Wollongong

In parallel with or closely following the full corridor study, planning for sections of the
corridor could be undertaken to progress staging and delivery. A two-pronged approach
could be adopted - working to the north and south of Sydney. Sydney is the hub for the
whole HSR system and the new Government’s priority is Sydney-Newcastle.

NSW proposes to conduct a detailed business case for a new Sydney-Gosford corridor, a
50km fast rail link designed to achieve speeds of 250kph. This could be advanced as it would
be a good start to planning the network in detail and getting a first stage of the HSR corridor
proven up. It lines up well with the 2013 ECHSR Report which recommended a second HSR
station at Sydney Olympic Park to complement the main station at Central. NFRA has $20m
set aside to contribute to it.

Related work from faster rail planning that can feed into the HSR corridor development
includes options looked at for HSR in the Sydney-Newcastle business case.

HSR & HSRA 9
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A decision on the current funding for the Tuggerah-Wyong project would also be needed.
The goal was to develop the project to safeguard for future fast rail. It could continue if NSW
match the funding and see it as a priority, but is not necessarily as important for the HSR
project as the Sydney-Gosford fast rail project mentioned above.

A business case has also been done for the Sydney-Wollongong corridor.

Hence an approach would be to focus on these two Sydney corridors north and south to
start the detailed planning and identify a HSR corridor in NSW, with NSW agreement.

An alternative (or in addition) would be to conduct a detailed business into HSR for the full
corridor from Sydney-Newcastle, _
- These options would form the basis of discussions with NSW to gain agreement. It
would be beneficial regardless to look at the fast rail/HSR vision or plan for the full 170km
corridor.

3. Currently funded faster rail projects

The new Government will need to decide what existing budget commitments it wishes to
keep and whether to consider any new ones (in addition to the $500m). Existing
commitments are:

e 2022 Budget — Sydney-Newcastle corridor (Tuggerah-Wyong) S1bn. This could be part of
the HSR corridor

HSR & HSRA 10
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s22(1)(a)(ii)

From: s22(1)(a)(ii)

Sent: Thursday, 20 April 2023 11:51 AM

To: WHALEN Greg

Subject: Fwd: Sydney to Newcastle Funding - Reports [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Attachments: Audit queries - Sydney to Newcastle Fast Rail.xIsx

OFFICIAL
Hi Greg, please see below.
If you’re comfortable, please feel free to respond directly with the response ?2\2/ . has proposed.

Cheers, $22(1)
(a)(ii)
OFFICIAL
From: "$22(1)(a)(ii) @transport.nsw.gov.au>
Date: Thursday, 20 April 2023 at 11:24:44 am
To: "s22(1)(a)(ii) nfra.gov.au>, "$22(1)(a)(ii)
@nfra.gov.au>
Cc: "ss22(1)(a)(ii) @transport.nsw.gov.au>

Subject: RE: Sydney to Newcastle Funding - Reports

Hi s22(1)(a)(ii)

| hope you are well.

| would like to follow up on the enquiries from Audit Office attached.
Please let us know if you have any questions or want to discuss furhter.

Thanks,
s22(1)(a)

Erbm: 522(1)(a)i)

Sent: Tuesday, 11 April 2023 10:55 AM

To: $22(1)(a)(ii) @nfra.gov.au; $22(1)(@)(ii) @nfra.gov.au

Cc: s22(1)(a)(ii)

Subject: Sydney to Newcastle Funding - Reports

Hi s22(1)(a)(ii) ,

| hope you are well.

Further to our meeting on 28 February, we have engaged Audit Office to prepare an audit on the financial
statements for Sydney to Newcastle project.

The Audit Office would like to have Commonwealth’s confirmation on a few queries, as in the attached spreadsheet.
Would you please kindly review and provide your confirmation or advice. Thank you.

Kind regards,

s22(1)(a)

(i)

Finance and Performance Manager

Fast Rail Program

Regional and Outer Metropolitan

Transport for NSW

M s22(1)(a)(ii)

20-44 Ennis Road, Milsons Point NSW 2061

10f3
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| acknowledge the traditional owners and custodians of the land in which | work and pay my respects to Elders past,

present and future.
OFFICIAL: Sensitive — NSW Government

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

Sent: 2022 2:01 PM

To:

Subject: NFRA current projects | relationship with HSR corridor [SEC=PROTECTED,

CAVEAT=SH:CABINET]

PROTECTED, SH:CABINET

Hi m- interested in your comments on the below table.
a

Inside HSR High capacity to Limited
National Faster Rail Agency Projects | - ..~ influence HSR relationship with
(Remain with corridor HSR corridor
HSRA) (Remain with HSRA) | (Move to IID with
engagement from
HSRA)

NSW | Sydney to Newcastle Strategic
Business Case

Sydney to Wollongong Strategic
Business Case

10of2
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Director — Business Case and Projects
GPO Box 594, Canberra ACT 2601
Ph: (02) (m)
nfra.gov.au | www.nfra.gov.au

PROTECTED, SH:CABINET
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s22(1)(a)(ii)

From: BROE Barry

Sent: Monday, 22 August 2022 11:59 AM

To: WHALEN Greg

Subject: FW: Sydney to Wollongong business case [SEC=PROTECTED, CAVEAT=SH:CABINET]
Attachments: Sydney to Wollongong sumamry slides.pptx; Sydney to WollongongAttachment

C.docx; Sydney to Nowra Factsheet (20 April 2021).docx

Sent this that | collated

From: BROE Barry

Sent: Monday, 22 August 2022 11:24 AM

To: s22(1)(a)(ii)

Subject: RE: Sydney to Wollongong business case [SEC=PROTECTED, CAVEAT=SH:CABINET]

- $22(1)(
Hi 2

Good to talk
A few bits of summary info attached

Feel free to ask any other questions

Barry

From: $22(1)(a)(ii)

Sent: Monday, 22 August 2022 10:29 AM

To: BROE Barry <barry.broe@nfra.gov.au>

Subject: Sydney to Wollongong business case [SEC=0OFFICIAL]

Hi Barry
| hope this finds you well.
| have had a request for information relating to planning works/business cases for the following NFRA project:

1
10f 10
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e Sydney to Wollongong

| would appreciate if you could give me a call about this project and a brief discussion on what information is
available.

Regards
s22(1)
(a)(ii)

$22(1)(a)(ii)
Adviser e Office of the Hon Catherine King MP

Minister for Infrastructure, Transport, Regional Development and Local Government
s22(1)(a)( @mo.infrastructure.gov.au

) 0s22(1)(a)(
s22(1)(a)(ii)

I would like to acknowledge the traditional custodians of this land on which we meet, work and live.
I recognise and respect their continuing connection to the land, waters and communities.
| pay my respects to Elders past and present and to all Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islanders.

OFFICIAL
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$22(1)(a)(ii)

From: BROE Barry

Sent: Monday, 26 September 2022 11:14 AM

To: BLEICH Andreas

Cc: s22(1)(a)(ii) ; WHALEN Greg
Subject: RE: HSR Briefing Request from the Minister [SEC=OFFICIAL]

It may be she is just as happy to understand what HSR is (and fast rail) and what it could
look like for Sydney-Newcastle

Rather than detail and BC specifics (eg costing)
The odd mention of the 2013 study (which is public and highly relevant) may also help

So we should be fine, Il carry the risk!

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

From: BLEICH Andreas

Sent: Monday, 26 September 2022 11:02 AM

To: BROE Barry

Cc: s22(1)(a)(ii) ; WHALEN Greg
Subject: RE: HSR Briefing Request from the Minister [SEC=OFFICIAL]

Hi Barry,

10f4
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s22(1)(a)(ii) @infrastructure.gov.au>
Subject: Re: HSR Briefing Request from the Minister [SEC=OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL
Thanks Andreas

Agree another good opportunity to work together

Very happy to help and provide any input and materials if need be

I’'m available Wednesday and can attend if it’s joint and required

| understand the bill debate scheduled for 2 pm Wednesday is unlikely now anyway

Only issue to consider,as you’d be aware, is that BC not public but it's Mins call how much we can tell her on S-N. |
can certainly explain it generally and sufficiently that she would understand work done on HSR in the corridor.

Kind regards

Barry Broe
CEO
NFRA
0448744699
OFFICIAL

From: "BLEICH Andreas" <Andreas.Bleich@infrastructure.gov.au>

Date: Sunday, 25 September 2022 at 1:34:16 pm

To: "BROE Barry" <barry.broe@nfra.gov.au>, "WHALEN Greg" <Greg.Whalen@nfra.gov.au>

Cc: "s22(1)(a)(ii) @infrastructure.gov.au>, $22(1)(@)(ii) @infrastructure.gov.au>,
s22(1)(a)(ii) @infrastructure.gov.au>

Subject: HSR Briefing Request from the Minister [SEC=OFFICIAL]

Hi Barry/s22
(1

Last week Minister King met with $22(1)(a)(ii) regarding the High Speed Rail bill. The Minister offered a
briefing to $22(1)(a)(ii) n on the work that has been undertaken so far in the HSR space, specifically in relation
to the Sydney-Newcastle route.

This might be a good opportunity for us to work together on a briefing. Are you able to assist and, if so, do you have
availability on Wednesday? we will check the logistics/preference on whether both NFRA and the Department can
attend, however please send through your availability in the interim.

Cheers,
Andreas

Andreas Bleich

a/g Assistant Secretary © Investment Advisory and Business Improvement « Infrastructure Investment Division
Andreas.Bleich@infrastructure.gov.au

P +612 62747934 - M +61 418 585 267

GPO Box 594 Canberra, ACT 2601

Executive Assistant: $22(1)(@) « P +612522(1)( - s22(1)(a)( @infrastructure.gov.au

(ii) a)(ii) i)

3of4
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s22(1)(a)(ii)

From: BROE Barry

Sent: Wednesday, 7 December 2022 5:54 PM

To: WHALEN Greg

Subject: RE: 221201_NSWElectionPolicyProjectsList_ExecSummary_Print (002)
[SEC=OFFICIAL]

Well done thanks Greg

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

Sent: Wednesday, 7 December 2022 5:35 PM

To: BROE Barry

Subject: RE: 221201 _NSWEIlectionPolicyProjectsList_ExecSummary_Print (002) [SEC=OFFICIAL]

Barry,
We no longer need to get back to IID on this one.

Given the short amount of time 1ID had, with a little help from me, they were able to draw sufficient info from
existing NSW, Dept, NFRA, and Greater Sydney Commission websites.

In the end 522_(1)( was just after some background info on the Western Sydney Leadership Dialogue’s paper. This
was in casé3HB or the Minister were asked guestions by the group when they attend the Western Sydney

Boomtown conference over the next couple of days.

Apologies for the multiple emails on this.

10of5
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Regards,

Greg

From: WHALEN Greg

Sent: Wednesday, 7 December 2022 4:58 PM

To: BROE Barry <barry.broe@nfra.gov.au>

Subject: RE: 221201_NSWElectionPolicyProjectsList_ExecSummary_Print (002) [SEC=OFFICIAL]

Barry,

In relation to the email below, | tracked down a full copy of the "2023 NSW Election Priorities’ (see link) and it
doesn’t expand much more on this issue in the main part of the document (p11) see text below.

Regards,
Greg

Fast Rail

e Recommendation — NSW Government to accelerate the corridor and interchange planning for the Central
River City Hub of the Fast Rail line.

e Recommendation — NSW Government to publish the confirmed full route of the Fast Rail line.

e Recommendation — NSW Government to publish a comprehensive Fast Rail strategy. The Fast Rail is a
project with region-shaping and nation-building potential. An interchange hub at Parramatta or

Olympic Park will be a vital region activator and will encourage increased utilisation of the service as the
heart of Greater Sydney is pulled further west over time. The Dialogue welcomes the project being added to
the NSW Government’s agenda through the GCC’s Region Vision paper, especially the intent to begin the
project with an intra-state network, rather than the much larger and less viable eastern seaboard.

We note, however, that the full fast rail route and delivery strategy has not yet been published, despite the
GCC’s Region Vision and the NSW Future Transport Strategy both referring to the fast rail corridor and
funding already having been allocated from both federal and state governments for planning and corridor
preservation.

From: WHALEN Greg

Sent: Wednesday, 7 December 2022 4:45 PM

To: BROE Barry <barry.broe@nfra.gov.au>

Subject: FW: 221201_NSWEIlectionPolicyProjectsList_ExecSummary_Print (002) [SEC=OFFICIAL]

Barry,

1ID’s Robyn Legg has reached out to us to see if we can help provide some info for 822(1)(  at the MO (822(1)(a)(
email is attached). The MO is looking for any information the Dept has on projects #4Bd in the attached)Western

2
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Sydney Leadership Dialogue’s’ document 2023 Election Priorities’. Robyn is still clarifying what the MO needs the
info for.

The key area in the document Robyn has approached us about is one of the transport priorities: "Fast Rail —
accelerate the corridor & interchange planning for the Central River City [Parramatta], publish the confirmed full
route and publish a comprehensive fast rail strategy.’

For your clearance, my proposed response to Robyn is as follows:
- The NFRA has not had any dealings with the Western Sydney Leadership Dialogue, and therefore has no
further details of the specific issue they are referring to in the "2023 Election Priorities’ document.
- The NFRA is however aware of the following activities associated with the above issue:

o On 6 September 2022, the NSW Government released its NSW Future Transport Strategy. It
includes plans to develop fast rail for a Six Cities Region surrounding Sydney and its
surrounding regions via four key corridors including one to Central Coast and Newcastle. On
page 32 of the document, there is an image showing proposed fast rail connections to

Parramatta. See link.
o S47B

o The Australian Government’s $500m project (October 2022-23 Budget commitment) to
begin corridor acquisition, planning and early works for the high speed rail corridor between
Sydney, Central Coast and Newcastle, i$47B

o Further discussions are required between the Australian and NSW Government to settle the
scope and funding arrangements for the above projects.

Robyn is aiming to get back to the MO around 5pm. Apologies for the short notice.
Regards,

Greg

From: LEGG Robyn

Sent: Wednesday, 7 December 2022 3:48 PM

To: WHALEN Greg <Greg.Whalen@nfra.gov.au>

Subject: RE: 221201_NSWEIlectionPolicyProjectsList_ExecSummary_Print (002) [SEC=OFFICIAL]

Thanks Greg — yes from the MO (attached) and no indication that it will be used externally — | will say as much when
| go back. But if in doubt — keep v flat.

Robyn
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From: WHALEN Greg

Sent: Wednesday, 7 December 2022 3:45 PM

To: LEGG Robyn <Robyn.Legg@infrastructure.gov.au>

Subject: RE: 221201_NSWElectionPolicyProjectsList_ExecSummary_Print (002) [SEC=OFFICIAL]

Thanks Robyn. Has the request come from the MO, and if so, do you know what they are going to do with the info
(eg. internal or external audience)?

Greg

From: LEGG Robyn

Sent: Wednesday, 7 December 2022 3:37 PM

To: WHALEN Greg <Greg.Whalen@nfra.gov.au>

Cc: $22(1)(a)(ii) @infrastructure.gov.au>

Subject: 221201_NSWElectionPolicyProjectsList_ExecSummary_Print (002) [SEC=OFFICIAL]

As discussed Greg — we have been asked for anything we know on the infra projects listed here. The one of
relevance to you is snipped below. Grateful for any words to stick in our table.

Thanks

Robyn

Robyn Legg

Assistant Secretary ©* NSW, ACT and Targeted Roads Branch ¢ Infrastructure Investment Division
Robyn.Legg@infrastructure.gov.au

P +612 62747670 - M +61 481771910

GPO Box 594 Canberra, ACT 2601

Department of Infrastructure, Transport, Regional Development, Communications and the Arts
CONNECTING AUSTRALIANS ¢ ENRICHING COMMUNITIES * EMPOWERING REGIONS
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$22(1)(@)(ii)

From: BROE Barry

Sent: Monday, 26 September 2022 3:01 PM

To: WHALEN Greg

Subject: RE: HSR requirements? [SEC=OFFICIAL:Sensitive]

They probably wont or say much

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

Sent: Monday, 26 September 2022 2:55 PM

To: BROE Barry

Subject: RE: HSR requirements? [SEC=OFFICIAL:Sensitive]

Thanks Barry. It’ll be interesting to see how TfNSW respond.

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

To: $22(1)(a)(ii) @transport.nsw.gov.au>
Subject: RE: HSR requirements? [SEC=OFFICIAL:Sensitive]

- $22(1)(
Hi )i

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

OFFICIAL:Sensitive

From: $22(1)(a)(ii) @transport.nsw.gov.au>

Sent: Monday, 26 September 2022 12:49 PM

To: BROE Barry <barry.broe@nfra.gov.au>

Cc: WHALEN Greg <Greg.Whalen@nfra.gov.au>; $22(1)(@)(ii) @transport.nsw.gov.au>
Subject: HSR requirements?

Hi Barry

I understood from our last catch up that you would be able to share some key / high level ‘HSR requirements’, to
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
E s22(1)(a)(ii) n@transport.nsw.gov.au
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

Sent: Tuesday, 20 September 2022 1:44 PM

To: WHALEN Greg

Subject: RE: Question Time Briefs (QTB) - Minister C King - substitute sitting [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Attachments: QB22-000342(updated post HSRA Bill a.docx

Sorry my mistake
Sent u a clean version
Try this, ive fixed the collaboration bit

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

Sent: Tuesday, 20 September 2022 12:09 PM

To: BROE Barry

Subject: FW: Question Time Briefs (QTB) - Minister C King - substitute sitting [SEC=OFFICIAL]

Hi Barry,

| have reviewed the version of the QTB you emailed late yesterday (see attached), and apart from my track-changes
being accepted, it doesn’t appear to include any other edits.

Are you able to forward me copy containing your edits or advise what they were? Were your edits just the ones
amending the phrase about "...in collaboration with the Department...”?

Thanks,
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Greg

From: WHALEN Greg
Sent: Tuesday, 20 September 2022 9:32 AM
To: BROE Barry <barry.broe@nfra.gov.au>

Cc: s22(1)(a)(ii) @NFRA.gov.au>
Subject: RE: Question Time Briefs (QTB) - Minister C King - substitute sitting [SEC=OFFICIAL]

Barry,
It hasn’t been loaded into PDMS yet so we can put those words back in.

Greg

From: BROE Barry

Sent: Tuesday, 20 September 2022 9:26 AM

To: WHALEN Greg <Greg.Whalen@nfra.gov.au>

Subject: Re: Question Time Briefs (QTB) - Minister C King - substitute sitting [SEC=OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL
If not too late
In hindsight please put back in the words about in collaboration with the department

Where it talks about the HSRA doing faster rail functions
Kind regards

Barry Broe
CEO
NFRA
0448744699
OFFICIAL

From: "WHALEN Greg" <Greg.Whalen@nfra.gov.au>

Date: Tuesday, 20 September 2022 at 9:18:11 am

To: "BROE Barry" <barry.broe@nfra.gov.au>

Subject: RE: Question Time Briefs (QTB) - Minister C King - substitute sitting [SEC=OFFICIAL]

Thanks Barry.

Greg
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From: BROE Barry

Sent: Monday, 19 September 2022 5:30 PM

To: WHALEN Greg <Greg.Whalen@nfra.gov.au>; $22(1)(@)(ii) @NFRA.gov.au>
Subject: RE: Question Time Briefs (QTB) - Minister C King - substitute sitting [SEC=OFFICIAL]

Thanks Greg
See version attached, minor edits

Please submit

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

Sent: Monday, 19 September 2022 4:06 PM

To: BROE Barry <barry.broe@nfra.gov.au>

Cc: s22(1)(a)(ii) k@nfra.gov.au>

Subject: FW: Question Time Briefs (QTB) - Minister C King - substitute sitting [SEC=OFFICIAL]

Barry,

Attached for your